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Corporate Information
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Financial Highlights

Revenue for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 decreased
by approximately 7.6% from approximately HK$4,324.5 million to
approximately HK$3,997.7 million as compared with that of the last
financial year.

Gross profit for this financial year decreased by approximately
32.5% from approximately HK$856.4 million to approximately
HK$578.1 million.

Other income, gains and losses for this financial year were losses
of approximately HK$30.6 million (2022: losses of approximately
HK$131.6 million).

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$5.9 million (2022: nil).

Impairment loss recognised on loan receivables and loan interest
receivables amounted to approximately HK$12.7 million (2022:
approximately HK$56.4 million).

Selling and distribution costs for this financial year decreased
by approximately 19.1% as compared with the same in the last
financial year.

Administrative expenses for this financial year increased by
approximately 3.2% as compared with the same in the last financial
year.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 March 2023 was approximately HK$53.1 million as
compared with profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$34.1 million recorded for the year ended 31
March 2022.

Loss per share attributable to owners of the Company were HK15.5
cents for this financial year as compared with earnings per share of

HK10.0 cents in the last financial year.

No dividend was declared for this financial year (2022: nil).
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Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights

Financial Position: B #E AR
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T FA T
Total assets BEERE 3,985,960 4,727,684
Total liabilities R 1,758,040 2,002,361
Net assets BEEFE 2,227,920 2,725,323
Net tangible worth EREEFE 1,738,027 2,181,770
Financial Ratios: AR EE R .
2023 2022
—_=E_-= —=EFE-—
Gross profit margin EHx 14.5% 19.8%
Return on equity G e B (2.4%) 1.3%
Current ratio it B B 2 1.54 1.5
Gearing ratio BERBELE 45.2% 39.4%
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

At the opening ceremony of the National People’s Congress of the
PRC held in March 2023, Premier Li Kegiang stated that China
has set the economic growth target of 5% for 2023, which is the
lowest figure since 1994. This reflects that China does not pursue
excessive growth, but rather pursuing progress while maintaining
stability, overcoming challenges with a pragmatic attitude, so as
to promote China’s continued steady development. Since 2023,
driven by the overall recovery of China’s economy, the social
consumption level has taken the lead in rebounding, and the overall
performance has been promising. In particular, leisure consumption
and tourism expenditure have become the main driving forces for
China’s positive economic growth. It is expected that domestic
consumption in the PRC will continue to be the main driver for the
recovery of the domestic economy.

Looking back to last year, due to the ongoing impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group’s revenue decreased from
approximately HK$4,324.5 million to approximately HK$3,997.7
million during the financial year under review. Gross profit for
the financial year under review decreased from approximately
HK$856.4 million last year to approximately HK$578.1 million.
The automotive business remained as our major income driver,
accounting for approximately 87.5% of the Group’s business. Loss
attributable to owners reached to approximately HK$53.1 million in
this financial year as compared with a net profit of approximately
HK$34.1 million in the last financial year.

2023F3ARTZHEAZEARREASHE
N E-FTREMBIERTPED H2023F 44 %
#EBIZRT A5% & H1994F LA SR &K
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FEHH -MBERTRAFTEHEBEENA
Bl A4 B RIERIEB N -
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856,400,000 7T & 4> & #9578,100,000/%
T ABEBNAZBZWRARR HRERZE
TE#)87.5% - NI INF 8IS HEE AB(NEE
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F#734,100,0005 7T °
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

China’s Luxury Goods and Automobiles Markets

A number of reputable authorities, investment banks and global
research institutions have continued to publish the latest research
reports and data, indicating that China’s luxury goods market will
gradually pick up along with the recovery of the consumer market
after the pandemic. According to the report named “Setting a
New Pace for Personal Luxury Growth in China” released by Bain
& Company on 7 February 2023, in view of the impact of the
COVID-19 on the business, China’s luxury goods market declined
by 10% year-on-year in 2022, failing to reach the growth for
five consecutive years. However, the report concluded that the
luxury consumption fundamentals remained strong despite the
temporary setback. As China gradually recovers from the impact
of COVID-19, the luxury goods market will be back on track.
The report anticipated that the number of mid-to-high income
consumers in China is expected to double by 2030. Compared with
other emerging markets, China will still be the center of the world’s
consumer goods market from a medium to long-term perspective.

According to the research report named “China HK Luxury Market
Insights” released by PricewaterhouseCoopers on 9 February 2023,
with tourism and social activities gradually on the right track, the
global luxury market is recovering steadily. It is expected that the
global market will increase to USD444.7 billion at a compound
annual growth rate of about 11% by 2025. The Asia-Pacific region
has become an important growth engine of the global luxury
market, and China, as the main driving force, will continue to
release its growth potential. The report estimated that the size of
China’s luxury market will reach RMB816 billion in 2025, which will
account for about 25% of the global luxury market share.

TRESRRAETS

ZRAMAHEE  IREBRITRIRIAR A LFE
BRETHRREREE BHESREHEE
MIHEE  PREE TS ’HE LRI BRI
BB RRMR2023F2A7H B X 2 HE (2022
FHEEZERTS  EAZZRARERTB
)  ERFTERBHEBNTE 202264
BEZRMERL TE10%  FEEESFH
BR-EZRERAE BEURIY ZEH
HEEAMKERS BEEREESUTTE
BHEERRE EEZmmseEaMELE
B o 5% S T8 8 - 220304 - A B A i RACH
BEYERHEG AL EMFETS  HFR
RAERE FEKELBERBEERTS
B R B GL o

BIE T E oK E R2023F2 9B # M A (P
BEAMEESEEERMBERE: [E2F
FEE BRAFEER]) 2HRBRE KB
BIREA OGS EHF AL - 2IKEZ M
MIZIERPET - ZWETERT - 22025+ &2
KM HAER 1%L AN FIESILRIZE
4447 BT -HP DT ARMBREXNBEIKE
FmmisNERERS|IE PREERFERED
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

In terms of new car sales, according to the Executive Meeting of
the State Council of the PRC chaired by Premier Li Kegiang on
28 January 2023, with the purpose of promoting consumption to
boost the economy and in view of the prominent contradiction of
insufficient demand, it is necessary to lift enterprises in the life
service industry and individual businesses out of difficulties, and
facilitate the full implementation of bulk consumption policies such
as automobiles. Statistics released by the China Passenger Car
Association showed that the retail sales volume of the overall luxury
car market in 2022 was 3.09 million units, representing a year-on-
year increase of 6%. Among them, the traditional luxury car market
decreased by 4% vyear-on-year, while the new energy luxury car
market increased by 49% year-on-year, indicating that the overall
market was positive. However, the traditional luxury car market was
still under pressure, and the demand for new energy luxury car was
relatively strong.

A research report named “Five Trends Shaping Tomorrow’s
Luxury-car Market” from McKinsey stated that the geographical
composition of the luxury car market may change significantly
with the increasing momentum of non-traditional markets such
as China. The agency noted that the Asia-Pacific region will
experience the highest growth rate between 2021 and 2026, driven
by factors such as the increase in ultra-high-net-worth population
and high-net-worth population. China is the fastest growing region
in terms of ultra-high-net-worth population over the same period,
and therefore the agency predicts that China will become a key
part of the growth engine of the luxury car market, with over 50%
of the luxury car market growth to be contributed by non-traditional
markets such as China.

The Group believes that with the gradual elimination of the impact
of the pandemic, China’s macro economy will enter a stage of
steady recovery. The rebound of China’s consumption scale will
continue to show momentum and further continue the high-
quality development of the luxury goods market. The Group will
seize the opportunities arising in the industry and make every
effort to enhance its marketing capabilities and optimize its luxury
goods portfolio, so as to further promote the long-term and stable
development of the Group.

EHEHETE  AREBBANESLE =
TR AEIE 20231 A28 B £ BT ERKE
REKEH AFAEHEETRTENELT
B HEBEREERBECENERIN,A
RERBEEAREBBRE2E R B
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TFE4%  FeLRREBMISRLLIER490% 7]
BEBEMISHANT BEERZEEMHER
AR HERREENTRERART -

EEH—BEBAE (Five Trends Shaping
Tomorrow’s Luxury-car Market) (R5E & 3 =
EEMSEBENARAZR) MARBERT
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B SIS K AT e B S RE L o ix i
Bl AR ESFEAAMSFEADEM
FRZH ) 55 AR 5 HE2021F £20265F
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Auto Dealerships

During the financial year under review, revenue of the ultra-
luxury automobile distributorships of Bentley, Lamborghini
and Rolls-Royce recorded an approximately 8.0% decrease
to approximately HK$3,498 million, as compared with that of
approximately HK$3,800 million in the previous financial year.
Lamborghini recorded sales growth while Bentley and Rolls-Royce
both recorded sales decline. Lamborghini performed the best
with the largest sales increment, amounting to approximately
HK$408 million and representing an increase of approximately
10.6% in sales during this financial year from approximately
HK$369 million during the previous financial year. 111 units of
Lamborghini were sold, representing an increase of approximately
19.4% as compared with 93 units sold in the previous financial
year. Among all models of Lamborghini sold during this financial
year, Urus performed the best in terms of revenue and gross profit
contribution.

According to the official press release titled “Automobili
Lamborghini Continues to Glow: Upward Trend in Q1 2023” on
the Lamborghini website dated 8 May 2023, it was reported that
Lamborghini Motor Cars delivered 2,623 cars to worldwide in first
three months of 2023, which is 3.3% more than that in the same
period of 2022.

Bentley recorded a decrease of approximately 7.0% in sales to
approximately HK$1,587 million during this financial year, as
compared with that of approximately HK$1,706 million in the
previous financial year. 455 units of Bentley were sold, representing
an increase of 2.9% as compared with 442 units sold in the
previous financial year. Among all models of Bentley sold during
this financial year, Flying Spur performed the best in terms of
revenue and gross profit contributions.

£ 0]
HED

REBHBFE EF BHEER RSN
R SBTEREZWEH E—UBE
€ #93,800,000,0007% JT ik 4 498.0% = 49
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Rolls-Royce recorded a decrease of approximately 13.8% in
sales to approximately HK$1,409 million during this financial
year, as compared with that of approximately HK$1,634 million
in the previous financial year. 202 units of Rolls-Royce were sold,
representing a drop of 10.2% as compared with 225 units sold in
the previous financial year. Among all models of Rolls-Royce sold
during this financial year, Cullinan performed the best in terms of
revenue and gross profit contributions.

The overall gross profit of sale of automobiles decreased by
approximately 42% during this financial year due to the increase in
average cost of goods sold of all of our three auto brands and the
decrease in average selling price of Bentley and Lamborghini during
the financial year under review.

Revenue of after-sales services recorded an increase of
approximately 2.6% during this financial year as compared with
that of the previous financial year. The gross profit margin increased
from approximately 33.4% in the previous financial year to
approximately 50.8% in this financial year.

Non-auto Dealerships

During the financial year under review, the sales of our non-
auto dealerships division recorded a decrease in revenue of
approximately 3.5% to approximately HK$422.0 million as
compared with that of approximately HK$437.5 million in the
previous financial year.

Gross profit margin of our non-auto dealerships division decreased
during this financial year from approximately 30.3% in the previous
financial year to approximately 24.1% in this financial year. The
decrease was mainly driven by an increase in write-down on
inventories, which include watch, jewellery, fine wine and audio
equipment, of approximately HK$28.0 million during the financial
year under review.

ARG E - BT 2 S5 E R L — K
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Among all brands under this division (including watch, jewellery, fine
wine, audio equipment, menswear apparel and accessories, cigars
and smoker’s accessories and silver, home articles and health care
products), Bang & Olufsen performed the best in terms of revenue
and gross profit contributions during the financial year under
review.

In order to further develop the non-auto dealership division, the
Group has co-operated with Sichuan Liquor Group, a leading liquor
manufacturer and retailer in China, to develop a new series of liquor
named “BEZ=1979” under our owned branded liquor during this
financial year.

Others

During the financial year under review, the revenue from our others
division, which includes the provision of property management
services and money lending business, recorded a decrease
of approximate 10.2% to approximately HK$78.0 million, as
compared with that of approximately HK$86.8 million in the
previous financial year. The decrease was mainly due to decrease
of revenue in the property management business.

Regarding the films and television program investment business,
no revenue was generated during this financial year. A film
producer of one of our invested films failed to repay the investment
principal and relevant return in accordance with the investment
agreement and the Group commenced legal actions against the
film producer to recover the investment principal and relevant
return. The releasing schedules of the rest film investments had
also been further postponed due to the previous implementation
of precautionary measures against the variants of COVID-19 in the
PRC.

Regarding the property management business, the revenue
recorded a decrease of approximately 6.3% to approximately
HK$76.1 million, as compared with that of approximately HK$81.2
million in the previous financial year. The decrease was due to
decrease in sub-lease income during this financial year. Moreover,
an impairment on certain sub-lease rental income receivables was
made as such have been overdue for more than a half year.

REEHBFE o (REF&H KE -
B SERE BRI SHREER
B RBERMARRBER) ETFHEME
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EEENWN DN

Management Discussion and Analysis

Regarding the money lending business, the revenue recorded an
accrued interest income of approximately HK$1.9 million during
this financial year (2022: approximately HK$5.7 million). There
were 2 loan agreements where the borrowers failed to repay the
outstanding principal amounts and the accrued interests on the
maturity dates respectively. The Group commenced legal actions
against the borrowers and the guarantors of the loans in the
High Court of Hong Kong with a view to recovering the loans and
other losses and damages. For the details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 April 2022.

After the commencement of the legal proceedings, the Group and
one of the borrowers (the “1st Borrower”) reached a settlement on
the matter and pursuant to a Tomlin Order filed by the parties with
the High Court of Hong Kong dated 8 August 2022, the parties
agreed to stay the legal proceedings and a deed of settlement was
executed by the lender, the 1st Borrower and the guarantor on 8
August 2022. For the details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 1 and 29 April 2022, 8, 18 and 24 August
2022 and 1 September 2022.

The Group received partial payment in instalments in the aggregate
sum of HK$24,320,000 during the year, yet the 1st Borrower
failed to repay the outstanding instalments, save for the aforesaid
payment, and the accrued interests. The Group has resumed the
legal actions against the 1st Borrower and the guarantor in the
High Court of Hong Kong with a view to recovering the loans and
other losses and damages.

As regards the other borrower (the “2nd Borrower”), the Group
obtained judgments against the 2nd Borrower and his guarantor.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 20 February 2023. The Group is in the course of enforcing
the judgments against them for the recovery of the loan and other
losses and damages.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Equity Investment

As a long-term investment for capital appreciation and distribution,
the Group held shares in Bang & Olufsen A/S (“B&0”), a company
incorporated in Denmark whose shares are listed and traded on
NASDAQ Copenhagen A/S. Bang & Olufsen is a luxury audio brand
founded in 1925 in Struer, Denmark, by Peter Bang and Svend
Olufsen whose devotion and vision remain the foundation for the
company.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group held 14,059,347 shares (31 March
2022: 14,059,347 shares) of B&O, representing approximately
11.45% of its total issued shares. The carrying amount of this
investment represented approximately 3.9% of the total assets of
the Group as at 31 March 2023.

No dividend was generated from this investment to the Group
during this financial year.

The share price of B&0O dropped to Danish Krone (“DKK”) 9.72
per share as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: DKK19.35 per
share) as quoted on the NASDAQ Copenhagen A/S, representing
a decrease of approximately 49.8% during the financial year ended
31 March 2028.

RERE

A& BB Bang & Olufsen A/S ([B&0 |) 2
BHEARBAIRE UFEEREEBRIRES
ke BROA— MR EFMK L 2 A7) Hik
MRNITER T ANERBRNDER AT LMK
& - Bang & OlufsenB— A EZ LRI
fiPeter Bang® Svend Olufseni® — L= H 4
e FF 2 StruerBl 32 MAZAIHFA Z BB IR R
MRZARKINHES -

R-ZEBE-_=F=A=+—0 XAx&£EEFFH
14,059,847 (ZE = _F=A=+—8:
14,059,347/% ) B&ORR 7 (41 ABROEEPE
TN 211.45%)  RZE-_=F=f=+—
A WEEEZ FASHEMGAEEREEL
3.9% o

RAMBFEE  WWRREYEASANEEEL(E
A A g, o

RZZEZ=F=A=+—8 MfiE=T LR
B D BER AR FTHRBAOZ RE TR EFK
Q72N ERA(ZE_F=A=+—H:§
f%19.35 E 7B RBE_T_=F=A4
=t —BIEBEFE T#A49.8% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In December 2022,
representing approximately a 2.97% shareholding in New Amante

the Group acquired 1,780,000 shares,

Group Limited (Stock Code: 8412) (“New Amante”), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands whose shares are listed and
traded on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), for an amount of HK$979,000. In February
2023, the Group further acquired 890,000 shares in New Amante
through a rights issue, for a consideration of approximately
HK$374,000.

As New Amante intends to develop a high-ended cigar and alcohol
lounge and club in Hong Kong, and given the huge demand of
cigars globally coupled with an acute shortage of production
of high quality cigar production driven by Cuba, the Directors
considered that this is a good opportunity to the Group for capital
appreciation.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group held 2,670,000 shares (31 March
2022: nil) of New Amante,
its total issued shares. The carrying amount of this investment

representing approximately 2.97% of

represented approximately 0.03% of the total assets of the Group
as at 31 March 2023.

No dividend was generated from this investment to the Group
during this financial year.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) of approximately HK$158
million as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: approximately
HK$320 million) represented the Group’s strategic investment on
B&0O and New Amante. The decrease in carrying amount of the
Group’s financial assets at FVTOCI during this financial year under
review was mainly due to fair value change on the market price of
the shares of B&O.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023
was approximately HK$3,997.7 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 7.6% as compared with that of approximately
HK$4,324.5 million recorded in the previous year. Such decrease
was mainly due to the change in the exchange rate on translation
from most of the the functional currency (RMB) into a presentation
currency (HK$) incurred during the financial year under review and
the decrease in sales of automobiles arising from the adoption
of a series of lockdown measures against the 2019 coronavirus
epidemic in the mainland China, causing logistics restrictions
and reduced foot traffic during the first three quarters of the year
ended 31 March 2023 (the “FY2023”), even though there was a
recovery in term of sales of automobiles in the fourth quarter of
FY2023. Sales of automobiles were approximately HK$3,404 million
(equivalent to RMB2,962 million) in FY2023 while approximately
HK$3,709 million (equivalent to RMB3,042 million) were recorded
in last financial year (the “FY2022”). The table below sets out the
Group'’s revenue for the year indicated:

Bt %5 B B
e

REBEZE-_ZE-_=F=ZA=+—BHLFE K
£ 8 2 Y25 %) 53,997,700,000/8 Tt * B & &
#94,324,500,0007% 7T L #17.6% * £ E R H
REBTERFEABRBLIMEEE (AR
BIMEREINEE (BT 2EXRZH U
FEEHEZS - =F-A=+—AHLFE
((Z2Z=HREE])ENFTEAEHESR
FT 1Bl - {8 A B K B BRER — R 71 3 85 15 B R
H2019OBMMEEE B - _=0HF
EE=ZEMRRHIERERERD BER
BHEMB-R_S_—HREE  TEH
&= 549 53,404,000,0008 7T (FHER AR
2,962,000,0007T) " E—HMBFEE([=ZF
T BMBEE]) BI$R15493,709,000,000/% 7T
(FBZH R A R#3,042,000,0007T) ° TR 5
REBRATFEE 2 Wz

FY2023 FY2022 Changes
“ECCHBEE “ECCUHEE 28
Contribution Contribution
Revenue Source &3 3 HK$’000 (%) HK$'000 (%) HK$'000 %
FTHET B (%) FAETL B R (%) FEL %
Automobile segment RESS
Sales of automobiles REHE 3,404,431 85.2% 3,709,351 85.8% (304,920) (8.2%)
Provision of after-sales services REEERS 93,183 2.3% 90,843 2.1% 2,340 2.6%
Sub-total g 3,497,614 87.5% 3,800,194 87.9% (302,580) (8.0%)
Non-automobile dealership segment FERERHEDE 422,022 10.5% 437,458 10.1% (15,436) (3.5%)
Others ity 78,020 2% 86,835 2% (8,815) (10.2%)
Total ot 3,097,656 100% 4,324,487 100% (326,831) (7.6%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023
decreased by approximately 32.5% to approximately HK$578.1
million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$856.4 million) while the
gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023
decreased from 19.8% to 14.5%.

The decrease in gross profit was mainly attributable to decrease
in gross profit margin of the sales of automobiles caused by the
weak market sentiment and keen competition incurred during
the financial year under review. The gross profit of the sales of
automobiles decreased by approximately HK$255.7 million during
the financial year under review.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Other income, gains and losses was approximately HK$30.6
million losses for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$131.6 million losses). Such change was mainly
due to much less impairment of goodwill and absence of written
off of other intangible assets in FY2022, which were in relation to
property management business. The impairment of goodwill was
due to the remaining lease term of the sub-lease project of the
cash generating unit of the property management services lapses
over time, resulting less future cash flow with decreasing remaining
lease term under income approach.

Impairment of Loan Receivables and Loan Interest
Receivables

The charge for impairment losses on loan receivables and loan
interest receivables of approximately HK$12.7 million, of which
approximately HK$10.2 million is for the loan receivables and
approximately HK$2.5 million is for the loan interest receivables
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: approximately
HK$56.4 million, of which approximately HK$55.5 million is for the
loan receivables and approximately HK$0.9 million is for the loan
interest receivables).

EMRERNR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The charge for impairment losses was measured based on the
requirement under HKFRS 9 and was mainly represented a further
impairment made to the loan receivables and the loan interest
receivables as a result of the borrowers’ default of the loan
agreements on which legal proceedings have been instituted by the
Group.

The management of the Group performed an impairment
analysis with reference to the expected credit loss (“ECL”)
assessment performed by Masterpiece Valuation Advisory Limited
(“Masterpiece”), an independent and professionally qualified
valuer by using probability-weighted loss default model, which is in
accordance with the general approach as stated in HKFRS 9. There
was no change on the approach adopted for the years ended
31 March 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of loan receivables
was nil (81 March 2022: HK$34.5 million) net of HK$65.6 million
accumulated impairment (31 March 2022: HK$55.5 million). During
the financial year under review, an impairment loss of approximately
HK10.2 million have been recognised for the year ended 31
March 2023 (31 March 2022: HK$55.5 million). The calculation
of the impairment losses was based on the exposure of default
multiplied by probability of default (“PD”) and multiplied the loss
given default (‘LGD”). According to Masterpiece, PD was reference
with published credit rating and 100% LGD was applied to the
expected credit loss calculation of both of the borrowers as they
failed to repay their loans during the year under review. Other than
that, there was no significant change to the basis, assumptions
and inputs adopted in the ECL assessment for the year ended 31
March 2023 as compared with the year ended 31 March 2022.

Impairment of trade receivables

The charge for impairment losses on trade receivables of
approximately HK$5.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2023
(31 March 2022: nil).

BEEEX IR E BB R E ERFNR
ZHREFE TRRAERAERERBE
AEEC U FRAEER 8 E TRKE
R W E A S 2 E—FRE-

AEBETEEEL2RBUYEES ERMLEM
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M—BT R -BE S =R T _F=
A=1T—RLEEMRMN AL B E -

R-ZEBE-_=F#=A=+—80 EKEZZ
FH2BAZT(ZE-_F=A=+—
H : 34,500,000 t) (EMK R R E
65,600,000t (ZE-—F=fA=+—H:
55,500,000/ 7T) ) - REBEHFBFE - S5t E
BT =F=-RA=+—HULIFEBRRARES
$#910,200,000 0 (— T - F=ZA=+—
H : 55,500,000/ 7T) < BEEEB 28 A A
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BEFERK B#E-_T-_=F=A=1+—A1
HFEBHREEEBETEMEACEE R
FREABERESE KN -

B\ E 5 FIRRE
REBE-_ZT_=F=A=+—HIFE EK

B 5 E 2 RERE X 1 455,900,000 7T
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The charge for impairment losses represented an impairment made
to certain sub-lease rental income receivables as such have been
overdue for more than a half year, of which legal proceedings have
been instituted by the Group.

There was no significant change to the basis, assumptions and
inputs adopted in the ECL assessment for the year ended 31
March 2023 as compared with the year ended 31 March 2022.

The calculation of the impairment losses was based on the
exposure of default multiplied by PD and multiplied the LGD.

The impairment amount was calculated with reference to the
expected credit loss assessment performed by an independent
qualified valuer, by considering the probability of default with
published credit ratings.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs decreased by approximately
19.1% from approximately HK$504.5 million to approximately
HK$408.3 million. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
marketing and promotion expenses.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately 3.2% from
approximately HK$81.7 million to approximately HK$84.3 million.
The changes were mainly due to recognition of one-off equity-
settled share option expenses for staff in August 2022 with a total
amount of approximately HK$9.9 million, such expenses were non-
cash nature, but partly offset by the decrease in amortisation of
other intangible assets in this financial year.

MEBAX HIE RN E T RR SRR WA
ERMEEE T AEEEHRAREF &
AR

REE-F-—F=A=+—RILFELE
BE-T-=f=A=+—ALFEIEH
(EEATBT (EFTIRA 2 B8 - R R A B
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B E B 2 5t B 5 AR E QM D R AE AR
RREHNBKR
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P4 KR IE K 7R B 49504,500,0005% 7T 4 49
19.1% % £J408,300,0008 7t ' £ BRI & #4
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THREH

77 & F | #981,700,0005%8 7T _+ F+ #93.2% =
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 32.5%
from approximately HK$72.6 million in the previous financial year to
approximately HK$96.3 million in this financial year. The increase
was due to the increase in borrowing to finance the purchase
of automobiles inventories during this financial year and the
acquisition of the property used by the Group as showrooms and
office in the second half of last financial year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2023 were approximately
HK$3,985.9 million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$4,727.7
million) which were mainly financed by the total equity and the total
liabilities of approximately HK$2,227.9 million (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$2,725.3 million) and approximately HK$1,758.0
million (831 March 2022: approximately HK$2,002.4 million)
respectively.

Cash Flow

The Group’s cash at banks and in hand as of 31 March 2023 were
approximately HK$146.7 million (31 March 2022: approximately
HK$151.5 million) which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group’s primary uses of cash are to repay the Group’s
borrowings, to pay for purchases of inventories and to fund the
Group’s working capital and normal operating costs. The change in
value of the Group’s cash at banks and in hand was mainly due to
the differences in exchange translation incurred during the financial
year under review.

The Directors consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its existing operations and financial resources for
financing future business expansion and capital expenditures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 March
2023 were approximately HK$1,208.5 million (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$1,389.5 million). During the year, the Group
acquired items of property, plant and equipment at a total cost
of approximately HK$63.3 million (31 March 2022: approximately
HK$499.2 million), and a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$10.8 million of property, plant and equipment were disposed
of during this financial year (the net carrying amount for the year
ended 31 March 2022: approximately HK$10.0 million). For more
details, please refer to the note 16 to the financial statements on
pages 223 to 224 of this Annual Report.

Investment properties

The Group’s investment properties as at 31 March 2023 were
approximately HK$393.9 million (31 March 2022: approximately
HK$437.4 million). The change in value of investment properties
was mainly due to one of the owner-occupied property changed as
investment property, the decrease in fair value and the differences
in exchange translation incurred during the financial year under
review. For more details, please refer to the note 18 to the financial
statements on pages 229 to 231 and the particulars of investment
properties on page 299 of this Annual Report.

Goodwill

The Group’s goodwill as at 31 March 2023 was approximately
HK$302.3 million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$333.2
million). The decrease in goodwill was mainly due to the differences
in exchange translation and the impairment of goodwill on property
management business incurred during this financial year. For more
details, please refer to the note 19 to the financial statements on
pages 232 to 236 of this Annual Report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loan Receivables

The Group’s loan receivables as at 31 March 2023 were nil
(81 March 2022: HK$34.4 million). The decrease in value was
attributable to the repayment from one of the borrowers and
impairment arising from the loans default during this financial year.

Borrowings

The Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2023 were approximately
HK$996.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately 6.4%
from approximately HK$1,064.7 million as at 31 March 2022.

The Group’s borrowings were mainly denominated in RMB. The
decrease was mainly due to repayment of the borrowings during
this financial year.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio computed as total borrowings and
convertible bonds over total equity increased to approximately
45.2% as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: approximately
39.4%).

Inventories

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s inventories decreased by
approximately 9.7% from approximately HK$1,361.2 million as
at 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$1,229.8 million. Such
decrease was primarily due to the decrease in automobile
inventories which comprised approximately 55.7% of the
inventories of the Group. The Group’s average inventory turnover
days increased from 109 days in the year ended 31 March 2022 to
139 days in the year ended 31 March 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The revenue and expenses of the Group are mainly denominated
in RMB and HK$ while the production cost,
investments of the Group are denominated in RMB, HK$, DKK and
United States Dollar.

purchases and

The Group did not enter into any foreign currency forward contract
for this financial year. As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group
did not have any unrealised gain or loss in respect of the foreign
currency forward contracts.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

The Board considered that the Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: nil). The Board
considered that the Group had no material capital commitment as
at 31 March 2023 in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (31 March 2022: nil).

Charges on Assets

As at 31 March 2023,
pledged deposits and inventories of the Group with aggregate

land and building, investment property,

carrying amounts of approximately HK$942.1 million (31 March
2022: approximately HK$683.4 million),
million (31 March 2022: nil), approximately HK$75.2 million (31
March 2022: approximately HK$84.1 million) and approximately
HK$610.3 million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$635.1 million)
respectively were pledged to secure general banking facilities and

approximately HK$42.0

other facilities granted to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 456 (31 March 2022: 453)
employees. Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments and the
one-off equity-settled share option expenses) charged to profit or
loss amounted to approximately HK$84.2 million for this financial
year (2022: approximately HK$70.2 million).

The Group provided benefits, which included basic salary,
commission, discretionary bonus, medical insurance, retirement
funds and equity-settled share-based payments to employees
to sustain competitiveness of the Group. The package was
reviewed on an annual basis based on the Group’s performance
and employees’ performance appraisal. The Group also provided
training to the employees for their future advancement.

Significant Acquisition

On 10 January 2023, an equity transfer agreement was entered
into between t R A4 T B R A A (Beijing Guangzhong
Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd.*), an independent third party,
being the vendor (the “Vendor’) and W B R XX L BB R A 7
(BO Online Culture Technology Limited*), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, being the purchaser (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to acquire and the Vendor
agreed to sell 26.1% of the entire equity interest in the 1t R 4@ #
K B ZE B R QA (Beijing Wenfu Xin Tian Di Real Estate Co., Ltd.*)
(formerly known as XKEXEHRMEFEBR A A (Tianjin Wenfu
Xin Tian Di Real Estate Co., Ltd.")) (the “Target Company”) at a
consideration of RMB81.56 million. Beijing Wenfu Xin Tian Di Real
Estate Co., Ltd. is an investment holding company and its principal
assets are the properties located at # B4t = #3F5 & = 8 — #4058
EEMERESBRE-1, 1, 2, 3%7E (Basement Level 1, Levels 1, 2,
3 and 7 of Tower B, International Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Cun,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC*).

ANER

R-ZZEZ=F=A=+—H AEELHF456
H(ZE-—F=ZA=1+—H:453%)EE -
RO BFEREBERERINIGRZEINA (B1E
EEMe Rk —RAMAEREE 2 IRGHOBA®
F ) 49 584,200,0008 T (ZE = —F: 4
70,200,000/ 70 ) °

AEERERRHEATE AE BT
AL BEERR RARESRARSEEARD
RERZNRERHN NGHAREZHF
N AEBEEFRARALRE 2 RAN R
ARG -AKENEREE CARERE

LR

EXWE
RIB-=F—HA+H tRAPEHTIEAR

RAR (BYE=H EH) ([EHF])EN
BEGERFEER AR (KRR ZEEE2E
MEBAR -BIER) ([EFEIZ—mHk#E
EEpE B BEAREREMESRZED
BREHRMEXEBRA A (BIFHEREX
B RWEZEERAR) ([BEAT])EE
It 226.1% - K& & A K %81,560,0007T °
IR EHIRMEXERAAAREZERA
A HEFEEERMNPRILAWHSGEER
ZHA0E R R ERESBE-1 12 3K7
B2

24 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #8KEIMEBER L 7

ANNUAL REPORT 20234F ¥



EEENWN DN

Management Discussion and Analysis

Upon completion, the equity interest in the Target Company held by
the Purchaser increased from 70.4% to 96.5%. The financial results
of the Target Company continues to be consolidated as a non-
wholly owned subsidiary in the accounts of the Group.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 January 2023. The acquisition was completed on 18
January 2023.

The Borrowers’ Default of Loan Agreements

The loan agreement in respect of a facility of HK$58.0 million

On 4 March 2021, Forwell Finance Limited (the “Lender”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a loan agreement (the “1st Loan Agreement’) with a borrower
which is an independent third party (the “1st Borrower”), pursuant
to which the Lender agreed to grant to the 1st Borrower a loan with
principal amount of HK$58.0 million (the “1st Loan”) for a term of
12 months, bearing interest at a rate of 6.5% per annum.

Pursuant to the 1st Loan Agreement, the 1st Borrower had been
paying the quarterly interests on the 1st Loan to the Lender on
time during the term of the 1st Loan Agreement. However, the 1st
Borrower failed to repay the 1st Loan with outstanding principal
amount of HK$58.0 million and the accrued interest on the maturity
date (4 March 2022).

The Group sought legal advice and commenced legal action
against the 1st Borrower and the guarantor of the 1st Loan in
the High Court of Hong Kong on 20 April 2022 with a view to
recovering the 1st Loan and other losses and damages.

After the commencement of the legal proceedings, the parties
reached a settlement on the matter and pursuant to a Tomlin Order
filed by the parties with the High Court of Hong Kong dated 8
August 2022, the parties agreed to stay the legal proceedings and
a deed of settlement was executed by the Lender, the 1st Borrower
and the guarantor on 8 August 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group received partial payment in instalments in the aggregate
sum of HK$24,320,000 during the year, yet the 1st Borrower
failed to repay the outstanding instalments, save for the aforesaid
payment, and the accrued interests. The Group has resumed the
legal actions against the 1st Borrower and the guarantor in the
High Court of Hong Kong with a view to recovering the loans and
other losses and damages.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 4 March 2021, 1 and 29 April 2022, 8, 18 and 24 August
2022 and 1 September 2022.

The loan agreement in respect of a facility of HK$32.0 million

On 22 March 2021, the Lender entered into a loan agreement
(the “2nd Loan Agreement’) with another borrower who is an
independent third party (the “2nd Borrower”), pursuant to which
the Lender agreed to grant to the 2nd Borrower loan with principal
amount of HK$32.0 million (the “2nd Loan”) for a term of 12
months, bearing interest at a rate of 7% per annum.

Pursuant to the 2nd Loan Agreement, the 2nd Borrower had been
paying the quarterly interests on the 2nd Loan to the Lender on
time during the term of the 2nd Loan Agreement. However, the 2nd
Borrower failed to repay the 2nd Loan with outstanding principal
amount of HK$32.0 million and the accrued interest on the maturity
date (22 March 2022).

As a result of the 2nd Borrower’s default, the Group sought legal
advice and commenced legal action against the 2nd Borrower and
the guarantor of the 2nd Loan in the High Court of Hong Kong on
29 April 2022 with a view to recovering the 2nd Loan and other
losses and damages.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Lender has on 6 December 2022 obtained a sealed judgment
against the 2nd Borrower for the claims of the 2nd Loan and
interest accrued thereon. The Lender has further on 17 February
2023 obtained a sealed judgment against the guarantor for the
claims of the 2nd Loan and interest accrued thereon. The Group is
in the course of enforcing the judgements against the 2nd Borrower
and the guarantor for the recovery of the 2nd Loan and other
losses and damages.

The legal proceedings are ongoing and the Company will make
further announcement on the status of any material development of
this event as and when appropriate.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 March 2021, 29 April 2022, 8 December 2022 and 20
February 2023.

Proposed placing of new shares under general mandate and
its termination

On 9 September 2022 (after the trading hours), the Company
entered into a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”)
with a placing agent (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to which
the Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to place, on a best
effort basis, up to 538,000,000 new shares of the Company (the
“Placing Shares”) to Placee(s) at a placing price of HK$0.093 per
Placing Share (the “Placing”).

It was expected that the gross proceeds and net proceeds (after
deducting placing commission for the Placing and other relevant
expenses) from the Placing would be approximately HK$50
million and approximately HK$49.1 million, respectively, and the
Company intended to apply (i) approximately HK$10 million of the
net proceeds for repayment of the existing loans granted to the
Group; (i) approximately HK$25 million of the net proceeds for our
Group’s non-auto dealership business in Hong Kong for cigars and
smoker’s accessories and audio equipment; and (i) the remaining
proceeds for our Group’s general working capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although all the conditions of the Placing as set out in the Placing
Agreement were fulfilled on 26 September 2022, a majority placee
(which would become a substantial shareholder (within the meaning
as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company if the Placing was
to proceed) would like to have further time to seek legal advice
on the disclosure of its background information and to consider
completing the settlement procedures under the Placing. After
allowing a couple of days, the Company and the Placing Agent
considered that given the uncertainty on the timing for obtaining
such information of the placee and on the completion of the
Placing, the Company and the Placing Agent mutually agreed to
terminate the Placing on 19 October 2022 (after trading hours).

The Board considers that the termination of the Placing Agreement
and the Placing has no material adverse impact on the financial
position and operations of the Group.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 9
September 2022, 19 October 2022 and 26 October 2022 for
further details.

SHARE CONSOLIDATION AND CHANGE OF
BOARD LOT SIZE

On 23 November 2022, the Company announced that the Board
proposed to implement: (a) a share consolidation on the basis
that every sixteen (16) issued and unissued existing shares of
HK$0.002 each in the share capital of the Company would be
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of HK$0.032 each;
and (b) the change of board lot size from 8,000 pre-consolidated
Shares to 2,000 Consolidated Shares upon the share consolidation
becoming effective. The Share Consolidation was approved by the
Shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 6 January 2023, and became effective on 10 January 2023.
Details of the above were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 23 November 2022 and 6 January 2023 and the
circular of the Company dated 9 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RECENT DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECT

With the lifting of China’s epidemic control measures, although
economic activities gradually returned to normal since early 2023
and the Group’s automobile sales also recovered simultaneously,
the Group will still face certain degree of challenges in automobile
business due to the considerable uncertainties in the global
economic outlook and the industrial supply chain and China’s
economic recovery speed is not progressed as expected. It is
expected that automobile sales level can be maintained, but there
will be downward pressure on profitability.

Regarding the Group’s non-auto dealerships segment, a modest
decline in sales of B&O products is expected given that market
consumption intention is relatively weak as the economy has still
not been fully recovered. For the watches, jewellery and fine wines
business, we will continue to seek opportunities to further reduce
inventories. For the liquor business, the Group remains cautiously
optimistic about its own liquor brand “ElfE e 12 EZEE” while the
house decoration items business is still at growth stage.

Regarding other business segments, the property management
business is still challenging in the coming year as the real estate
market in China is still in recovery. As far as lending business is
concerned, the Group has no expansion plans for the next financial
year and has given special consideration to the ongoing legal
proceedings as described in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this annual report. For the film business, the
Group expects that the invested films will be released gradually,
and there are no new investment plans for this segment at present.

In conclusion, despite the current challenges, we will continue to
operate our business segments prudently in the coming financial
year.
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Report of the Directors

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in dealerships of luxury goods and
automobiles, provision of after-sales services, property
management services, property rental services, film related
business including development and investment in films and
television program and money lending business. The Group’s
operations are mainly based in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, including the Group’s
segmental analysis, the important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of 31 March 2023 and the likely
future developments, is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
Annual Report.

Details about the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
is facing, are set out in the section headed “Risk Management and
Internal Controls” of the Corporate Governance Report contained in
this Annual Report.

Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set out in
note 41 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: nil) whilst no
interim dividend (2022: nil) had been distributed during the year
as the Group would like to reserve more capital to operate and
develop the existing businesses.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s previous share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees.
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Report of the Directors

On 19 August 2022, share options of an aggregate of 290,000,000
ordinary shares (equivalent to 18,125,000 shares after
consolidation) of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company
were granted to employees of the Group under the Old Scheme.
On 10 January 20283, the share consolidation became effective, the
exercise price of the share options and the number of Shares to be
allotted and issued upon the exercise of the share options granted
under the Old Scheme were adjusted. Following the adjustment,
the number of Shares issuable on exercise of the outstanding
options under the Old Scheme became 18,125,000 shares as at 31
March 2023. No share options were exercised for the year ended
31 March 2023.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 27 September 2022, the
Company’s new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was
adopted on 29 September 2022 and the Old Scheme was expired
on 19 August 2022. The New Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of ten years commencing on 29 September 2022.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27
September 2022, the General Scheme Limit was refreshed to allow
the Company to grant options to subscribe for up to the maximum
of 547,195,344 pre-consolidation shares (equivalent to 34,199,709
shares after consolidation), representing 10% of the issued shares
capital as at the date of approval of the adoption of the New
Scheme initially. No share options were granted by the Company
since then, and the number of share options available for grant
remains at 547,195,344 pre-consolidation shares (equivalent to
34,199,709 shares after consolidation). On 10 January 2023, when
the share consolidation became effective, the number of shares
options available for grant was adjusted to 34,199,709 shares
(including options for nil share that have been granted but not yet
lapsed or exercised).
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Report of the Directors

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 June
2020, the Scheme Mandate Limit was refreshed to allow the
Company to grant options to subscribe for up to the maximum of
271,823,697 pre-consolidation shares (equivalent to 54,364,739
shares after consolidation), representing 10% of the Shares in
issue on the date of approval of the refreshment. No Options were
granted by the Company since then, and the number of Options
available for grant remains at 54,364,739 shares (as adjusted after
the five-to-one share consolidation).

The Company operates the New Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s business. The Directors
may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible employees and non-
employee persons, including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, suppliers, customers, persons who provide research,
development or other technological support, shareholders, advisers
or consultants of the Group or invested entities, and any participant
who contributes to the development of the Group.

There was no outstanding share to be issued under the New
Scheme as at 31 March 20283.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for 54.9% and 97.9% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively. The largest and the top
five customers of the Group accounted for less than 10% of the
Group’s total revenue.

At no time during the year under review did a Director, an associate
of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest suppliers or customers for this financial year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 147 and 148 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of this financial year.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during this financial year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 154 and 155 and note 35
to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution, out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

In the opinion of the Directors, the distributable reserve accounts
comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately

HK$95,815,000 in deficit (2022: HK$125,992,000 in surplus).

SHARE CAPITAL
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Details of the movements during this financial year in the share ZARQABRARKTHEENZ EBFHIGFEH R
capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the financial Bf KR MT T34 »
statements.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Convertible bonds of the Company with principal amount of
HK$10,000,000, HK$55,000,000 and HK$35,000,000 were issued
on 9 February, 23 February and 9 March 2021 respectively for cash
which were convertible into shares of the Company at a price of
HK$0.25 per share (subject to adjustment) and should be matured
on the third anniversary of the date of issue of such convertible
bonds. Convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$90,000,000 were converted into 360,000,000 ordinary shares
in the previous financial year. As a result of the completion of
the sixteen-to-one share consolidation on 10 January 2023, the
conversion shares were adjusted to 2,500,000 ordinary shares. As
at 31 March 2023, the convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 remains unconverted and should be matured on 8
February 2024.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2023 are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 300 of this Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during this financial year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during this financial year and up to
the date of this Annual Report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang

Mr. Zhao Xiaodong

Mr. Zhu Lei

Mr. Ma Chao (retired with effect from 16 June 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Gao Yu

Mr. Liu Honggiang

Mr. Liu Xiaoyi

In accordance with bye-law no. 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of Company after his appointment and be subject to
reelection at such meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each Independent Non-executive Director is
for the period of two years and renewable for one year up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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In accordance with code provision B.2.3 of Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), serving more than 9 years could be relevant
to the determination of a Non-executive Director’s independence. If
an Independent Non-executive Director serves more than 9 years,
his further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. The papers to shareholders
accompanying that resolution should state why the board (or the
nomination committee) believes he is still independent and should
be re-elected including the factors considered, the process and the
discussion of the board (or the nomination committee) in arriving at
such determination.

In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang, Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong and Mr. Liu Xiaoyi
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

In addition, as Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong has served the Company for
more than nine years, his appointment will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 72 to 81 of this Annual Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors (except Mr. Liu Honggiang who was ill since
late June 2023),
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company

an annual confirmation of his independence

considers that all Independent Non-executive Directors with annual
confirmation are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Except as disclosed in note 38 to and elsewhere in the financial
statements, there are no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of this
financial year or at any time during this financial year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company disclosed
that no Directors of the Company is considered to have interests
in any business which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during this financial year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-law no. 168(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
the Directors, secretary or other officers of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all losses or damages which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office,
or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and/or the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required
to be (i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFQ); or (ii) as recorded in the register required
to be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO; or (iii) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

REQFRG HEARODREZZHFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of director Capacity shares held interest
EEpS g7 BEROHE EZHSYEIHL
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(H5E1) (Hf5E3)
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Interest of controlled 665,000 0.19%
B SAST S HE corporation (Note 2)
THEEE S (EE2)
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo Beneficial owner 62,500 0.02%
ERELE BEnEAA
Mr. Liu Honggiang Beneficial owner 18,500 0.01%
BB kst EmEAA
Notes: Bt 5 -

(1) The number of shares held has been adjusted for the sixteen-to-one
share consolidation of the Company which became effective on 10
January 2023.

(2)  These 665,000 Shares were held by Keyking Mission Group Co., Ltd,
a company is wholly owned by Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang. Accordingly, Mr.
Zheng Hao Jiang was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

(3)  The denominator used is 341,997,090 shares, being the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2023.

SHARE OPTIONS

The New Scheme was adopted on 29 September 2022 pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed at the general meeting of the
Company held on 27 September 2022.
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(2)  #%665,0000% % 17 #H Keyking Mission Group
Co., Ltd# & » mKeyking Mission Group
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@) FiEBH & 5341,997,000 R 5 IR ==
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company:

FERRREAQT KRG RAEE
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2 HERAEm MR R

Long position or short position in the shares RBROZHFRRIAXR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares Interest

BERESE LB 56 i3 & B EEHYEs

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(Pf5ET) (Ff5E2)

Mr. Sze Ching Lau Beneficial owner 49,825,000 (L) 14.57%
i N=piiie EmEA A

Mr. Lam Chi Kin Beneficial owner 22,170,000 (L) 6.48%
MERLEE EmEA A

Ms. Tam Cho Wai Josephine Beneficial owner 21,250,000 (L) 6.21%
BEBEL L E&mEEA

Mr. Ho Chin Nang Interest of controlled 21,135,000 (L) 6.18%

AR gL & corporation (Note 3)
THEE RS (MEE3)
Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position”in such Shares and
the letter “S” denotes a person’s “short position” in such Shares. The
number of shares held has been adjusted for the sixteen-to-one share
consolidation of the Company which became effective on 10 January
2023.

(2) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
341,997,090 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2023.

(8) These 21,135,000 Shares were held by Amante Group Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Ho Chin Nang. Accordingly, Mr. Ho
Chin Nang was deemed to be interested in these Shares
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Limited#% & » M Amante Group Limited 8| i
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BERZERNDPEB#ER -

40 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #8KEIMEBER L 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4F ¥



EEEWRE
Report of the Directors

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
(including any interests in options in respect of such capital), which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during this financial year was the Company,
fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee of the Company on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.
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The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorization of the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting each year. The
emoluments of the executive Directors are subject to review by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, and their remuneration
is determined with reference to the Directors’ qualifications,
experience, duties, responsibilities, performance, results of the
Group and comparable market information.

The Company has adopted the New Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible participants.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There was no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions undertaken by the Company during the year ended
31 March 2023 which was required to be disclosed pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 March 2023.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 was
audited by BDO Limited (“BDO”). There has been no change
of auditor in any of the preceding 3 years. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Group recognises the importance of environmental protection
and has adopted relevant measures for environmental protection
in order to ensure the compliance by the Group of the prevailing
environmental protection laws and regulations. Details of the
environmental policies and performance of the Group are set out in
the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
on pages 82 to 139 in this Annual Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and the operations of the Group are mainly carried
out by its subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. The
operations of the Group should comply with relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, the Group has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the Mainland China.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the opinion that the Company had adopted, applied
and complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2023 except
for the deviation from provision C.2.1 of the Code since 1 January
2018.

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 45 to 71
in this Annual Report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held at 4:30 p.m. on 5 September 2023 at 26/F,
China Huarong Tower, 60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
and a notice of annual general meeting will be published and
despatched in due course.
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CHANGE OF PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

With effect from 29 May 2023, the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong has been changed to 23/F, China
Huarong Tower, 60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. All
telephone and facsimile numbers of the Company will remain
unchanged.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 31
August 2023 (Thursday) to 5 September 2023 (Tuesday) (both days
inclusive) during which period, no transfer of the shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 30 August 2023 (Wednesday).

On behalf of the Board

Zheng Hao Jiang
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 June 2023
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company was principally engaged in dealerships of luxury
goods in the PRC. The Company assembles world-class brands
and to strive to be one of the top-tier dealers of luxury brands in
the PRC, and to create and enhance value to the stakeholders
through sustainable growth and stable development. In order
to achieve its long-term objectives and carry out a sustainable
business model, the Group cultivates the corporate culture with
cooperation, respect and ethics. With the Group’s mission and
corporate culture, the Board leads all levels of the Group to act
in legal, ethical and responsible manner to protect the rights and
interests of the stakeholders.

A series of guidelines and policies, including staff retention
and training, dividend, inside information, climate change,
whistleblowing, anti-corruption, shareholders communication

policies etc. and compliance with laws, rules and regulations have

i EX R R

ARBEERFTBEREEZRDOBEER AR
AEFREARAEME RIRESFHEARE
ZmEDHEEZY WEBAHELRENE
FERRFOEREMBETEE RETL
—REBBIYATAKEAXHENL A& H
—ERERUHEE EHEEHEATERZ
EEXC-HRBRAEEZRENEEX &
EeMEELTER [TTEETER ERER
BT mIER WRERDE 2B ks

B BRI RO R 20— & 5|5
EBER BEETHRELFI KE AEH
BoRIREE B REF REBBBE
F-URETER RAUFER AU - E=F

comprehensively reflected our corporate culture. Therefore, the EH{EAEBZ BN BEKLFIKEANEB
Board believes that the Group’s purpose, value and strategies are < XAt —%°
aligned with the Group’s culture.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. The Board agrees that corporate
governance practices are increasingly important for maintaining and
promoting investor confidence. Corporate governance requirements
keep changing, therefore the Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure that all practices
can be met with legal and statutory requirements. Throughout
the year ended 31 March 2023,
principles and code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code

the Group has adopted the

(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
Company has been in compliance with the Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2023 except for the deviation from provision
C.2.1 of the Code since 1 January 2018.

According to provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang is
the chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2018 and the Co-Chairman
of the Board (the “Co-Chairman”) with effect from 8 July 2020,
responsible for overall strategic development, project management
and client management of the Group. Mr. Ma Chao, an executive
Director, was appointed as a Co-Chairman with effect from 8
July 2020. Mr. Ma Chao has retired as an executive Director and
ceased to be a Co-Chairman of the Board with effect from 16 June
20283 upon expiration of his service contract with the Company.
Immediately following Mr. Ma’s cessation as a Co-Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang becomes the sole chairman of
the Board. The Board believes that vesting of the roles of both
Chairman and chief executive officer in the same person has the
benefit of ensuring consistent leading within the Group and will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively; and considers that such arrangement will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management and that the Company has sufficient internal controls
to provide checks and balances on the functions of the Chairman
and the chief executive officer. Nevertheless, the Board will review
such arrangement from time to time in light of the prevailing
circumstances.
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In addition, the Audit Committee of the Company, (the “Audit
Committee”), comprised exclusively independent non-executive
Directors, is free to directly communicate with the Company’s
external auditors and independent professional advisers when it

considers necessary.

MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to govern securities
transactions by the Directors. The Company, having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, was not aware of any non-compliance with
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Company also adopted the Model Code as guidelines for
its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company in respect of
their dealings in securities of the Company. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant employees was
noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive and five
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

AN ZRBIFRTEFEAXN I AR R ERZ
ZEg ([BRZEEE)INERRLERG

B A RSN BRAT R B SRR E
g4 o
ETESRZ WEESTH

ARRF DA LR B8+ P8 2 £
ﬁ)\%%i&ﬁ%”*%ﬂﬂ?ﬁ—?ﬁ‘l(Hgﬁﬁf
Bl - AREEFETERRS - KR2E
EEHREERE  AARLEZERNEE
E_=F=-A=t-HLEFERAEGEMER
R ST AR E SR -

ARRNERAZTETAERAEEEARR
AIFRRAABERZEBEREEEARAE

FZIER - BARE A HEEEEES T~ E
SRR Al o

EEgE

EXRERRA-RNTESTRABBEUIFN
TTESHEMN -

BITES

EB/D TR (FEEFTHAAE)

Mr. Zhao Xiaodong (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer) IR E (B FEEEH)
Mr. Zhu Lei ﬂegﬁi
Independent Non-executive Directors VYHHITES
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo HEREEE
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong ME B k4
Mr. Gao Yu BREEE
Mr. Liu Honggiang g e
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi Gl
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The biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual
Report.

The Company has five Independent Non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board.

At least one of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. All the Independent Non-executive Directors (except Mr.
Liu Honggiang who was ill since late June 2023) have signed the
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules to confirm their independence.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts
and major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s
business is delegated to the Executive Director or officer in charge
of each department. The functions and power that are so delegated
are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
performance, status and updates on the latest developments in
order to enable the Directors to discharge their duties. All Directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

Ma Chao, Mr. Zhu Lei,
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo and Mr. Liu Honggiang retired and were

During the year under review, Mr.

re-elected as the Directors at the annual general meeting held on
27 September 2022.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently five Independent Non-executive Directors. Each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment for a term of two years and then renewable
for one year. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director,
including the Independent Non-executive Directors, shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least every three years.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors (except Mr. Liu Honggiang who was ill since
late June 2023), an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors with annual
confirmations are independent.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views are available to the Board in the Company’s director
nomination policy and board diversity policy. The respective policies
are available on the Company’s website.

Pursuant to the code provision B.2.3 of the Code, serving
more than 9 years could be relevant to the determination of
a Non-executive Directors’ independence. If an Independent
Non-executive Director serves more than 9 years, his further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by shareholders. The circular to shareholders
accompanying that resolution will include the reasons why the
Board believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.

During the year under review, Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo was re-
elected in a separate resolution at the annual general meeting held
on 27 September 2022.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and approve business plan. 4 Board
meetings were held in 2022/20283. Individual attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings and the Nomination Committee
meeting during 2022/2023, the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 September 2022 (“2022 AGM”) and the
special general meeting of the Company held on 6 January 2023
(2023 SGM”) is set out below:

ERREFERR

EEETHRTEREHARE B RES
R UARBHERKTE -R_T== =T
CEFERRTUAEREEEE RNT
—TICHFE BRESEFESFEE SR
EzZEgeEn THNEEseE BRRZEE
OB URARFTR-_BE-_—_FAA -+t
AR RFRAFRAE([ZE-_FREA
FREERRZZEZ=F—ANBETZR
RENAE ([ ZBE_ZFREBFIXE]) 2
ERIEREINET

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HRERE EERY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Board Committee

Committee Committee 2022 AGM 2023 SGM
—E-CEF —E-=E

Director £z g EREEE FMZEEE REZEE REBEFAE RREAAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang BT 5 4 44 NATER 1M NATER 11 11
Mr. Ma Chao SREE 4/4 N/A 1 B N/A A iE A N/A TiE A 0/1 11
(retired with effect from (R-ZF-=#F
16 June 2023) NATABEE
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong HNREE 44 N/ATER N/A R @A N/A @A 11 1/1
Mr. Zhu Lei REXE 4/4 N/A TiE R 11 N/A i 11 11
Independent BUHHTEE
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choy Sze chung, Jojo ~ EERL4 4/4 3/3 11 11 11 11
(Chairman of the Audiit (BEZECTE)
Committeg)
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong WEIE &4 4/4 3/3 11 1/1 11 11
(Chairman of the (BWESCZEE)
Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Gao Yu SRLE 3/4 2/3 N/A N iE A N/A NiE A 11 11
Mr. Liu Hongqiang BRwkE 44 N/ATER N/A R @A 1/1 11 1/1
(Chairman of Nomination (BEZREETF/E)
Committee)
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi A\E L 44 NATER 11 NATER 11 17
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Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate detail.
Draft minutes are circulated to Directors for comments within
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for
Directors’ inspection.

INDUCTION, DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
OF DIRECTORS

Every Board member has received a guidance book on Directors’
duties and liabilities upon joining the Group, which also lays down
the guidelines on conduct for the Board and Board committee
members and other key governance issues, including but not
limited to Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations that they are required to observe during their service
in the Board. The updated guidelines will be provided from time to

time as and when appropriate.

A formal and tailored induction programme will be arranged for
each new Director, which includes a briefing on the Group’s
structure, businesses and governance practices by the senior
management. To seek continuous improvement, the Directors are

EXghZEeQ3LBEAEERE -8
LEVBRBREZRZIGEREAAZRE
SR SRRAKESEM-

N

ESEH BREIEI

BREFEXRENMBLAEERCER 1
EERBRETHESI T EFHIEFTER
EXZBEgNBZRTHEINIEMEIEE
ARE BRETRREZSEREFMNEENE
ERFEHRNEET - MERER RAIKE
BoREH 2B BREERKERNRREM-

BRAMTESRELH LA RES 2B
2 REOASREEABBNAEE Z22E -
EBRERATR  REEXE AEERBE
EHETSER 2 BEEIIRE LEESAR

encouraged to attend relevant training sessions, particularly on #HEEEMHEEE  RBREIE A LFAEBE
corporate ethics and integrity matters, risk management, and new & &R B 2 FRiZ ©
relevant laws and regulations, from time to time.
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To ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains AEREEZFHEOEESFHNBELIEHEE
informed and relevant and in compliance with code provision C.1.4 Bt AR &EFFB]ZSFREXC.1.4 » KA
of the Code, the Company shall arrange and fund suitable training BB ZHREDEZESTAEEI UBER
for the Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. FE#EE 2 MR - REIEFRN B0
During the year under review, the Directors participated in the kinds £ B A N EERER I

of training as follows:

Director Kind of Training
2= EHIER
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang EOE T4 A, B
Mr. Ma Chao HHEE

(retired with effect from 16 June 2023) (RZFZ=ZF A+ NHRME) A, B
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong HE/ N A A, B
Mr. Zhu Lei KRESLE A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBTEE
Mr. Choy Sze chung, Jojo BZRBIRLE A, B
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong B & e A& A, B
Mr. Gao Yu =R RE A B
Mr. Liu Honggiang B RE I A, B
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi el A, B
A:  Reading materials on legal and regulatory updates. A: BRZEREELMERZEY-

B: Attending training seminar organised by The Hong Kong B: HFEHREFEEDERPBENOLTH

Institute of Directors relating to (i) 2023 update changes to the BIRSFRIZ ZZEZ=ZF 83 RiER
Listing Rules and the Code and (ii) HKEX Latest Requirements ISR SRE (AEMAE) 257
on Corporate Transactions (Business Valuation) AR
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Based on the business needs of the Group, the Nomination
Committee has recommended and the Board has adopted the
following measurable objectives:

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall be Non-
executive Directors or Independent Non-executive Directors;

(i)  a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications; and

(iv) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have China
related work experience.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
with the Company. The Company also takes into consideration
of its own business model and specific needs from time to time
in determining the optimal composition of the Board. The Board
Diversity Policy focuses on ensuring a balance composition of
skills and experience at the Board level in order to provide a range
of perspectives, insights and challenges that enable the Board to
execute its duties and responsibilities effectively, support making
good decision in view of the core businesses and strategy of the
Group, and support succession planning and development of
the Board. The ultimate decision in selecting the members of the
Board will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates bringing to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to take
opportunity to increase the proportion of female members over
time when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for the Board’s appointments so as to achieve
an appropriate balance of gender diversity with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing
gender diversity in the Board. Although the Group currently has
certain proportion of female senior management, the Nomination
Committee will aim to recommend at least one female Director
candidate to the Board for its consideration and seek to achieve
the target of adding at least one female Director to the Board by
31 December 2024. As of 31 March 2023, approximately 50% of
the overall workforce are females and the Company will work to
maintain this level in the upcoming years.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the
diversity of the Board members and compliance with relevant
codes governing board diversity under the Code as set forth in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. While the Company recognises
that the gender diversity at the Board level can be improved given
its current composition of all male Directors, the Company will
continue to apply the principle of appointments based on merits
with reference to the Board Diversity Policy as a whole and are
committed to provide career development opportunities for female
staff.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
and the Company’s diversity profile (including balance of gender)
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness. The
Company will also disclose in its Corporate Governance Report
about the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy on an
annual basis.
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NOMINATION POLICY

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the

Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed

candidate.

° Reputation for integrity;

° Accomplishment and experience;

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of service; and

° In the case of independent non-executive Directors, the
independence of the candidate.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive.

Subject to the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, retiring
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Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to stand for re- BHRHEESRLEREAE HETHE
election at a general meeting.
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Proposed candidate will be asked to submit his/her necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with his/
her written consent to be appointed as a Director and to the
public disclosure of his/her personal data on any documents or
the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to his/her
standing for election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

Nomination Procedures

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of
the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates
from Board members if any, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the relevant circular to the Company’s
shareholders, the nominated persons shall not assume that they
have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the
general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, and to invite
nominations from shareholders, a circular will be sent to the
Company’s shareholders. The circular will set out the lodgment
period for the Company’s shareholders to make the nominations.
The names, brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, proposed remuneration and any other
information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the
circular to the Company’s shareholders.
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A shareholder of the Company can serve a notice to the Company
Secretary within the lodgement period of its intention to propose
a resolution to elect a certain person as a Director, without
the Board’s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination, other than those candidates set out in the circular to
the Company’s shareholders. The particulars of the candidates
so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for information by a

supplementary circular.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
Company Secretary.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available,
and the simple majority method will be used to determine who shall
be elected as a Director, shareholder’s proposed resolutions shall
therefore take the same form as the resolutions proposed for the
candidates recommended by the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties and has adopted a written guideline on corporate
governance functions in compliance with the Code.

The duties of the Board in respect of corporate governance
functions are summarised as follows:

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the

board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
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(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
as set out in the Code and its disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board reviewed and monitored the training
of the Directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Board reviewed the terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee of the Board of Director. The revised terms of
references were effective from 1 January 2019.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company established the
Remuneration Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the
Remuneration Committee is to exercise the power of the Board
to determine and review the remuneration package of individual
directors and key executives, including salaries, bonuses and
benefits in kind, considering factors such as time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and key executive, employments
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance
based remuneration so as to align management incentives with
shareholders interests. The Remuneration Committee is also
considering all relevant remuneration data and market conditions
in addition to considering the performance and responsibility of
individual directors and officers by linking their compensation with
performance and will measure it against corporate goals. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved
the remuneration package of the Executive Directors and senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about its proposals
relating to remuneration of the Executive Directors and have access
to professional advice if it considers necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors. Its present

members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo

Mr. Liu Xiaoyi

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Zhu Lei

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting in 2022/2023
to review and approve directors, and senior management’s
remuneration. The directors fee paid to the Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the Directors of the Company for 2022/2023 are set out in

note 12 to the financial statements.

Below is a summary of principal work per formed by the

Remuneration Committee during 2022/2023:

° Review of the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior management and approval of the same.

° Review of the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors
(including the Independent Non-executive Directors), with

recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review the existing share option scheme with recommendations

to the Board for approval.
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The annual remuneration of the members of the current senior
managements of the Group by band is set out below:

Emoluments Band

AEBRESRERABEZFHFNFTIMAE
Al :

Number of individuals

B < 45 51 A B
HK$NIl to HK$1,000,000 3
=% 7T £1,000,0007 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 2
1,000,00178 7t £2,000,000/%8 7T

HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 5

2,000,001 7T £3,000,000/% 7T

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October
2008 and currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Honggiang (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, and Mr. Lam Kwok
Cheong.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
member, assessing the independence of Independent Nonexecutive
Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman
and the chief executive officer.

The Nomination Committee has adopted written nomination
procedures specifying the process and criteria for selection of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The Nomination
Committee shall, based on criteria such as skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations, identify and recommend
the proposed candidate to the Board for approval of appointment.
The Non-executive Directors and all Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of two years and
renewable for additional one year, and are required to retire
and eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in every three years in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting in 2022/2023. Below
is a summary of principal work performed by the Nomination
Committee during 2022/2023:

° Recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors.

° Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the Board committees.

° Assessment and confirmation of the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors according to the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls and discussing with the external auditor for the
nature and scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee were formulated and adopted in March 2005 and
revised in January 2019.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director. Its present members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Gao Yu

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Choy Sze Chung,
Jojo, has appropriate professional qualification in accounting
and extensive experience in accounting and auditing matters.
Senior management and external auditor shall normally attend the
meetings. The Audit Committee held 3 meetings in 2022/2023 with
representatives from the external auditor of the Company, for the
purpose of discharging the aforesaid duties.
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Below is a summary of principal work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2022/2023:

° Review of the annual financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2022 and the interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2022, with recommendations to the Board for
approval.

° Review reports from the auditors to the Audit Committee.

° Review of the internal controls and the risk management
systems of the Group.

° Review of the connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) carried out during the year.

° Review of the financial budget of the Group.

° Review and make recommendation to the Board on the
reappointment of the auditors.

° Review and approve the remuneration, other terms of
engagement, the nature and scope of the audit and the
reporting obligations of the auditor.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the appointment of the external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2023
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Each year, the auditors are appointed by resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company and the Directors are authorized
to fix the remunerations for the auditing services.
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The fee paid or payable to our auditor for annual auditing services
for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$2.2 million. Auditing services include mainly audit of annual
financial statements, agreed-upon procedures on interim financial
information and the annual results announcement of the Group.
There was no non-audit service provided by BDO and its affiliated
companies for the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board and the Board
committees by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary also plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its shareholders, and facilitates induction and
professional development of directors.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments and that it has regard to them
when making decisions. The Company Secretary also advises
the Directors on their obligations for disclosure of interests in
securities, connected transactions and inside information and
ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the Listing
Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the annual

reports of the Company.

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the Company
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chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company.
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Mr. Li Yat Ming, the Financial Controller of the Group, has been
appointed by the Company as the Company Secretary. He is
also the primary contact person of the Company. For the year
under review, Mr. Li has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge. The
biographical details of Mr. Li are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual
Report.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

General Policy

The Company shall maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and investors and encourage them to communicate
actively with the Company; and would regularly review the
communication strategies between the Company and its
Shareholders to ensure their effectiveness.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to Shareholders through the publication of
interim and annual reports. In addition to the information contained
in the dispatched circulars, notices, and financial reports and at
general meetings, additional information is also made available
to Shareholders on the websites of the Company at www.hk970.
com and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) at www.hkexnews.hk.

The Company’s website provides comprehensive and the
latest information about the Company, including our news,
financial results, financial statements, announcements, circulars,
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws, composition of the
Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee and the terms of reference of Committees. Information
on the Company’s website is updated from time to time.
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Corporate Communication

Corporate communication (as defined in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),
any documents issued or to be issued by the Company for the
information or action of Shareholders, including, but not limited
to, the directors’ reports and annual accounts together with a
copy of the independent auditor’'s report, the interim report, a
notice of meeting, a circular and a proxy form will be provided to
Shareholders in plain language and in both English and Chinese
versions to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders
have the right to choose the language (either English or Chinese) or
means of receipt of the corporate communications (in hard copy or

through electronic means).
Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meetings and the special general meetings of the Company, for
which at least 21 days’ notice and at least 14 days’ notice will be
given respectively. The chairman and the directors of the Company
are available to answer questions on the Group’s businesses at the
meetings. An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held
every year within a period of not more than fifteen (15) months after
the holding of the last preceding annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands. Accordingly, all the resolutions put
to vote at the general meetings will be taken by way of poll except
as aforesaid. The chairman of the general meetings will explain the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the general meetings. After the conclusion of the general meetings,
the poll results will be published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and of the Company.

Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meetings
and other general meetings shall be in place to encourage
Shareholders’ participation.
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The process of the Company’s general meetings will be monitored
and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be
made to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served.

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a general meeting of the Company and put forward agenda items
for consideration by Shareholders. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general
meeting. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition an aggregate of not less than one-tenth
(10%) of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, on a one vote per
shares basis, shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business or resolution specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in accordance with
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Share Registrar.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary
whose contact details are as follows:

New Sparkle Roll International Group Limited
23/F, China Huarong Tower,

60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2299 9966

Fax: (852) 2802 8577

Email: info@hk970.com.
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Shareholder Privacy

The Company recognizes the importance of Shareholders’ privacy
and will not disclose Shareholders’ information without their
consent, unless required by law to do so.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness and implementation
of Shareholders Communication Policy during the year and was
of the view that, through the above-mentioned measures, the
Shareholders Communication Policy remained effective and was
implemented effectively, to ensure that the Company maintains
long-term effective and good communication with its shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the Memorandum of Association and the
Bye-laws of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023.
The latest version of Constitutional Documents are available on the
Company’s website at www.hk970.com and the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Company may
declare dividend according to the recommendation of the board of
directors of the Company. No dividend shall be paid or distribution
made out of contributed surplus if to do so would render the
Company unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or the
realisable value of its assets would thereby become less than its
liabilities.

The Company may in its full discretion decide not to declare
dividend due to various reasons, including but not limited to
maintaining or adjusting the capital structure and reserving more
capital to capture opportunities, etc.

According to the Bermuda Companies Act, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution, out of contributed
surplus if: (a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or (b) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium accounts.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has an on ongoing responsibility for maintaining the
Group’s system of internal control and for the assessment and
management of risk and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard
the interests shareholders as a whole, investment to and by the
Company and the Company’s assets. Such system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Although the
Company does not have an internal audit department, the Board
has entrusted the Audit Committee and appointed professional
internal control consultants whose responsibility is to assess the
risks faced by the Group and review the internal control systems of
the Group, which include the financial, operational and compliance
controls functions. The risk assessment report will document the
major business risks while the internal review report will provide
the factual findings of (i) whether the internal control procedures,
systems and controls of the Group are suitably designed to achieve
their specified control objectives (ii) whether they have been placed
in operation, and are operating effectively; and (i) whether the
specific controls objectives are achieved during a specified period
from the testing and review.

During the year, the Board has conducted review on the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
discussion with the Audit Committee on audit findings and control
issue. The internal control review report for the year listed out the
findings of the weaknesses in respect of the relevant cycles and
procedures with recommendations proposed for the Company
to further improve its internal control system. The results of the
review and the risk assessment report have been identified and
appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the
risks. The Board, based on the review of the Audit Committee,
considered that the Group’s internal control system was effective
and the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the accounting and financial reporting
functions were adequate for the year under review.
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The Company has reviewed the inside information policy from
time to time and kept its content up-to-date. The updated inside
information policy for the handling and dissemination of inside
information has been circulated to the Directors, the senior
management and the relevant employees when they are employed.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy for
employees and those who deal with the Group to raise concerns
of possible improprieties where all concerns are addressed
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, one of the member
of the Audit Committee and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Whistleblowing policy is implemented with the purpose
of preventing operational and management risks, inspiring our
employees to be actively involved in the management of the
Group, and encouraging, with proper guidance, our employees
and stakeholders (suppliers, customers, etc.) to make confidential
disclosure of internal operational defects, suspected misconducts
or violations within the Group, so as to ensure its due compliance
with laws and sound operation.

The Company has also established an anti-corruption and bribery
policy to promote and support anti-corruption laws and regulations.
Anti-corruption and bribery policy is implemented to ensure the
independence of our work and exemption from any administrative
intervention and any influence from interpersonal relationship or
department leadership, to conduct inspection work independently
with fair judgement unaffected by any financial interest, and to
ensure fair and accurate information to be issued.

The whistle-blowing policy and anti-corruption and bribery policy
are available on the Company’s website.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility
of the Directors to ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the management
has provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board
to enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before it for approval including the updates
on the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance, an
explanation of the basis on which the Company generates or
preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
the Company’s objectives have been prepared and included in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.

The Directors confirm that they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Group has
changed some of its accounting policies following the adoption of
the new or amended HKFRSs which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the year. The accounting
policies adopted by the Group are set out in the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies of the note 4 to the financial
statements. The Directors use their best endeavours to ensure a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in financial reporting. The
Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to financial reporting
are set out on pages 140 to 146 in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
New Sparkle Roll International Group Limited
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ZHENG HAO JIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 56, Mr. Zheng graduated in the Law Department (Economic
Law Speciality) of Peking University, the PRC in 1990 with a
Bachelor degree in Law. Mr. Zheng has over 22 years’ experience
in Beijing in the areas of equity portfolio management, capital
market analysis management and financial advisory. He is a
founding member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior
Executives Association and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. He served as a General Manager of
Lamborghini Beijing of the Group. Mr. Zheng joined the Group in

October 2006.

Mr. Zheng has an interest in such number of shares under Part
XV of the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
Annual Report.

Directors — Directors’

ZHAO XIAO DONG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Aged 55, Mr. Zhao, graduated in the Information Technology
Department of Beijing University of Chemical Technology, the
PRC in 1990 with a Bachelor degree in Engineering. He has
over 18 years of experience in the areas of wholesale and retail
management of luxury goods in Beijing.

Mr. Zhao was a Member of Supervisory Board of Cultural
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock
code: 600715) from October 2015 to December 2021.

Mr. Zhao was the executive Director, the Deputy Chairman and
the Chief Operating Officer of the Company from September 2008
to December 2015. He had also been a Consultant from January
2016 to 15 April 2018 in respect of the watch and jewellery
business of the Group and has been re-designated as the Chief
Operating Officer of the Group since 16 April 2018.
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ZHU LEI

Aged 49, Mr. Zhu obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Russian
from the Department of Foreign Languages and Literatures of
Beijing Normal University, the PRC in 1998. He has over 20 years
of experience in management and sales of watches and jewelry and
management and operation of golf clubs. Mr. Zhu joined the Group
in May 2011 and has since held several positions in the Group,
including but not limited to the executive director of the marketing
department of our Beijing headquarter, the operating director
of Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce Development Limited,
the director of the fine wine business of the Group, the general
manager of Sparkle Roll Online (Beijing) Business Service Limited
and the General Manager of Rolls-Royce Tianjin of the Group. He is
currently the General Manager of Sparkle Roll Honour Club and the
General Manager of Lamborghini Beijing of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHOY SZE CHUNG, JOJO

Aged 64, Mr. Choy is the Vice Chairman of National Resources
Securities Limited. He has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport,
United Kingdom and Master of Business Law Degree from
Monash University, Australia. Mr. Choy was awarded Fellowship
by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration and
Honorary Doctorate of Management by Lincoln University in 2019.
Mr. Choy is also an independent non-executive director of Luye
Pharma Group Limited (HK stock code: 2186), Zhaojin Mining
Industry Company Limited (HK stock code: 1818) and First Credit
Finance Group Limited (HK stock code: 8215).
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Mr. Choy is also the Permanent Honorary President of the
Institute of Securities Dealers Limited, a fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, a fellow member of Institute of
Financial Accountants in the United Kingdom, a fellow member
of the Institute of Compliance Officers, a fellow member of
the Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, a member of
the fourth session, the fifth session and the sixth session of
the Chief Executive Election Committee of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (Financial Services Subsector), a member
of the Election Committee of the 12th, 13th and 14th National
People’s Congress of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
a member of the 11th, 12th and 13th Shantou Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Committee, an honorary president of Shantou
Overseas Friendship Association, an honorary president of Shantou
Overseas Exchange Association, an honorary principal of Chen Po
Sum School and a director of Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Community Organizations. Mr. Choy joined the Group in October
2007.

Mr. Choy has an interest in such number of shares under Part
XV of the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
Annual Report.

LAM KWOK CHEONG

Aged 69, Mr. Lam holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of Hong Kong. He is an independent non-executive
director of Wah Sun Hangbags International Holdings Limited (HK
stock code: 2683), Convoy Global Holdings Limited (HK stock
code: 1019) which was delisted on 4 May 2021 and Wing Lee
Property Investments Limited (HK stock code: 864).

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of Southwest
Securities International Securities Limited (HK stock code: 812)
and China Brilliant Global Limited (HK stock code: 8026) until
his resignation on 19 September 2016 and 12 February 2018,
respectively.

Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace with Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Lam is currently a China-appointed
Attesting Officer, Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New
Territories and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages. Mr. Lam joined the
Group in October 2007.
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GAO YU

Aged 49, Mr. Gao graduated from Stanford University, United
States with a Master’s degree in engineering-economic systems
and operations research as well as from Tsinghua University in
Beijing, the PRC with dual Bachelor’s degrees in engineering and
economics. He currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (HK stock code:
3818). He is a non-executive director of China Feihe Limited (HK
stock code: 6186). Mr. Gao is also a director of Shandong Buchang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code:
603858).

Mr. Gao resigned from AMTD International’s board in February
2022. He was also a non-executive director of Home Control
International Limited (HK stock code: 1747) from November 2015
to July 2022.

Mr. Gao was a managing director in the Private Credit & Equity
Division of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, the co-chief investment
officer of Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia, Head of its China
Investment Operations and Chairman of RMB Fund’s Investment
Committee until July 2022. He was also a member of Morgan
Stanley’s China Management Committee. Prior to joining Morgan
Stanley Asia Limited in August 2005, Mr. Gao worked in Citigroup’s
Investment Banking Division in Asia for about five years. He also
worked in Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette’'s Debt Capital Markets
Group in New York. Mr. Gao joined the Group in September 2010.
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LIU HONGQIANG

Mr. Liu, aged 42, graduated from the North China University of
Technology, the PRC with a Bachelor degree in Economic Laws
in 2002. In addition, Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Business
Administration jointly awarded by The School of Economics and
Management of the University of Science and Technology Beijing,
the PRC and University of Texas at Arlington, United States, and
a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from the
University of Texas at Arlington, United States.

Mr. Liu has over 10 years’ experience in the legal and investment
field and is also a qualified lawyer in the PRC. Mr. Liu worked in
law firms in the PRC, including Hogan Lovells International LLP.
He founded Higgs Capital Group Limited and served as the Chief
Representative of the Association of Corporate Counsel Beijing
Office and an executive partner of Songshan Capital Management
Company Limited* (FILEAREEERAF) . He currently serves
as an executive director of 21 Capital Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu joined the
Group in February 2020.

Mr. Liu has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV
of the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
Annual Report.

LIU XIAOYI

Aged 38, Mr. Liu graduated from London South Bank University,
United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Arts, majoring in Accounting
and Finance. He also obtained a Degree of Master of Science in
Professional Accountancy from the University of London. He is a
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He
has extensive experience in accounting, audit and compliance and
was a revenue accountant of a specialist recruiting firm in Hong
Kong and an associate and an assistant manager of a sizeable
audit, tax and advisory firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Liu is currently an
accounting manager of a brokerage house in Hong Kong. Mr. Liu
joined the Group in October 2020.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
LI YAT MING

Aged 43, Mr. Li is the Company Secretary, Financial Controller
and Authorised Representative of the Company and he joined
the Group in July 2009. He has over 15 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, financial management, taxation and company
secretarial fields. Prior to joining the Group, he had served in
an international accounting firm. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a Postgraduate Certificate in Corporate Compliance
from The University of Hong Kong School of Professional and
Continuing Education. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and also is a member of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association.

JIA HAI TAO

Aged 55, Mr. Jia graduated from the master’s programme in
business economics ( ¥ & &2 H %) of the Graduate School of
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, the PRC in 1998 and is the
General Manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group. Mr. Jia has
held various senior management positions since 1998 in the fields
of sales and marketing, and in these positions, he was responsible
for the marketing of computer equipment at KeHai Group* (£}/&
&£ @), consultancy and marketing of life insurance at Sino-US
MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd.* (REKXKHEHE AFREKAE) and film
studio marketing at Beijing Sparkle Roll International Film Studio
Management Limited* (it B EEEZHEEBR A F]) . Mr. Jia
joined the Group in September 2012 and has served in various
capacities, including deputy general manager of the automobile
dealership division, deputy general manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing,
deputy general manager and general manager of Bentley Beijing of
the Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

LIU JING JING

Aged 49, Ms.
Technology, the PRC in 1997 with a Bachelor of Engineering in
P EAS HE ) and is the Head
of purchasing of the automobile dealership division and deputy

Liu graduated from the Beijing University of
air-conditioning and cooling ( %=

general manager of Lamborghini Beijing of the Group. Since 1997,
Ms. Liu had been working in the area of public relations with
Beijing Dongan Group* (L RE L& ® ), Shidu Mall* (& H
&) and Zhongshang Department Store* (R E B ). She joined
the Beijing Bentley Group in 2001 as assistant to president and
was responsible for handling commercial vehicle orders, vehicle
purchase and liaison with foreign vehicle manufacturers for more
than 20 years. Ms. Liu joined the Group in July 2008 and has
served as assistant to president and purchasing manager of the
automobile dealership division of the Group.

CHEN LING

Aged 44, Mr.
Technology, the PRC in 2001 with a Bachelor of Engineering

Chen graduated from the Beijing Institute of

in computer science and from the University of Wollongong
in Australia in 2009 with a Master in Information Technology
Management. He is the General Manager of BANG & OLUFSEN at
Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Development Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group, and Head of the e-commerce division of the
Group. Mr. Chen has been engaging, and has accumulated rich
experience, in corporate management and information technology
management since 2010. Mr. Chen joined the Group in July 2013
and was assistant to president of the automobile dealership
division of the Group and training manager of B&0O PLAY at
Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Development Limited.

I

iﬁ¢49ﬁ'%ﬂzif%*hnt¢$¥%qﬂﬂ
ERTIERB=FHELSEX FHEIRES
T2 SAKERESHBFIRBERLE
&$;’%%T@%Eib?%ﬂ%@ﬁéf%%ﬁtﬁé
—AhtEFR FRELERRLER EHA
ERTHAERELCBIE-RR_FT—F
MALRENEETREEE A ERERT
BRI E  TERERERINTER S BT
205 - BN —ZTNFELAMARE
® - EEAKETE D HE PR BNE R IRE
BT

BRZ

WEA RAEENR S —FE2E NP AL
FETREBHAEUNMNEBHEE BETREETE
L RZTTNFEENRMNEAEEARS 5
EEERMERELEN BAXKENBEA
AEAEER (ItR)ES5ERER A FBANG
& OLUFSEN #4538 W A A EERE S
BE-REEN_T—TFIH HELEXEE
REMBIRERE BREETLH -HELENZ
TE-=FLtAMALEE BEAERSESD

HE P REYE BEAER (XR)EHER
AR A FIB&O PLAYIE FI &I o
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

QU JING

Aged 42, Ms. Qu graduated from the undergraduate programme
in fashion design and performance of the Beijing Institute of
Fashion Technology, the PRC in 2001 and is the General Manager
of Bentley Beijing, of the Group. Ms. Qu has been engaging in the
sale of Bentley vehicles for various years after graduation and later
joined the Group in June 2010. Prior positions at the Group include
Head of the sales department of the wine division, Beijing Sparkle
Roll Luxury World (Hua Mao) and Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group.
She has extensive experience in cross-selling of various product
lines of the Group and handling VIP relations.

LEI YUN
Aged 56, Mr. Lei graduated from the undergraduate programme in

EHE ) of the Academy of Arts & Design, Tsinghua
University, the PRC in 1992 and is the General Manager of Bentley

decoration (%

Tianjin of the Group. Mr. Lei has been engaging in public relations
planning, advertising and media and design for over 20 years since
1998 and has extensive experience in product management and
marketing. Mr. Lei joined the Group in August 2015 and has served
deputy general manager and general manager of Bentley Beijing of
the Group.

CHENG BIN

Aged 50, Ms. Cheng graduated from the Kwantlen Polytechnic
University in Canada in 2008 with a Bachelor of Business Administ
rat ion in Account ing. She also is the Char tered Professional
Certified General Accountant (CPA, CGA). Ms.
Cheng currently is the assistant operating director and Head of

Accountant,

the marketing division of Lamborghini Beijing of the Group. She
had served as auditor and financial controller at BDO Canada
and Canada JinBi International Limited* (M2 X&Z2HE AR A
A]) since 2008. She joined the Group in March 2013 and held
the position as the Head of the watch and jewelry division and the
Head of the marketing and media division of the Group.

#h &

RF425 MZIR —_FT-—FABAHER
RAEBEIERREBERERTRRRTEE

RAEBEENIL AL - i L B ERRN
EEMAEHETHFZE HBRR _FT—FF
NAMAREE BEEREEAENHEEL
BRI R (EEE)HERERSHR
b RHERE - A REAKESERR
ZREXHENRBEVIPEFBAEAETEERES

BES6R BRER NN ZFARERRH
BSEAREMBRFKEREEX RAAEEE

MREEREE -BEREB-NNA=ZFERER
A8 EEERERG TIE20805 AL
BEZEMBERMSHEEIEER - EXER

—HAFNANAREE BEEAKEE
MAERBIBE IR R BT -

B

BES0R BETHRZZEZ NFEERINEXR
ENFREIXRESH 25X FEIRBERES
T M IR RFRT EE @A - s & 5TAD
(CPACGA) - B+ IR AAEEBIBEL A8
REEERIERMSHEE -ER2ES\F
1 RBEMEABDOS AN BT R IIE KR
CEHBRBRAGTETFTA R FEBE &
RZE—=F=ZANALRER THBAEEE
RREBBERTISEEDRE-
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ZHANG BING

Aged 52, Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai Railway University,
the PRC in 1995 with a college degree in financial accounting and
obtained the national intermediate accountant qualification in May
2000. He is currently the assistant financial controller of the Group
and the manager of the financial department of Beijing headquarter
of the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2008 and has
served as the accounting supervisor of Bentley Beijing, Rolls-Royce
Beijing and Lamborghini Beijing, and the accounting supervisor
of Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading Development Limited.
Since joining the Group, Mr. Zhang has accumulated extensive
experience in financial management of luxury automobiles industry
and watch and jewelry retail industry.

GUO YING

Aged 48, Ms. Guo graduated from Capital University of Economics
and Business, the PRC in August 1998 with a Bachelor of
Economics in computerized accounting and has served as an
accountant of Beijing Shiyuan Urban Construction Integrated
Development Company* (It R tRB M EREGZEEFHERQR), a
personnel assistant of Beijing Celebrity Horse Technology Limited*
(IR BABEERFAERAA)and a human resource manager
of Beijing Bentley Group Limited* (1t REFEEHEPR A &) . She
is currently the human resources director of Beijing headquarter
of the Group. Ms. Guo joined the Group in May 2011 as the
manager of the personnel department. She has been engaging in
human resources management for over 20 years and has relevant
professional background and extensive experience.

R

RERR REE—NNAFAEEERS
B EeEEREMBETERX —TTTFA
AESBERDRSFTEER - RIREAEED
3P T A L e AR SR B AL A BB TS EB AR IR - OR
EER-_TZENFLAMALREER SEEE
Mibm - BHHAIER WEEELEREIES
A AREBRERS (ER)BHERERAA
TERR - REEMAREBENUR  ERENR
BUTEMBEZRETETEMBEETER

88 = g
BEELR-

LiE

WEBR BREIN—NAANFNAKRER
MEXENTEEHEEEIAREEAEEL
B¥ BAKBERELBM0  WREEILRT
RETEREEHERR G IERBAR
SRRERRAAEPENMIERENEERS
[RAOFIAFLKE - FREANKEILRAEAT
BREE -HRITN_T——FHAMALRE
EAFEE -RUFANEREETIE
#20F - ABHAEXRE R NEENER-
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

WEN Ql

Aged 47, Mr. Wen graduated from Training School of Beijing
Communist Party Committee, the PRC with a college degree
in economic management in 2005. He is currently the general
manager of Rolls-Royce Tianjin and the deputy general manager
of Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group. Mr. Wen joined the Group in
May 2011 and has served several positions in the Group, including
the executive assistant of Beijing headquarter of the Group, deputy
manager and workshop director of branded automobile aftersales
service division, the deputy general manager and sales manager
of Bentley Beijing and the general manager of Bentley Tianjin
of the Group. Since joining the Group, Mr. Wen has served in
various capacities and possesses different kinds of professional
background and extensive management experience in the field of
ultra-luxury automobiles.

B

RFEATH BEAN T ETRAFAZEERNS
Bt A mEEREEEREE - HREAER
BERET R 2R F L IRt 7 8l K
BoORBAEER_FT——FRANALRER:E
FALEEZ RN - BIEASE L FAIBITH
BhIE - MR ERBIERGIFIRICIERE
FEE - EFEREIBLCEMEELRE - BF
RFBEBER ORTEMAREB AR - 47
ETREMN  EETRERA 2 BEESNEBR
ELHEEGNEEERLER -

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #1BKEEEBE R L 7 8 1

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4



RE -HEREB|MS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT NEW SPARKLE ROLL

New Sparkle Roll International Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (hereafter collectively the “Group”, “we” or “our”)
strive to uphold our position as a leading luxury goods dealership.
We are committed to delivering exceptional services to customers,
all while minimizing our environmental impact in order to maximize
the value we bring to the industry.

ABOUT THE REPORT

This report is the seventh environmental, social and governance
("ESG”") report (the “Report”) to present our management
approach, sustainability strategies and progress on ESG issues to
our stakeholders.

Reporting Period and Scope

Unless otherwise stated, the Report covers the overall ESG
performance from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 (the “Reporting
Period” or “2023").
compared with that of the ESG report 2022. The Report covers our

There is no change in the scope when

major business operations in automobile dealerships in Beijing and
Tianjin, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”):

° Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Trading Limited’;

° Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited’;

° Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Development Limited'; and
o Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading Development Limited'.

Note 1: The English names of these subsidiaries established in Mainland
China represent management’s best effort at translating the
Chinese names of these subsidiaries as no official English names
have been registered.

B TR0 7 48 2R

MBABEBREEBRAR ([RAF]) KA
BAR (ATHRE KK [RM)ED
HERMBENEZmoD HEHH - A%
REPRHEBOIRTY - RN EHIRENTE
8 KMEAREMBIESERMASITESKNE
o

B AN 3 &

ABER/ELOHRR HEREE ([ESG])
HE([REE])  AKHERRERMEESG
FENERTH AR RRRRER-

BEPEREE

BREAHRAN AREREAEEH-_T -
FNA—HE-Z-_=F=A=+—H([#
S HIR ] 5k [2023)) WESGEE KRR -H_-T
T ZFRESGHREMAL  EHEWEFE -
TREREBRMOEEEKES  BuURPE
AREFE (THE]) IR RKERNTEDH
ES R

e URXARKAEEZBRARA:

o URERABEZERAAF:

s XEBERAFEEFERERARA K
s XREGEFEEIERARAA-

i1 ARZERTEAMKT 2 M8 R FL
BEMEAEXEM Bt Z2FHEXE
MIBHEREEREABAUZEMER
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Reporting Basis

N

&K

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the mandatory ZABRENEREREBHAZTIFIHAER AT ([
disclosure requirements and “comply or explain” provisions under X)) FEH FHHBIFEE-++ (GRE HE
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the K& AmE1E3|) ([#3]]) FrEiasa &7 5=
“Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing RE K& [TESTRE] GRS -

of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Stock Exchange”).

Reporting Principles

H&ERA

The following reporting principles underpinned the preparation of  FFIREA T HRE RBIRER AR E :

the Report:

Materiality

ERM

Quantitative

Consistency

— B

Balance

i

The Group made a consensus on the material topics through internal discussion
and participation of key stakeholders. Internal materiality assessment is
conducted, and the outcome is summarised in the section — Materiality
Assessment in the Report.
AEEBANBImEEIERNEL2ERERZBERNRB -KMACETATE
EMAE HERENEAREN [EZUTH] EHFRE-

The Group presented the environmental and social key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) where applicable. The KPIs are calculated with reference to the
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs and Appendix 3:
Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs of “How to Prepare an ESG Report” issued
by the Stock Exchange.

ERTOBEAT AEEERRR R SHERBESIER BREBIEENTERE
DEBRIAHEN (AREBERE L8 REBWE) Wik IRIFMBEDE
RERESI KM= t SAREBIEFTERES| -

The Report adopted consistent methodologies for effective and meaningful
comparisons of the data over time. Any changes in the methodologies and
reporting scope are interpreted for stakeholders’ reference.

ABERBT —BHSA L SBEBRAEEREBEENLR - MABNA
ARERBEFY HREHEFAERBHEZZ -

The Report disclosed the overall ESG performance with reference to the Guide
and robust methodologies were adopted.
RIRERIFEIE S| W BEEREESGERIR WA T AWMt k-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Confirmation and Approval

The Report has been reviewed and approved by the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”).

Access to the Report

The Report is available in English and Chinese and is uploaded
to the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company (www.
hk970.com). In case of any discrepancies between the two
versions, the English version shall prevail.

Opinion and Feedback

Stakeholders’ feedback or opinions on the Report are highly
appreciated and key to drive a continual improvement in our
ESG performance. You are welcomed to contact us via email at
info@hk970.com to share your views with us.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

Good corporate governance enables companies to implement
business strategies and create value for stakeholders. The
Company established an ESG Working Group to assist the Board
to promote, develop and implement ESG-related initiatives,
policies, plans, goals, and indicators in accordance with all
applicable laws, regulations, and regulatory requirements. In
addition, the Company has engaged Riskory Consultancy Limited
as sustainability consultant to provide ESG and related advisory
services.

BRRiE

ARECHARAESEE ([EEFENR
e o

&5 h 2 B2 7 X

RRMEFHBERXRRIRAR  WE EHER
it X A B 48 U (www.hk970.com) 40/ {E i 2
GFEERBEE  BARSRA A% -

RRERE

BMREERFNEERENRELER B
AR FFENEESCGRENER - Bl s
% B E B (info@hk970.com)EB R FIH & - 5=
THE -

ARERRER

ROFMCEERFEAREETESREE I
BEHELEEE A QR BEKIZESGIEN
H-RBEREERRNEAE ERNEEZK.
WM EE S RE B EMEHEESGHERE 8
BEE e BRREZR WM ARAE
Z B2 Riskory Consultancy Limited{ & ] #5 4&
BEFEM  RHEESGR B AR -
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N

The Board

EEE

B AEBZESGIRE

o Bear the ultimate responsibility of sustainable development strategies of the Group;
AEFEBE RS RRBRNRERE;

e  Oversee the Group's overall ESG issues and strategy; and
EEEAREEFTBESCEE KRR, LUKk

e  Review and approve ESG reports of the Group.

v

Audit Committee

BREaE

ESG Working Group
ESGI{EE

e  The ESG risk management function is delegated to

Audit Committee;

e Review and approve the risk assessment; and
TR R B HE AT s AT

o Report to the Board for the adaptation of risk
control measures.

BEFGERERT G WEESSRAEMRIEEEE-

g

EREERESCAREEMAESRET ZEREST;

o Identify, assess, prioritize and manage the Group's
material ESG matters;

HA b B R EE A E R 2 EEESGHERA
=H;

o Recommend procedures and selection criteria for
identifying material ESG matters to the Board;
HESERENNEEESCHEMEEZ 2R REE
1%,

e  Set ESG goals and indicators to align with the
Group's long-term business development;
REESGHER B IR R IER S HEAERE 2 REFET
BRER-2

o Improve and implement the Group's ESG
strategies, frameworks and policies; and
FERBEMAEEESGHERAKES ERKRBE; UKk

e Review the preparation and disclosure of ESG
report and provide recommendations to the Board.
BERASATESGREZEHERIKE URMItMESE
REZ-

For the Group’s other corporate governance information,
refer to the Corporate Governance Report in the Annual

2023.

please ABEASEMEMPEERER FL2HE-Z
Report Z—=FFWmMH[EERHRE] -
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ESG RISK MANAGEMENT

To identify the material ESG risks associated with a significant

impact on the Group’s operation, we have engaged an independent

third-party consultant to conduct an ESG risk assessment in the

Reporting Period. The Group has implemented effective measures

to manage the material risks. The Group’s response is highlighted

in the following list of material risk issues.

Risks
JE28S

Supply Chain and
Logistics Risk
e 8 2 i A B

Operational Impact
due to Pandemics
MITREELENTE

86

Importance

EEM

It is essential to maintain a steady supply of
vehicles with high product quality to meet
customer demands. Poorly positioned and
under-performing suppliers may pose a
negative impact on the Group’s ability to
access inputs into production or distribute
products to customers.
BMUERBSBERSEENERHERE - X
MEBEPBER - EURKBNENHERA
REHAEEELEERAIARTEFPHHEEM
FTHMENERKAELE -

The pandemics may put the health of the
Group’s employees at risk, which will have
a negative impact on the Group’s business
environment, regular business operations
and supply chain.
REAREAEBREINRERENBEH
o WHEHAEENEBRRE EREBEL
MMEREFEHETE-

ANNUAL REPORT 20234F ¥

RE - #HEkEcRABER

RBRIHAEELEEFEATENTEESG
[\ - B AIE SRR B L 56 = 77 BAR A ¥R 5 HAfE
HETTESGRIR T » AR H B REVA UHE 1 A
ERBEBARR U TRAKEHRERNARZ
B[O fE -

Our Response

I8 = pE

Suppliers will be accessed based on their
service delivery, product quality, after-sale
services, financial conditions, and appraisal
from partners in the industry. We obtain
proposals from at various prospective
suppliers by considering their prices and
product quality. For details, please refer to
the “Sustainable Supply Chain” section in
this Report.

BB RBEHEFNRERN EmmE &
‘AR BN RITREERH AR EK
BEEHER RMEREEHRIERE I
EZRHBEBRREREE -FBEFH2HARE
By [P FsE e e | 305 -

The Group’s management closely
follows the news, information, policies,
and regulatory authority’s guidelines.
We will assess and predict the impact
of pandemics on the Group’s future
finances and operations in order to
adjust the Group’s business strategies,
pandemic prevention measures and work
arrangements in a timely manner.

AEBEEREERABNE A BREE
EHRBOES - R ERBRRBEHAR
SEARKMBREENTE UREREFAE
REBOEBRE HRERREIIELH -
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholders refer to the groups and people who significantly
impact the business or will be affected by the Company. They
play a crucial role in our continuous progress towards sustainable
development. Through on-going discussion and communication
with our stakeholders, we understand their opinions and
expectation towards the performance of the Group, thereby

FHESH

FNERURBELAETEAREXRIRAF
ENERNRAL -FHEERMEZAHESR
ERHOBIETEIZFEEENAE - HAEEER
RO EREN®IBR  THRRFHASEE
BOERRHE EMElFTEENEERR
R NMAEF AR FE - N E BREF) E 2 BHY

formulating appropriate management systems, policies, and FEZFEBEBEN T

procedures in response to their needs. The main communication

channels between the Group and stakeholders are detailed as

follows:

Customers

zF

° Feedback from customers

EF X

o Company’s website
NEIFE R

° Annual and interim reports

FwkPHRE
Investors and Shareholders
Eﬁ%&ﬁ%

Annual general meeting

REBEBFERE
o Annual and interim reports

FH R RS
° Corporate announcements

j N\ tl:
° Company’s website

yNSFES
Suppliers and Business Partners
HEREREBEHF
° Procurement process

R

° Regular communication (e.g., email, meetings,

on-site visit etc.)
THER(NNER -e®H BHFSF)

Communities

HE

o Company’s website
NSFEES

° Community participation
Z:I: AR / /\

Employees

3=

° Regular meetings and performance review
EE@%E&&%EE*/\ u—JL

° Intranet and opinion box
WEEE KR B RAE

° Training and orientation

BEIlRkES

Government Authorities and Regulators

ﬂﬁ%ﬁ& BB
Documented information submission
RRXXMHEH

° Forums, conference, and workshops
wiE gL E

Media

e

o Company’s website

YNSIFER

o Corporate announcements
j AN /_-l:

° Interviews and networking platforms

RN SR
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MATERIALITY ANALYSIS

EEMDM

Materiality analysis is always a comprehensive way to identify the

material ESG issues which are material to our business operation

and major stakeholders. The Group conducted an internal
materiality assessment to identify the ESG issues and confirm
the materiality. We adopted a three-step process to materiality

assessment.

Identification

SR

The Group reviewed and examined
the material topics identified in 2022
with reference to:
FERZEYUTHEER BELER_Z
T FERENEE SR

(@) Regulatory trends of the Stock
Exchange;

RIS BB S ;

(b)  Actual operations of the Group
during the Reporting Period;
REBRKRSHENERSE
1B

(c) Stakeholders’ expectations and
demands; and
FRENIERER R

(d) Material topics suggested by
international recognized
organizations (such as SASB
and MSCI) on automotive retail
industry.

EIFR 248 (BHESASBRMSCI)
MSESETEMERNERSR

250

Prioritization

> 2 HEEER

The Board reviewed and re-assessed
the material issues identified in 2022
to confirm the material issues for the
Reporting Period. The overall
materiality level of each sustainability
issue and a prioritised list can be
derived.
BEEEERUBENMTIG_S__FE
MEEM RS U R EHRHNER
MR RN EE R ERIRETE
ZHIRRETIRF-
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Confirmation
2 3 w2

After completing the review and
assessment, the Group adjusted the
materiality level of the topics. There
are 12 issues classified as higher
materiality during the Reporting
Period.
EEMERRHE R AEEEHEE
BENEEHE-REHAR 1£H1218
IR EETB S
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EEMEE

Social
&
Environment He
BE Employment Operation

Materiality Issues

Air emission 9. Labour rights 18. Customer satisfaction
BERHERR ST EEWMEE
Greenhouse gas emission 10. Labour-management relations 19.  Customer service quality and
BE R BB MR complaints handling
Climate change 11.  Employee retention XEREE = REFEE
SIRE (L ®EEE 20. Customer health and safety
Energy efficiency 12.  Diversity and equal opportunity EEREHEZS
BEIR Zalt R FE#S 21.  Marketing and product and service
Water and effluents 18.  Non-discrimination labelling compliance
IR BEIK FELLAR EHEANMERERBEES R
Use of materials 14.  Occupational health and safety 22. Intellectual property
R A BEEEET e B
Waste management 15.  Employee training 23.  Customer privacy and data protection
BEEMERR & 853l BEEBALRERRE
Environmental compliance 16. Employee development 24. Responsible supply chain
RIEEH EEEE management

17.  Prevention of child labour and forced BEANHEREEE

labour 25. Business ethics
PrlEET RaahlssT [HESEE
26. Socio-economic compliance
HELEA

Community
HE

27.  Community investment
HEEE
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After considering and balancing the materiality of each ESG issues #EZEW FH SESGHEBHAEERETES
towards the Group and major stakeholders, the Group formulated ZEHMHENEEHE  KEEHITETUTHE

the list with the level of importance shown as below: ZHRREYXK:
Level of Importance ESG Materiality Topics
EEMRE ESGEZ#HEE
Most Important 11 Employee retention
BREZ wEREE
14 Occupational health and safety
BEREREZE
15 Employee training
(===l
18 Customer satisfaction
BERmEE
19 Customer service quality and complaints handling
BEFPRBEE RRFRIE
20 Customer health and safety
EPEREL S
21 Marketing and product and service labelling compliance
EHANRERERBZRES R
22 Intellectual property
B
23 Customer privacy and data protection
BEF R R EHRE
24 Responsible supply chain management
BEENHHEREE
25 Business ethics
BEERE
26 Socio-economic compliance
HEREER

90 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #8KEIMEBER L 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4F ¥



R -HERERRSE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Level of Importance

ESG Materiality Topics

EEMREE ESGEZ M EE
Important 02 Greenhouse gas emission
BEE = SR B BE
04 Energy efficiency
BE IR
08 Environmental compliance
RIRAH
09 Labour rights
BTN
10 Labour-management relations
12 Diversity and equal opportunity
Zb R TFERS
13 Non-discrimination
FERAR
16 Employee development
B8 %R
17 Prevention of child labour and forced labour
712 T Rogbl2s T
Relevant 01 Air emission
L FE SR HE R
03 Climate change
RARE b
05 Water and effluents
K K g 7K
06 Use of materials
MR A
07 Waste management
BEEYE IR
27 Community investment
HEREKRE
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BUSINESS ETHICS

We have zero tolerance to any issues related to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money-laundering. The Group continues to promote
integrity culture and complies with the requirements of relevant
laws and regulations, including but not limited to Anti-unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China and Anti-
monopoly Law of the People’s Republic of China.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any cases
of corruption litigation against the Company or employees, nor
was it aware of any material non-compliance with the laws and
regulations related to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, and
money laundering, that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

Integrity Management System

A departmental leadership accountability system has been
established to manage the operational integrity and compliance.
Department heads are responsible for monitoring the business
conduct of their subordinates, especially those who have frequent
communications and contact with external parties and clients.

The Prevention of Bribery, Extortion, Frauds and Money-laundering
Policy was in place to regulate employees’ practices.

opportunities; and

Prevention of Bribery,
Extortion, Frauds and
Money-laundering Policy
FrlbBERR - R HFFREBE
B

BREEE B

BRER

BAPIHRERE - 3R - BFEA O R AE B 0 ()
EERDNTEABREE -AEEFELBBIEX
b WETHEEARIEARNER AT
R (REARKMBERFAEEHRTE) &
(hEARKNE R ELEE) -

BERE AEESBEAHARFHEER
HRBESHRRT TEERNREEZREH
5 B ¥R BEERARBNERRE
BRBHAKREEEATENER-

BEEERS

BPCELAFIEEHE RS UWEBEEH
EMaRE-BHAETEARER TBNBER
SOALEEEFRIIFRALTREFBREE
%Q

BFIEHIED LB BR - BFFROEREK
RARBETNITH-

o Employees are forbidden to exploit their position to exact any benefits, which
include money, gifts, luxurious entertainment, and hospitality :
BB T8 &E AR RIREA A
o Strictly banned any unethical and unprofessional means to secure business

ERIRE N

BRENEMTERERIEE FEAMGEM : &
° Violations of this policy will result in disciplinary actions, including an official
warning and termination of employment.

ERIEBEKSIBLETS BREAEERELER-
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In contrast, we recognize and reward those who are honest, faithful
to their duties and remain steadfast in defending their integrity and
the Group’s reputation.

We have set up a whistle-blowing mechanism for our employees
to report any suspicion of ethical misconduct. This system covers
misfeasance, accepting unauthorized rebates, misappropriating
company assets, abuse of authority, leaking the Group’s
commercial secrets and intellectual properties, and any other
violation of relevant laws and regulations. Complaints can be filed
through emails, hotline, or in-person. If any business misconduct
is identified and confirmed, we will investigate and act promptly.
The Group maintains confidentiality of the reports, and protects
the reporting employees from any harassment, revenge, and other
discrimination.

During the Reporting Period, we organized anti-corruption trainings
for the Directors of the Company and 23 employees in Beijing, the
PRC. We reiterated our anti-corruption policies and regulations,
and how to observe these rules in the everyday operations in
various stages of our business activities.

SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAIN

Supply chain management is vital as it greatly influences the
quality of services of the Group. A long-term, stable, and
reliable relationship with the suppliers is key to our sustainable
development. Due to our service-oriented business nature, we
emphasize on supplier assessment by considering their service
delivery, product quality, after-sale services, financial conditions,

and appraisal from partners in the industry.

We obtain proposals from at least three prospective suppliers
to create fair and open competition for the suppliers. In addition
to price, product quality is another key consideration factor. For
instance, whether quality management certificates are attained
to guarantee the quality, safety and compatibility of our products
and services. We procure the luxury automobile components from

official or authorized brands.

)
b

S A (abe)
MWL

EYEBHE FEBTHIBN
g

EAEEBENESR -

BACRIBHHE FREBREMBES
EITRNERER - ZFERETRRE B
BREXEM BEAR ERBE RELAE
ERREEE KA BEREIA R MERBERA
BERNITR -RFANEEER RS
EELRF-MBERUBEERMBETREK
B BV EIREE RRERITE - ARBE SR
FRIEFRER AREFHEERTRE
WIE R H MBI

BEDE HA/ARBES RUNHEILR
M23BEEBZHRESHE - HMIEBRRES
BERRE  ARAINEEERGEENS 2
BEBRPETZERA-

WA R

HERERZHER HHEREXEAKEN
RHBEE -BHEEE RS BERATSERRE
TR PIEB A5 EE R 2 BBRE - ERHAFIAR
BRAZEBEE RIBFERERHHER 2
Az EEBREBRIMNRYE EmER &
BRSO R EARBHFTE -

BMMEL =R ETHERRIERE M
AHEREEATARMNBEERRE R TER
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The Group also assesses the quality of all the purchased goods
before accepting them into the inventory. For defective items, we
will return to the suppliers.

We fully understand the importance of business integrity to a long-
term and trustful relationship with suppliers. As written in the staff
handbook, receiving any form of benefits or gifts from our suppliers
in exchange for confidential business information is strictly
prohibited.

During the Reporting Period, we have worked with 10 suppliers. In
relation to the suppliers’ production places, a total of 7 suppliers
are from the PRC, 2 suppliers are from the United Kingdom and 1
supplier is from Italy. We have conducted assessments and reviews
on all suppliers.

Green Procurement

During supplier selection, we prioritize suppliers’ environmental
performance and strongly encourage eco-friendly procurement. We
carry out evaluations of potential risks in environmental, social, and
other areas to guarantee the smooth operation of the supply chain.

The Group manages the environmental risk in our procurement
practice, which is governed by the following Environmental
Procurement Management Policy:

° Any equipment that may pose environmental impacts and
associated with the manufacturing process should be
validated with reference to their environmental performance,
for example, energy efficiency and biodiversity;

° Relevant documentation will be requested from the suppliers
and assessed with their fulfilment of our environmental
standards during the procurement process;

° Environmental commitment from the suppliers should be
clearly stipulated in the cooperation contract;

o Products listed in the “Catalog of Toxic Chemicals Strictly
Restricted in China” are prohibited; and

° Higher preference will be given to products with international
certifications such as ISO 14001 and ISO 50001 or green
labels in the procurement process.

AEBEEMBRBREAREFNETRE
Az - BEMmERETHER-

BRIRAEENEY R EHERRDER
MEN BB - B T FMARIIEBRKEH
RS2 RISy AR
AR

HEMRE - RAEIORBEREF - BRARE
BEEEN HATRHEBKATE 2RH
FERIR B HE  ARIRHEREEE B AN -
BPEREmARERETHENEE

RERE

HEEHERR RABLEEEHEENRR
B YRANSERARRE - LAHRSE &
G E MR R B R AETT RS - AR R
JE G B ETT -

AEBEERBEKDERRERAR  WER
TRERBEERK:

o [EMFAIRERERFEREEBIEMRREL
RIBEERAERBAN  FII0ETR Wt
KEWZENM

o EREBIEG BRI IUEMX
AT B B R PR SR B 2 18
R

s AFAHNARBRIAREAFELZR
WA

s EBERE(PEEBRHINBEIER
ZE%) RIIHZER: &

o  REEBERELEEERFISO 14001 &
ISO 50001 B IZREHERBZE

[}
ao °©
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Besides the Environmental Procurement Management Policy, we FRIRBHREEIEREIN RFAEERKMAHE
require all our suppliers to adhere to our Supplier Environmental FEST RPN HERRE LT ST ATl
and Social Code of Conduct.

Supplier Environmental and Social Code of Conduct HEFREREETHTA

Suppliers must fully comply with national and local legal or regulatory requirements;
HEBVETEETER R ERERRT

Supplied products must meet the relevant national standards;
HEZERUVAREHEBBERZLE:

Suppliers must adhere to the principle of free and fair trade;
HEFLABTERRRATFESRA:

Suppliers must guarantee the labour rights of their employees, including but not limited to
abolishment of child and forced labour;
HERVAREREES ITEMN BEETRANME L RaHIS T

Suppliers must not insult, abuse, and intimidate their employees; and
HERTGEER EFARBES R

Suppliers must not discriminate employees based on the ground of ethnicity, age, sex, religious

belief, and any other reasons.
HEFIEERER Fi0 MR FHEMARENEMEBRERES -
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SERVICE AND PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group stands out from our consistent delivery of high-quality
services. We meet the high service standards of luxury automobile
manufacturers and maintain the expectations of users. By strictly
monitoring and carefully inspecting our products, we ensure that
our customers are satisfied with the purchase experience.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations concerning
health and safety, advertising, labelling, and privacy matters relating
to products and services and methods of redress that would have a
significant impact on the Group.

Product Quality and Safety

To guarantee the quality of the products and safeguard the health
and safety of our customers, the Group has stringent quality
assurance standards on all our luxury automobiles. Detailed
guidelines, management procedures and requirements are provided
to our employees in pursuing high quality standards and protecting
the safety conditions of our products by all means. We also adopt
the following quality assurance practices throughout the process:

1.  Relevant laws and regulations such as the Regulation
Concerning Management of Compulsory Product Certification
of the People’s Republic of China must be complied by
our suppliers to maintain quality standards. We reach a
mutual agreement with suppliers on the quality checking
and satisfactory conditions of the automobiles prior to car
delivery;

2. New automobiles purchased from our suppliers are carefully
inspected to ensure that they function properly;

BBREREME

AEE AR I — B B E IRF B A o 3
HABRABLEERNBERBEE RKIT
R AR E B E - T AME B B G BE R M AT Al
BEM BREMNEFERLNENEER

WEHE AEBY A MBERRER R EE
mERBEENRERZE BE RRNML
BEE  URERDEHERIER  BEA
SEEEAZENBER-

EmEEREZR

ARRFEMEERREREFERREEZE K
SEAMEBRABHERENMERER
E-BMAEILRHEFMANEEH BRI
FPREsSk  NBRkmEERE R 2 ERERM
EmBT 2 EREBRER  BMERA
NTEHERELE:

1. HEBLAET (PEARKMBE RG]
MEMREEIERT) FHBEEER
ARFmREFRE - RPN TERH
AEmMERE RIERKRR B ERET Y
MHEH:

ﬁﬁ% {’EE%
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3. A pre-delivery inspection system is adopted to perform
functional checking in Tianjin’s operation and confirmation of
“Pre-delivery Inspection Agreement” must be signed with our
customers; and

4. The after-sale service standards we provided to the
customers are reliable and responsive.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received a notice from
an automobile manufacturer stating that parts of a certain batch
of vehicles needed to be replaced, and some of the sold vehicles
had to be recalled, accounting for approximately 0.7% of the
sold vehicles. The Group contacted all customers who purchased
the affected vehicles, and all successful recall cases have been
resolved. The Group is not aware of any major complaints or safety
incidents related to this matter.

Customer Satisfaction

The Group is dedicated to providing a high-quality level of service
to our customers. By cultivating a sense of trust with our current
customers, we can create a solid foundation of loyal customers.
To achieve this, we not only solely concentrating on the vehicles
we sell and service, but also by exhibiting a sense of care for each
individual customer. In a word, we provide tailored advice and
services. Through close communication with our clients, we can
obtain honest opinions from loyal customers to keep improving

ourselves.

We have established and strengthened a Customer Satisfaction
Management Procedure (the “Procedure”) to govern our after-
sale services, enhance brand image and cultivate customer loyalty.
The following directives are set out in the Procedure to enhance
customer experience and satisfaction.

3. EMEMRXMATRERGE  §ERKZE
LETETHERE MEFLARSE
[RZAfRitein sl ERE: &

4 RAFMES R RS SRS

HEME AEREEE-RTERERNR
M EXLRERRNTHFERR MBS E
HERAAQLD  HEEEERHN0.7% - AEE
EBEMEREIZEERNTS  FIAKD
BEERSD SR - AN B A KA AL
ZEHFHANEARFALE SR

EFmEE

AEEB N REFPRHEEE RS - REEHE
ABEEPHEEER KMAE—ERENSE
HEPEM - B RATETINHMLE
MRBNAERS MEREE—R2FF &
mE < BARHMOER LR - BBEE
FEEZER RAMSUEREZTPHBIIE
BOER tMEEREARE-

BHEHFTLMRAEFPAEEEERF (R
Fl) MR EERRE  RBAMETRKE
BRBEEP HANZEFTEIIATIES
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Customer Satisfaction Directives

Enforcing Rules and Regulations

TR ERE

EFmBRERS

° Establish and improve various rules and regulations and enforce them well to ensure that all procedures

are fully implemented

BY ERBEHTERAUREE ABREDERABESF

Increasing Service Depthness

058 AR 75 R R

° Established advanced servicing facilities to offer services beyond simple repairs and consultations

BUSERERERE NIRHBEEREERERANRSE
° Use parts only from official and legitimate sources

RERKBE I RAERRZTHMHF

Cultivating Corporate Image

BIYDERR

o Build a quality-oriented corporate culture

BEAME RN EENL

o Enhance the overall quality of after-sale service personnel in order to develop a positive corporate image

and build trust
RAEEBRFEAEEREZE UEY IFACEFEREE

Improving Service Experience

HE RS RER
° Improve the environment of service locations and be attentive to details in each cycle in the service
process

T

HERBHRELIEREREFP S ERGBOME

=

The Group realizes that mere quality service cannot guarantee
business success, and its corporate image will also affect customer
satisfaction. Hence, we strive for continuous improvement of
customer perception of our business. A comfortable and enjoyable
environment is created to welcome our customers. In this regard,
we established requirements for our frontline staff in terms of
manner in greetings and handling enquires and service requests by
our clients.

We also emphasize our social responsibility and believe that a
business with a demonstrably strong commitment to its corporate
social responsibility will enjoy a higher relative advantage within the
industry.

7R 5 R KN B8 R AB B IR 7S I A RE AR B R TSR
W MEERETETETPMEE -Fitt-
BRBOBENE TP HARBEBOER -
BMEAHETFERANRREZGE, H
- HMERNRETHIEAMEEREAR
BEEPEALREZRORTE -

BATEERMOEERME WHRERERR
HEREAELRHEERENERTARER
BENHEET -
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Handling Complaints RFEE

Receiving feedback from customers is crucial for us to consistently EBFEXENHRPTHAEREHEEZ - AEH
enhance our services. The Group has established a proficient B3 7 EMERFEE#LE  UIRSTPmE
system for managing complaints, which allows us to improve [E - RfIEEGAKRFEFEEREREHS
customer satisfaction. We follow our integrated complaint handling ESFE RS R EZEMNEF UBKREP &
procedures and carefully handle complaints we received through & fHEIRFERIZHE S 20T -

channels including email and telephone to ease our customers’

concerns. The complaint handling mechanism is as follows:

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any & Hif - ANE B W TN ANE AR E R SRER
material complaints regarding the products or services. [EREEP N T
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Intellectual Property, Customer Privacy, Data Security and
Marketing

The Group places great emphasis on safeguarding the intellectual
property and privacy of our customers, as well as information
truthfulness. We take the confidentiality of our customers’
information seriously in order to foster a trustworthy and respectful
relationship with them. We strictly comply with the relevant law
and regulations including but not limited to the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests.

Intellectual Property

The access and use of suppliers’ intellectual properties, such as
trademarks, product designs and other technical specifications,
are governed by the terms and conditions set out in the dealership
agreement with the suppliers.

Customer Privacy and Data Security

We keep most of our information as encrypted electronic copies,
with access rights limited by a comprehensive authorisation matrix.
As illustrated in the staff handbook, all employees are required to
sign a non-disclosure agreement and are prohibited from transfer
of customers’ and employees’ privacy materials, trade secrets and
intellectual property to any third party.

Furthermore, we request our customers to acknowledge the
appropriate use of personal data by signing the Customer Personal
Information Privacy Statement, while giving them the full rights to
reject any unwanted uses.

100
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Marketing

In protecting the brand marks of the Group and aiming to
ensure the information truthfulness, our Marketing Department is
responsible for screening out any fraudulent advertisement and
promotional materials.

The Group will take immediate disciplinary actions if any violation is
discovered. Similarly, employees who discover and report serious
breach of data security policy will be rewarded accordingly. Each
department will conduct customer data privacy risk review every
month.

CARE FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

We highly value our employees, as their contributions are essential
to the success and growth of our business. The Group considers
it crucial to establish a positive and enjoyable work environment
for our employees, in accordance with our values of “Integrity,
Trustworthiness, Innovation, and Excellence.” As such, we strongly
believe in fostering a fair and non-discriminatory environment that
encourages our employees to explore their potential and develop

alongside the Group.

We strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and
Provisions of Beijing Municipality on Wage Payment of the People’s
Republic of China.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment, and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare that have a significant impact on the
Group.

"
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Employee Profile BEIHE

As at 31 March 2023, the Group employed 104 employees, all of R-ZZE-=F=A=+—H A£BFEH104
which were full-time employees based in China. The distribution of HET 2AURTFENE2EES - RIERI X
employees by gender and age group is as follows: FERAERNEPHEEDMEBERLAT

Total Workforce Unit 2023
ETHEY B —E=-=
Total number of employees person(s) 104
ETHY A

By gender

g e ek )

Male person(s) 81
St A

Female person(s) 23
i A

By age group

RERAR &S

18-30 person(s) 35
18-307% A

31-50 person(s) 64
31-5053% A

51 or above person(s) 5
513 A |k A
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The employee turnover data for the Reporting Period is as follows:

I

HwEHE - EE)

/)1

KRN :

=

Employee Turnover Unit 2023
ETRAR By —E_=Ff
Total turnover rate percentage 7.7%
BRELEE Bt

By gender

Sk e

Male percentage 8.6%
B AL

Female percentage 4.3%
pegia AL

By age group

RERARNE D

18-30 percentage 2.9%
18-3073% Bkt

31-50 percentage 10.9%
31-50%% Aot

51 or above percentage -
513 AL

By geographical region

R EE S

The PRC percentage 7.7%
A Bkt
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Employment Management Policy EREEEBR

The Group has established a comprehensive employment S£ECEVEHEMNERSEECZNSEZEN
management system and a high-quality talent team. Our AFABHE - RFNEBEEEEZKZENATH
employment management system focuses on the following: | :

Employment Practices

EEES

The Group holds all employees in high regard. We are dedicated to upholding
the values of openness, justice, and fairness in our human resources (“HR”)
management, and advocating meritocracy. Our employees are expected to fulfil
their obligations with honesty and the highest standard of professionalism and
contribute their talents to the development of the Group.
AEBSEERMBEE -HMBNEANEREERTAM RAERRATHIR
A - MEZEAAES -ZMPALETEEREMUZSEXREBITEAERR AKX
EENERERMK-

Compensation

# B

104

The Group makes a concerted effort to provide competitive compensation
packages to our employees. Periodically, we assess and revise our salary levels
in accordance with the Group’s operational circumstances and market rates.
Within the designated range for each position, salary will be determined by
attitude, professional skills, and achievements. Our salary level complies with the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.
AEEXREREERBEABRFNINFHEE - BAMETRERIEENEEMRNR
EisER% A LABREMNGFeK T - BEBUNFUREECHE F
HESEANIRTIERE ZEREMKARET - HMANF KSR EBEERE
FOERR -
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Dismissal

e

"

We make every effort to support our staff in fulfilling their roles and
responsibilities. In the event that an employee is unable to meet our
expectations, we may provide additional training or transfer them to another
position. However, if no improvement is observed after all reasonable assistance
and accommodation are made, we will initiate the dismissal procedure according
to the relevant labour law of the PRC.

BMENGHEIRITEBBREC - RESXRBAREMSHMEL KGR M
BIMEI A EEFAB - AT WEMBEEEXERGHARKRINRELE &
MAERRAIEERAL TANRARERERET -

Promotion

The Group has established a transparent career progression framework with a
clear hierarchy, outlining potential job position advancements and corresponding
salary increases. Opportunity for career advancement is offered to any employee
with excellent performance. In making promotion decisions, we consider various
criteria, including work performance, development potential, team spirit and
personal character.

AEEBYABRNER REEEERTEEBURFSAANETERM KRS
BMEEARFXEEAREG RMEELETATAEERZEKE  BEIER
W BREN BEEBMEARTE-

We will initiate the internal recruitment procedure for prospective employees
to apply and fill the post whenever vacancies are available. We also invite
departmental recommendations and evaluations.

WmEZEE KM AEEREERMENIIBIZIEF - DA B E B w8 B B - F 1M
TR B EBPIHE R AT AZ ©
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Equal and Inclusive
Workplace

FPEHLBNIESH

The Group places great importance on fairness and equal opportunities in the
workplace. We strive to ensure that all employees are treated equitably, and
that recruitment and promotion decisions are based solely on an individual’s
qualifications, experience, potential, and skills relevant to the job.
REBEFFZEETERENAFRTIERS BB HER-RALC  BEREF
IREMBENREANER KR B RETERBOREELERE-

Furthermore, the Group advocates a caring and courteous culture in the
workplace, and does not tolerate discrimination based on age, gender, ethnicity,
or any other form of harassment. Our employees are encouraged to compete in
a constructive way to foster professional and personal growth.

S AEBETIESFIEEHEERE U ARRFER M BERERSEME
HEABRE - RMXBEERUERFE REZEREAKK-

Work and Rest Period

THERRBHY

Our standard work hours are limited to 8 hours a day and 40 hours a week. Our
staff are encouraged to finish work in a normal working period instead of working
overtime. Managers or supervisors are forbidden to require unnecessary overtime
work from employees or without consideration of the circumstances of the
employees. Upon approval, employees who accept the necessary overtime work,
will be compensated according to our Overtime Work Management Procedure.
BMHZETR AT RSN RESEIONG AR -BMEBE TE B ARER
FTERIE MR TE-RBXFTEIEEREETNLENN T E5=REEER
BRERMME - — &4t - BEXLENHNEESERRBREMNBR IEERETE
SHE-

Apart from statutory holidays, annual leaves, and sick leaves, the Group’s
employees are also entitled to personal leaves, marriage leaves, bereavement
leaves, paternity, and maternity leaves and overtime compensation leaves.
BRZEERR FREBRRIN AEERETEEER EHR BIMER FEBRNRE
BRIA R BR TERR -
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Labour Standard

The Group fully respects human and labour rights, and strictly
abides by the law and regulations including but not limited to the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China and Provisions on
the Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the People’s Republic of
China.

Our recruitment policy dearly states that any employment must
be established based on mutual consensus, and employment
contracts must not be formed under coercion. Employment will be
immediately terminated if we discovered the information provided
by the employee is inaccurate, or that the contract is not formed on
a voluntary basis.

The HR department will check the identification documents of all
candidates in the recruitment process to ensure they are at least 16
years old, although we prefer candidates of at least 18 years old in
general.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to
preventing child and forced labour that would have a significant
impact on the Group.

Talent Development

The growth and success of our business are closely tied to the
development of our employees. The Group places great emphasis
on employee training to enhance their professional skills, increase
their efficiency, and strengthen their abilities. As we have a
high standard in service quality, we establish an annual training
programme with various trainings provided for our employees,
including orientation training, departmental training and external
training and supports with learning subsidies to meet the market
demand for professionals.

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #1BKEEEBE R L 7
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BENTLEY

BENTAYGA EWEB LAUNCH TRAINING
REGWmAS LA .

In terms of orientation training, new employees on probation
will receive orientation training under the assistance of the HR
department. Each functional department will organize relevant
foundational knowledge trainings. The orientation training covers
an overview of the history, current operations and growth targets
of the Group. We also communicate the expectations regarding the
role and responsibilities of each employee included the rules and

conduct codes of the Group through the training.

In terms of on-job training, each department will regularly prepare
and review training materials. The training programmes covers
the topics relating to technical skills for repairs and maintenance,
operational skills and case study, workplace safety and anti-
corruption. In addition, our employees have ample opportunities to
participate in training sessions provided by our licensed suppliers
due to the Group’s partnerships with multiple reputable automobile
brands.

Our vehicle maintenance services prioritize safety above all else, as
poorly maintained vehicles can present significant safety hazards to
drivers, passengers, other road users, and the public at large. We
take great care to ensure that all vehicles are thoroughly examined
for both usability and safety. Therefore, we require our technicians
to have a thorough understanding of different systems and parts
of the vehicles. We arrange various examinations at different
level of difficulties to test our technical staff on their professional
knowledge. During the Reporting Period, we specialized technical
training to our technicians to enhance their work efficiency and
professional maintenance skills for new vehicle models and parts.
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During the Reporting Period, the training data by gender and R&HIR - =M B M (8 B 18RI & 5 Y 1S 5| 8%

employee category is as follows: R

Employee Training Unit 2023
1& 8 5% 5l B —E2=-=
Percentage of employee trained

ZHETEDL

By gender

&1 Bl &l o

Male percentage 100%
EXa Bkt

Female percentage 100%
Z Bkt

By employee category

RESERE S

Senior Management percentage 100%
ESARER B

Middle Management/Supervisor percentage 100%
hRERE/ EE ERalsd

General staff percentage 100%
—m®ET Bkt

Average training hours per employee

BEEINFTHZIEEH

By gender

&1 Bl &l o

Male hour(s) 84
B N

Female hour(s) 72
gl N

By employee category

RESERE S

Senior Management hour(s) 96
BREIRE B

Middle Management/Supervisor hour(s) 68
hRERE/ E¥® /INB

General staff hour(s) 83
—RET N
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group recognizes that the well-being and safety of our
employees are crucial factors in building a sustainable business. As
the work procedures involving close contact with various chemicals
and gaseous substances, or operations of heavy machinery, we
have a sound management mechanism for occupational safety and
health (“OSH”) in place.

Our OSH management system is developed based on the relevant
laws and regulations including but not limited to the Work Safety
Law of People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, Emergency Response Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and Special Equipment Safety Law of the People’s Republic

of China.

During the Reporting Period, no work-related injury and loss of
workday were recorded. There had been no work-related fatalities
Also, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws

for the past 3 years (including the Reporting Period).

and regulations in relation to provide a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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Safety Risk Identification and Prevention

The Group consistently implements safety precautionary measures

to mitigate potential risks, including hazardous operations, fires, [& -

AEE-EEH

BiEERER )\ﬁz LB2mER - BEM

)
b

BRARARZZEAR

2 [ &3 8 5 LA R B8 £ &

chemical spills, electrical hazards, and mechanical failures, in order HWHIE UWERERLFHNEEFE B
to minimize the negative impact of accidents. The possible major HITX EfE ks & EEEE G 0T :

risks and their relative measures are listed below:

Fire

K

e Regularly inspect firefighting equipment °

e Establish emergency plans and escaping routes o

e Conduct fire drill training regularly °

e Strict regulations in handling flammable operational equipment °
and substances

TEEAAROBIBS N R 1

Bl 5T R 2T 8 Rk A B AR
TEHETT S E BB B FI R
BRRESRBRERBRYELIE

Chemical Spillage

BiRIEE R

* Regular training on safety drill °

e Strictly comply with the safety guide on harmful chemical °
spillage

* Regular inspection in the handling of production, transportation, ©
and disposal of chemical substances
¢ All employees must be qualified and trained before handling the ¢

chemicals

EHRZ2ET IR
BRETEELLEmBRRL2ES
EHiRELE BHNEERENLE
& pE iR
MERENEE(CEmATLALEN
AR REZE

Operational Risk

ol
|
3 A

BIER R

e Provision of high quality personal protective equipment for °
employees

e Employees must be trained before handling operational °
machineries

e Attach safety instructions and procedures in conspicuous zones e

REERHEBEEEARERS

B BRI FH I AT & B i X157
REREREZ2HERRERF

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED $12#ElFR &£ B AR A 7 1 1 1

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4



RE -HEREB|MS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Production Safety

In accordance with Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and Provisions
on the Administration of Occupational Health at Workplaces, the
Group provides regular annual health checks for employees. We
have renewed the annual service contracts with local medical
centers to conduct occupational health medical tests for our
employees. Employees will take the tests once at the beginning
and the end of employment, and regularly during employment.

The Group implements production safety accountability system
in the workshops. We have established a clear OSH performance
review and the accompanying reward and punishment mechanism
to encourage the management of the workshops to constantly
improve their OSH performance. We also conducted the
emergency drills on fire and chemical spillage incidents during the
Reporting Period.

OSH Management Policies and Guidelines

The Group has developed a set of working guidelines to establish
standards for the management and implementation of OSH best
practices during operations for our employees at all levels. They
include but not limited to the following areas:

AN

Seasonal Fire Safety Precautions
(summer and winter)
FENEZR2TEY
(EFERESF)

©

Handling Hazardous
Chemical And Waste
BEFE(CRRREEY

Inventory Storage Safety
Regulations

FRHFRZRAG

Spraying Booth Usage
and Maintenance

NES%R R P R i o
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Property Storage and
Handling of Electric Tools

MEHEREERENTA

Instructions for Using Personal
Protective Equipment

A RERBERET
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Occupational safety procedures and warning signs are attached
in high-risk locations according to risk assessment results. Our
employees are required to wear protective gear properly to prevent
occupational diseases and they are provided with sufficient
preventive measures.

OSH Trainings

The Group believes that production and safety are inseparable,
hence ‘Production safety education is necessary wherever
production takes place’.

New management staff and production safety management
personnel of each production unit must complete no less than 32
hours of initial safety training before they are allowed to formally
assuming their post. They are also required to complete annual
training of at least 12 hours.

Training needs assessments and training plans are prepared
annually for employees to get familiar with our production safety
policies and operation guides. During the Reporting Period, we
delivered trainings cover the following aspects:

° legal compliance;

° safety operations skills and techniques in different production
processes;

° fire safety;

° company rules and regulations;

° specialized operations safety; and

° usage of personal protective equipment.

Work-life Balance

The Group advocates work-life balance and cares about its
employees’ mental health. Building close relationships among

employees are critical to foster a harmonious atmosphere and a
sense of belonging to the Group.

"

EERHERER
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CREATING VALUE FOR ENVIRONMENT

As a vendor of the several world-renowned automobile brands,
our subsidiaries are required to operate in accordance with the
environmental standards adopted by the manufacturers. Under our
Environmental Management System (‘EMS”), the management of
each subsidiary is responsible for implementing and monitoring
the operations to ensure compliance with suppliers’ standards and
national standards. We adhere to relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Water Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environment
Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the laws and regulations related to
the air and greenhouse gas emission, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes that
would have a significant impact on the Group.
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Emission Management

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Electricity accounts for the majority of our energy consumption and
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission.

the emission data is as follows:

During the Reporting Period,

BmER

B

BENERFMERERELAEREBHIRNER
BB o & MR PRREURN T

GHG Emissions Unit 2023 2022
BERB SN B A —g-=f —B-—f
Scope 1: Direct emissions Tonnes CO2 equivalent 29.90 68.29
HET: BEHEN WS LiRE 8
Scope 2: Energy indirect emissions Tonnes CO:2 equivalent 743.64 981.81
&[22 - gEIREE R | LIRE S
Scope 3: Other indirect emissions'’ Tonnes CO2 equivalent 5.94 12.49
#[E3 - AR HE W_SiixEE
Total GHG emissions Tonnes CO: equivalent 779.48 1,062.60
BERBBHEKRE WMo-gtHREE
Intensity? Tonnes CO2 equivalent/

HKD million revenue 0.22 0.28
=g M_EltimEE BEBTkE

Note 1: The scope 3 emission data are from the source of business air

travel and paper disposal.

Note 2: The unit of measurement used in 2022 data has been adjusted to

improve the reference and comparability.

SMEBHMAIBRERLRELINABR
BEBEMEL-

TR CFHNHRBFAEEMCIERE
RS2 Z M MAT L1 -
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The Group set up short-term and long-term emission reduction
targets. By 2030, we planned to reduce scope 1 and 2 GHG
emission intensity by 35%. By 2050, we are committed to achieve
carbon neutrality. To achieve this, we established policy to reduce
electricity consumption.

FAiEFERSNES YRABEBECMAB

people in the office;
BRI ERREBEZLEDEE UHEEERPAEAHTES

> @ ®a

RREER - FAMELVEARLE-

AEEREFRALRRBBRFEZRE - R-_T=F
F - BAF SR ER S E M E 2/ B
HEREIS% R_ZERTF BMARHNER
fixrp A0 St - RIS HIE R A B B RER R
o

Turn off idling machines and electrical appliances and maximise the use of sunlight during daytime;

Each workstation is equipped with an individual LED desk lamp for employees to use when there are few

B A

The standard air conditioner’s temperature should be kept at 25T or above; and

When the air-conditioners are on, all windows and doors must be closed.
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Air Emissions

We are consistently monitoring our emissions with great care. The
Group has consistently improved our data collection system. During
the Reporting Period, the air emission generated by vehicle fuel
combustion as follows:

"

JBE 5% BB
BB EERIERIEN - AEETH =
HBURWE R 5 - & MR EE@RARE

PREEMBEREMEIRLT

Air Emissions Unit 2023 2022
BER N By —=E—-= —E—-=
Nitrogen oxides (“NOXx”) kg 8.45 15514
AEY NS

Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) kg 0.17 0.28
Hmaty NI

Particulate matter (“PM”) kg 0.62 1.08
R NI

In March 20283, we engaged an independent testing laboratory to
conduct a series of environmental emission tests against national
standards. We identified the air emissions from our operations
consisting mainly of volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”),
benzene, toluene, dimethylbenzene, non-methane hydrocarbon
and carbon monoxide. These are produced through the process of
paint spraying, grinding, and polishing of the vehicles.

We have been sparing no efforts in minimising such emissions
by setting up green workplace guidelines and with the aid of the
latest technology, including industrial-grade air purification device
at our paint spraying compartment. The device is equipped with
multi-layer filters. With the aid of the device, the VOCs and dust
generated could be filtered out and decomposed through the
process of ultra-violet photocatalytic oxidation.

E/\‘:?__¢ A BPEEB AT
R RIEAEETT —E B IRIB AU o T
ERERAEENERINETEREEES
ey K BE. —FXK JFREmELs
MR —E ik - 2 RERTEEZE ITERW
HIFe

TR T E N ERR S

ol WERRHBX BREEERE

%ﬁﬁ ERFLR B ARBEBEERE
BEMELZEENERICEMENE X
BERIMREBACIZFFEEPEARE -

HET 4% & TEERIR

V—H#t
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To promote responsible use of company vehicles thereby
controlling the emission, the administrative departments keep
records of vehicle use and fuelling. In addition, the Group
implements vehicle management policy with working guideline to

regulate the use of company vehicles by our employees:

o Encourage public or greener transportation options as far as
practicable;

° Optimise the route to reduce mileage and ask employees who
travel to the same destination to travel together;

° Prohibit and punish the abuse of vehicles for private use or
unauthorised trips; and

° Check the fuelling records to detect any irregularities in
consumption.

Use of Resources

Apart from being a cost control measure, promoting responsible
consumption of resources reduces our overall carbon footprint
and enhances the sustainability of our business. By encouraging
behavioural changes and proactive actions, the Group believes
we can make significantly positive changes over time. Therefore,
we encourage our employees to use the office supplies wisely and
responsibly in order to cultivate a sustainable working habit.

118

ANNUAL REPORT 20234F ¥

REEBETHERRTER  fEmES PR
B BEEMMELEERERBANEHE -
AN AEEEFIEEMEERREEE TF
ol BETREERAARERETRE

s HBEEEBERWITERTERREER

AHERBIABRARRZIBTLLR:

o ELRRARAMER BB I BERKATER—
AR rEE MERT:

o I FFNIKE]
&%mﬁk,

BB A S AR

o ERMEHLHEUARATAIAISEERG
o

&ERER

REBETMERER TR RKAZGIEE
IR D IR AP EE R VAR B BF SR BB T+ A 0 7]
FEL - BBRBNBTARRRERTE:
AEBERERMAAIAERSIERERNLRRE -
At - IS EEEREMEEEERRQ
EfMm EMERHAIRENTHERE-

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #8KEIMEBER L 7



RE-HAERERMRSE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Energy Efficiency

We are dedicated to promoting environmentally sustainable
operations and are actively working to implement measures that will
reduce our overall consumption of energy resources. The Group is
committed to source 100% renewable energy by 2040.

BE R 3%

BB AORRERBAHEES  WRERGEHRS
BRI BN A EEEAFR T
NWEFERASAFERITBAERER-

Energy Use Unit 2023 2022
Dbk B —g==% ===
Direct energy (Petrol) MWh 102.38 161.25
HERR (7H) JK FL B

Indirect energy (Purchased electricity) MWh 1,308.94 1,042.38
MER (INERE Ik F BF

Total energy consumption MWh 1,406.32 1,203.63
REREEE Ik FLBF

Intensity’ MWh/HKD million revenue 0.40 0.32
wE KRR, BEAEITRE

Note 1: The unit of measurement used in 2022 data has been adjusted to &1 —Z-—FWNHEBEAESECMDERE

improve the reference and comparability.

In future, we will continue to review and set target for our
operation to drive reduction through the electricity conservation in
production, use of renewable energy and increasing employees’
environmental awareness.

RS2 ZMMAlt e

BPRRSEERILREEL BT BB
MEERE EAABLRRNRESEIHNR
RE R HEED R E

Water Efficiency ok 3 a7

Our water consumption consists mostly of domestic use and car- FIE A EZ D AR ABEERAKETHEER
washing in the workshops. The water consumption is summarised 7K #/KET :

as follows:

Water Resource Unit 2023 2022
K& R B —E=-= =F==
Total water consumption m3 5,769 5,867
BIEKE 3K

Intensity’ m3/HKD million revenue 1.65 1.54
mE SR BB EE TR

Total effluent discharged m?3 5,589 5,501
T KE 3 F5 K

Intensity’ m3/HKD million revenue 1.60 1.45
mE MNAKEEEE TS

Note 1: The unit of measurement used in 2022 data has been adjusted to  #iF1: —E - —FHHEBEFELELCIERAE -

improve the reference and comparability.

RS2 EZMMAT 1
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The Group believe that the most effective way to conserve water
is by reducing water consumption at source. We have established
water efficiency management procedures for our subsidiaries.
The administrative departments are responsible for monitoring
the water consumption of the Group and develop working plans
and targets on enhancing our water efficiency in our operations.
We are committed to reduce 8% of water consumption intensity
for operations in both Beijing and Tianjin in the PRC by 2050.
Therefore, we encourage our employees to adopt the following
measures to save water.

¢ Collect greywater from car washing
and reuse it after sedimentation and
filtering treatment
WEESRES KO TR RIB IR RIE R E
A

e Collect unheated shower water for
toilet flushing or irrigation

WEE SR INEH A K A RIS R

Monitor

BE

BB EREREROKETAELIRER
DRK - B AHE T M B 2 R HIRT ARk E
EEEF - TTHAFIBRERAKENFEK
W HIET TEAR B 2 B4R - MR A B AR 7%
FKRRE - HPIEER —ERTFREREIL
RAMRERFRFEKTEA8% ° FH It -
s B) B TERERA TR 2R AR A A 7K

¢ Install water-saving showerheads,
water taps and dual flush toilets

TREKEZER KEERREEER

¢ Do laundry only when the load is full

A EITHER

¢ Install and check for water meters regularly

RERRERGEEKE

*  Check for leakage in pipes and water taps

BEIKE RIKFEBHZRIER

We are committed to ensuring that our sewage discharge does
not have any significant environmental impact. To achieve this, we
employ environmentally friendly detergents and treat the sewage in
our septic tank before discharging it. In March 2023, we engaged
an independent testing laboratory to conduct a series of effluent
discharged tests against national standards. In the test, a total of
9 items including but not limited to pH value, COD and BOD5 are
identified.

To conserve water resources and reduce sewage discharge, we
recycle and reuse the effluent from the car washing process in
the service centre and encourage our employees to avoid wasting
running water when not needed. We carry out testing against the
water quality of our sewage regularly to ensure compliance with the
discharge requirements.
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Packaging Materials

Paper (including cartoon boxes), plastics and wood are the main
packaging materials. During the Reporting Period, the relevant data
of packaging materials is as follows:

BEHH

MR (BRREM) Z2BUAMASIEEERM
oS HE BEMHEBEERIT

Packaging Materials Unit 2023 2022
BEME B —E=-= —F=-=
Total usage kg 29.07 24.00
BERE AR

Intensity’ kg/HKD million revenue 0.008 0.006
mnE! NI =R &

Note 1: The unit of measurement used in 2022 data has been adjusted to
improve the reference and comparability.

Waste Management

The Group acknowledges that careless and inappropriate waste
disposal can have negative environmental consequences. All of
the waste is segregated into hazardous and general waste and go
through separate disposal procedures accordingly. To enhance the
waste management, we aim to establish an internal recycle/reuse
target and achieve 80% or above recycle or reuse rate by 2030.

The Group has formulated clear and specific guidelines on waste
management. During the Reporting Period, the data of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste are as follows:

i1 —E_FNBBFEBEUCIERE
AR ®2Z ML -
BRERYNER

AEBFRERAZRTENEEREY IR
BEFAAAFE -FBEEEMASENREE
N—REEY WKBEEEZBIEERF-
BT MEEEVERE BMEEELAZEU
SEABR WE_T=TFEFL0%HU L
pERERAE-

REBEREEMEEGTE TEMRELEN
ol - RERHE AEMNEZEZYNEEN
T

Type of Waste Unit 2023 2022
BEYER By —E—-= —E=-=
Hazardous waste tonnes 23.15 26.66
BEBEY W

Intensity’ tonnes/HKD million revenue 0.007 0.007
BE We A EB TG

Non-hazardous waste tonnes 1.70 0.10
BEBREY Mg

Intensity’ tonnes/HKD million revenue 0.0005 0.00003
=g WE A EB TS

Note 1: The unit of measurement used in 2022 data has been adjusted to
improve the reference and comparability.

B SRS CTMBENBEEUCERE

AIRS2EMMAT I -
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Hazardous Waste

We take a proactive approach to promoting cleaner production in
order to reduce the amount of hazardous waste generated. Due to
the nature of our business, we inevitably produce certain types of
hazardous waste such as waste oil, lead acid batteries, and waste
filters. To mitigate the environmental impacts, we have set up a
Hazardous Waste Management System to regulate the disposal
and management of hazardous waste, and other measures to
reduce hazardous waste at source. The details of waste volume,
storage, transfer, and treatment are monitored by the management
of each subsidiary.

area for hazardous waste;

Hazardous Waste
Management System

HEBRRNERBE

properly; and

ELEZEEYMSHLE D8 &
° Chemical and flammable waste streams are kept away from each other; and
t2mRZREDRRE DB &
° Warning signs and labels are displayed in hazardous waste storage areas.
EEREVRFEAGEINESHRRER-

BEEERY

BPESEEERFLE BERSELARS
BEEY AWM EREHUE  BPELEL
REH - R EM N EROEREREEY - B
CHRBNTE RACBRUAZTEENERE
HE REATBEEVNREEREER UK
RIEAIEIRIER DB EERY AR - B
E R BEREENHBHHENBEAR

EEEER-

° Generated waste will be recorded, categorised, sealed and stored in a designated

HERBEBREMREEHWERT:

o Renew service contracts with licensed waste collectors, who handle these wastes

HSERRMRERETRBAN ZEREZFERY K

In the event of leakage, we will immediately notify the affected parties and
residents nearby, as well as report to the management and other government
agencies such as local environmental protection bureau in the PRC.

Hazardous Waste

IR BB PT25 H A R T 4 B B R o
Disposal

FEBRRYEE

Our employees are encouraged to reduce the generation of
hazardous waste through minimising the use of battery, marker pen
and fluorescent light tube whenever possible. Instead of discarding
disposable gloves that are contaminated by waste oil directly, the
gloves are collected for cleaning and reuse. lllegal dumping of
hazardous waste is strictly forbidden.
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To ensure our employees are familiar with our hazardous waste
management policy, we have conducted training on hazardous
waste management training, which covered including but not
limited to our hazardous waste management system, requirement,
handling procedures, as well as emergency plan concerning
hazardous waste leakage or contamination incidents.

Non-hazardous Waste

Our solid waste management policy regulates the handling and
disposal of general waste and ensures compliance with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations. The general waste
must be segregated into recyclables and non-recyclables and put
into designated bins for our employees to conveniently sort their
domestic waste. Recyclables such as paper, plastic, glass bottles
and metal cans are handled by recycling service providers, while
non-recyclable waste is collected by qualified contractors.

Most of our material consumption comes from office use like
paper, stationery, or other office supplies. For paper use, we have
established a resource-saving policy which instructs our employees
to switch to electronic channels both for internal and external
communications. When printing is necessary, they must check and
adjust the document as carefully as possible to avoid misprinting.
Scrap and used paper are collected for further use.

We also phased out disposable items such as cups and
conventional pens. Similarly, glue is replaced with clips to reduce
plastic waste from glue containers. Employees should bring their
own cup and refill water at our office. To encourage employees
to adopt a more sustainable working habit, the Group awards the
employees who make constructive suggestions or improvement in
saving resources. On the other hand, repeated failure in observing
the policy will receive a verbal warning and even be fined.

)
b

%Eﬁ%ﬁﬁE@f@é?ﬂ%ﬁ%@ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ“
BPEETHERASEENEEE =5
Eﬁﬁwﬁﬁ%ufé‘%EE‘FEIE'&F“LA&%%EQ
BEEBRYRRISAEHNERTE -

Bl B

HEZERY

BAWERERZRYEERRRE —REEY
E’JFEEE&FEEF% HERTEERREERER
ER o —RREZEW WA D E AR B KA [E
WrEZEY)  WRAREWREERN  UWEREY

EEBERYELDR AR BB WAL
& B E 5 A] [ U R AR B [T W AR TS e
FEHE - MR B EEEY A h & B R REEK

%o

BRPAMAOBARAEHREAMRER  XANHE
o AERG-BASTH RMEHFTHNE
REE  EREENAEFRELETAINGR
AomB BB B THAREHFAR
ERFBXM - BRERIIE - EE R E S
MRS TWEBITER-

BRAIME LS BARER - flInAN RERE
H o B #RH - ASRFEUR BK - B D Bkl &
REVEBRERY) - B B B 1R A T RI/KIRR
RERK  REBEERAAKELERNE
B AEBEBEMHERT ERMARZRNE
MR BRENEE - Z—hE —BE
REXEREINBEESEESHER -
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Cherish Natural Resource

Climate change is accelerating at an alarming rate, causing us to
be more concerned than ever about environmental stewardship.
The Group thinks that it is vital to take responsibility and mitigate
the potential negative impact of our actions on the environment for
the business, the community, and the future generations.

In order to systematically control the environmental impacts
throughout our operation, we have established an ISO 14001:2015
certified Environmental Management System. The EMS helps to
identify, manage, and mitigate the environmental risks associated
with our operational processes as well as to provide a framework
for setting out specific and measurable environmental objectives
for improving our environmental performance, so that the resources

required can be allocated accordingly.

As a responsible enterprise, we are dedicated to providing our
employees with regular training sessions on various environmental
topics in order to enhance their environmental awareness.
During the Reporting Period, we organized a comprehensive
training session on EMS fundamentals for all employees at the
service center in Beijing, the PRC. The training focused on the
establishment of EMS and its various elements, including but not
limited to relevant environmental laws and regulations, pollution
management, and environmental policies and knowledge.
Additionally, we held environmental activities aimed at educating
the public on the importance of environmental protection.
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Combatting Climate Change

As a conscientious enterprise, the Group recognizes the growing
global concern surrounding climate change and acknowledges
the potential transitional risks that it poses to our business. The
nation’s long-term climate targets of achieving emission peak by
2030 and carbon neutrality by 2060 have made carbon reduction
a primary focus in the “14th Five Year Plan” for ecological and
environmental protection. Energy saving, consumption reduction
and carbon reduction will inevitably become the new direction of
corporate development.

Commitment and Strategy
To make positive impacts in the global mission of combating

climate change, the Group established Climate Change Policy as
part of our forward action plan.

"

¥R IRE ML

ER—RBENLE AKE B E2IRER
& B & BlT  WRBIEHRMNEBE
REBEEBLER BRELHNER_T=F
FRBERETEE  —EATEHERETM
MESREBER ERBEERATERE] R
FAERRERENEZEH 8L FRE R
S N Al R A R B RAF [ -

R i 5 B

RTHEHSRKRB(CHDIREPELBER
& FAEBECHEREECHE EARMKR
RITERT IR — B2 °

° Set and implement long-term carbon emission reduction goals to reduce the carbon

“'-'1" footprint;
. BRI B iR EBOREE B R3O D iR 2 I
° Adopt industry best practices in green building development and energy and carbon
Mit;;?;”‘ management to improve the energy efficiency of business operations;
o¥

ERERERRMMENERMBEETRATARERE BRREBELNHERYRE:

o Advocate and encourage employees, suppliers, tenants, and other customers to reduce
carbon emissions in their daily business activities; and
BENMSKBET HEm HPMEMELPERFTERERP RN &

o Consider climate change factors in the procurement process and encourage the use of
low-carbon and high energy-efficient products and materials.
ERBBERETZBREE(CEE IR E R ERNS RS E m Mk -
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Adaptation

Resistance

126

Lo

il

nehn

Assess the risks and opportunities brought about by climate change, and understand the
impact of climate change on business operations, financial risks, and opportunities;
BREESS FWEMXE’JH R S IR T BRIESECHEBESNTEREEEN KR
b B 14 5B

Formulate appropriate operating procedures and measures to prevent or reduce the
impact of climate change on the company’s existing properties, and seize opportunities
presented by climate change; and

%\Jié%ﬁmf’ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ?ﬂﬁ% CATER SO A RAR E LB R A R B W R ER R AR - I
PERIE LTRSS

Continuously improve the deS|gn of the properties to prevent or reduce the impact of
climate change on new development projects.

SERITE T ENRE ARG SR RIRE(CH N ERIAR T ER AR E-

Incorporate climate change risks into the enterprise risk management process;
ERIEERARAACERREIRREF

Develop appropriate crisis management plans to deal with more frequent extreme
weather events caused by climate change;
HERBENEHRERETRRENEREZCHSIBLE /BENRGRRAEM:

Provide relevant information and resources to strengthen resilience and monitor the
impact of climate change on business and carbon management goals and objectives;
REBERESMERE MR EFGE N WEARGEECHEBNZENARNREERHN
HAR:

Communicate with stakeholders such as employees, suppliers, tenants, other customers,
and local communities, and convey information about the impact of climate change and
the Company’s climate change strategy, and assist them to improve their ability to resist
climate change; and

HET #tE/m HF HMEF XM/ BREFNHEBE SEAEREELCLTZENAE
ARDAIMERELRE EMmMRAREREE NN &

Disclose the Company’s risks related to climate change and management measures.

BREAFERKRELEHENRARLEEREE-
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Climate-related Risks and Responses

Regarding physical risks, we are already witnessing increasing
frequency of extreme weather events and natural hazards (such
as severe flooding). Preparing for and responding to the climate
physical risks have become a key agenda for the Group’s

operational management.

In view of the risk of extreme weather, we made preparation to
mitigate the impact on our operation. During the rainy season,
we regularly carry out inspections of the sealants around the
doors and windows of our warehouses to look for water leaks.
We also inspect the drainage of the workshops to ensure they are
functional. We keep a stock of sandbags which are to be placed
around the entrances and exits as a precautionary measure when a
heavy rainfall is anticipated.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group recognizes the importance of giving back to the
community and investing in projects that create a positive impact
on society. We seek opportunities to promote love and care culture
in our society by echoing with our corporate culture.

Sponsorship on Public Welfare
The Group provided an office located under our own property

NmAELE) for

operation. The foundation was established in 2017 and mainly

free of charge for Minglun Foundation (1t 5 BA @

engaged in public welfare activities such as poverty alleviation,
supporting disadvantaged individuals, assisting persons with
disabilities, and aiding students. The foundation has been steadfast
in its commitment to support vulnerable groups in society, promote
national spirit, advance public welfare initiatives, and foster the
development of public welfare undertakings in Beijing.

1R 76 B /B B A E

BRERRE BRMERERmRAALBE AL

%(ﬁ k/Z/m)Eﬁgfﬂﬁ?*?E ARIEER
REEEEREEKARNEBZEEEE Y
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RERELAARED B AEEDEHE-
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Sponsorship for the Disabled

On May 15, 2022, which is the National Day of Helping the
Disabled, the Group will broadcast a promotional video on caring
for the disabled in a loop on our outdoor large screen. Additionally,
the “Sanlitun Street Disabled Persons’ Federation” ( = & i 7 i85
IR NBt & € ) presented the “Certificate of Honour” to acknowledge
the Group’s commitment to public welfare. This gesture serves as a
testament to the Group’s dedication to promoting social inclusivity
and creating a more caring and supportive community for all.

Fight against the Epidemic

Three colleagues volunteered on behalf of the Group and entered
personal information for individuals participating in the nucleic acid
screening. This selfless act demonstrates the Group’s commitment
to supporting community health initiatives and promoting public
welfare.

BHBRAAEE

—E__FRATHERAZEBDER AEH
EPINKRERRBENEEREANSEE
Feoltih BME=ZBERETHERREABRAS
HE[LEFE| UREAEERLAGESE
¥ ERPETAEET NN EELEESD
M WAEABE—EENEENZ T

=]
on ©

nEeRE

“NRERRAEEBEAETREE  R2EKE
BENHERBABAGR - EBENLTA
AEEHTHHERREZMRHE
B A

i
NI EHE
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INDEX TO THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE (RIR - -HEREBHEES) R
=]

Aspect Content Section

TEHE 2K =30}

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BERERE

Governance Structure A statement from the board containing the Sustainability Governance

EIREE following elements: AFEERER

i a disclosure of the board’s oversight of
ESG issues;

ii. the board’s ESG management
approach and strategy, including the
process used to evaluate, prioritize,
and manage material ESG-related
issues (including risks to the issuer’s
businesses); and

iii.  how the board reviews progress made
against ESG-related goals and targets
with an explanation of how they relate
to the issuer’s businesses.

HEFSELNEBR EFHEATIRET:

. WEEFGHRE HEMEARAFEMNE

AL

i. EFCTHRE HERER/AEEFIHAE
£ BREFH BRAEFREAREEMNIR
B HekBREBEE (BEHETA
EBHRR)MNBRE: &

p==)

il. EFESMAERE HEMEARBBERER
WAEE - SRR T I EET AR

B RE
Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on, Reporting Principle
FE 3R = Al the application of the Reporting Principles wWERA

(Materiality, Quantitative and Consistency) in
the preparation of the ESG report.

RS EBEERERE e kEomERN
MEAERRAN(EZ2H 2k —BME) -
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Aspect Content Section

TEHE 2R =40

Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting Reporting Period and Scope
B 3 &7 = boundaries of the ESG report and describing ¥ 5 8 5 & &3 &

the process used to identify which entities or
operations are included in the ESG report.

BERRE HEREAMENERDE LM
MPGEPLERNEBRARE HERER

WMERAE -
“Comply or explain” Provisions
[REFHAERE R
A. Environmental
BB

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEAT MY

General Disclosure Information on: Creating Value for Environment
—RIKE RRFEEEEE

(@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

BERAERIOEERBHN MK R Lma 8k
FCRENMNBEERRYNELETN:

(a) BE: &
by EBFTHBTATEATENHEBEZK
5 Dl
B o
Al.1 The types of emissions and respective Emission Management
emissions data. PERRE 12

PEnR R 58 I AR R R IR B

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope  Emission Management
2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, HEHE 32
where appropriate, intensity.
B (HE1) RgLRHEZE (BE2) )REREHE
WE (AMEE) R (MER)BE -
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Aspect Content Section

TEHE 2R =40

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)  Waste Management
and, where appropriate, intensity. BEEYER
FTEXEEREEYHES (UBETE) R (1nE
FH ) ) J_g °©

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in Waste Management
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. BEEYER
FTEXBREREEYAES (UBETE) R (nE
BB

A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and Emission Management
steps taken to achieve them. PERRE 12
BTV E R ERABEINELBEEM
AL 28 o

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Waste Management

hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them
MEBEAENBEEEEDMN L Rt
R BREE B R R AR EDE & B IRFTERERAY
B e

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBmA2 . EREH
General Disclosure

—RIKE

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.
BRERER(
BUK ©

BIEEEIR KR EA R ) 8

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity.

BENESWERR SAREERERE (U
TETERARE)REE-

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BEKERTE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

F AT LB RERAE R R R REDE L
BRI ERER A 2 5]

BEEYER

Use of Resource

BIR{EM

Energy Efficiency
BE IR B &

Water Efficiency
KRz

Energy Efficiency
BER R e
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Aspect Content Section
TEHE 2K =40
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Water Efficiency

sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water K&
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.

Fa SR EUGE A KR LRI B (A R RE - AR FTET
SRR B IR R R E R E L B R TR

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Packaging Materials
products (in tonnes), and if applicable, with &% 1 %
reference to per unit produced.
X mTRABEMEEE (NEEHE) & ()
HR)BEESME=E-

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EBEA3 BERXAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant Cherish Natural Resource
—MRIFE impact on the environment and natural ZRBEAER
resources.
BMEZETAHRRERRABREKERAZEN
BUR

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Cherish Natural Resource
activities on the environment and natural ZRBEAER
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.
Rl X R HRRERRAAERNEATZER
ERREEREAZENTE-

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BHEAL RIRE

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of Combatting Climate Change
—RIEE significant climate-related issues which have  Ji& ¥ & & &1L
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
Bl B R B AR & ﬁ%é%ﬁé‘ﬁ/ﬂziﬁ’%m
EAREHEBEENEER
A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related = Combatting Climate Change
issues which have impacted, and those JE S /R &L

which may impact, the issuer and the actions
taken to manage them.
HERRAREHETAEETENERR
RAEEEE REHTE-
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Aspect Content Section
TEHE 2K =40
B. Social
e
Employment and Labour Practices
ERERREIER
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1 & E

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on: Care for Our Employees

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

ERAFWREE BEREA THERS-®R
B FE#e 2ol REGUREMGTE
R AE gy -

(a) BE: K&

(b) ETUHBTABEAXENHBEZNK
1

B & Ko

Total workforce by gender, employment type, Employee Profile
age group and geographical region. BTHE
ZWR - EEER FRAR RMERE SN E

BHag-

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group Employee Profile

and geographical region. BETIHE
RUR FRARRMERESHNEERKL
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Aspect Content Section
TEHE 2K =&

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB2 : #EHEZ2E

General Disclosure Information on: Occupational Health and Safety
—RIRE BERRELSE

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
BERARHZE2TIERBERREESBEBEN

BER
(a) BE: K&
by EBFTHBTATEATENHEBEZZK
5 Dl
BB -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Occupational Health and Safety
occurred in each of the past three years BEREEZD

including the reporting year.

BEZF (BREFFE)BEFRATITHNHA

BRI =

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Occupational Health and Safety
HAIEGEATIEBE- BERRELSE

B2.3 Description of occupational health and Occupational Health and Safety

safety measures adopted, and how they are Bt EEEEZ &
implemented and monitored.

TR ER R R R 256 ARG

MITRERFE-
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Aspect
TEHE

Content Section
AR =68

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BmEB3 : #REKIEI
General Disclosure

—RIKE

B3.1

B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge Talent Development
and skills for discharging duties at work. AT ER
Description of training activities.
BERRAREBITLIERENMH RRENK

TR INES

The percentage of employees trained by Talent Development
gender and employee category. AT ER
REMNMEEEEMNESHXIEER DL -

The average training hours completed per Talent Development
employee by gender and employee category. A4 #EE
RrUERREERFE Y FEREETEXIN

IR o

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EmB4 : & T %8|
General Disclosure

—RIKE

B4.1

Information on: Labour Standard
85 TR
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BB IEETSHEHLTH:

(a) BE: &
by EBFTHBTATEATENHEBEZK
5 Dl
BB -
Description of measures to review Labour Standard
employment practices to avoid child and 2% T 28

forced labour.
i 5 FREE S 1 A 1 e AR SR ZE T K o8 Il 85
I o
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Aspect Content Section
TEHE 2K =40
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such  Labour Standard
practices when discovered. & T AR
i A 3R 8 AR B S H BR 8 BB 0 P BRER Y

Operating Practices

EEEH

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

BEB5 - {HEHERE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and Sustainable Supply Chain

—REE social risks of the supply chain. ] F5 48 (i E 3
ERHEENIRE R g RREBUR -

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Sustainable Supply Chain
BB DM MHEREE - A RE AR e g

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging  Sustainable Supply Chain
suppliers, number of suppliers where the A 35 4B e g

practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

A EEERAEERNEN mERTERE
BRI EREE A RBERITRER %

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Green Procurement
environmental and social risks along the R
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
AR EREEGERANRERTERE
REVE I A RABBERITRER A

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Green Procurement
environmentally preferable products and R
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
i 2t 7 R 53R 1 R 7 PR M2 2 2 PR IRAR B o S IR 7S
BRI ARMBBRITRER T A
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Aspect Content
TEHE 2K

Section

E3:0]

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHEB6 - EREMRE
General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods

of redress.
EAFREERARBNEREREZS ES -
EEMILEEEUARER T A6 :

(a) BE: K&

(b)) ETUHBETABEAXENHBEZNK
1

& o
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
E%ﬁaitﬁm
ZEIER G NERs)

BB REZ 2 RBERIEAM

B6.2 Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
RERREMMRENRFHE URELHT
% e

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

R E R RENZEEEBNED -

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and

recall procedures.

Ml EEmEBENMEMBKEF -

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #1BKEEEBE R L 7

Service and Product Responsibility

R MERE T

Product Quality and Safety
EmEERTR

Handling Complaints
1R B 38

Intellectural Property, Customer
Privacy, Data Security and
Marketing

MBER BEPLE BHREREHE

Product Quality and Safety

EmEERTR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect Content Section
TEHE 2K =40
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection Intellectural Property, Customer

and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

fE B & ERHRE RALB IR - A RAEBE R
TREREFE-

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RESS
General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

BRATLLAE 9= BEFRAREN:

(a) BE: K&

BTHRTABEATZENHEBEIZR
1

(b)

B & K o
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHBITASIEEERDITEFEK
BORMREMNEE RFRER-
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
e R R WmET A RBERTRE
BHE.
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.

MimEERE TIRENRESHE -
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Privacy, Data Security and
Marketing
MBEE BEFLE BHRERESH

Business Ethics

R ERE

Business Ethics

A RERE

Business Ethics

A RERE

Business Ethics

B RERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect Content Section
TEHE 2K =&
Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEB8  #HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to Community Investment
—RIRE understand the needs of the communities HERIEE

where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities takes into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BN RBERTREEMEMREE RE
REEBSHEE R E P 2 HBUR -

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community Investment
HEIERERE- HEEKEE

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas. Community Investment
EEIHEMBBEIR- HERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

|IBDO

FE:E : +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Sparkle Roll International Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 147 to
298, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 20283, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows
and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHEPI15E
Tk HI254%

BN BRREREEERATF
(RERZFME L AR A])
2RERX

=R

AIZBED (AT [RM)) D EAINERE
1472298 A 2 FiBRKEBREEER AR (&
DA REWBLRE (A TR EEE]) 2
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ZA=Z+T-HAZEAUBRABRREBREZ
BIEFEZEAEZEBARE GaBRERE
KNG EBRARR BB R - ANRA M ®RER
M BRETEetREME-
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B ZEERE (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Impairment assessment on goodwill

Refer to Notes 4, 5 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group’s goodwill amounted to approximately HK$302,315,000
as at 31 March 2023. We focused on this area and identified it as
a key audit matter because of the significance of goodwill to the
Group. Furthermore, the directors’ assessment of the value-in-use
calculation of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs”) to which
goodwill was allocated involves judgement and estimates about
the future results of the businesses, key assumptions including
discount rates and growth rates applied to future cash flow
forecast.

RRzE®

BMERBEEESFMASRME 2B LR
RERETE - HPIEZFENTAEZEZEE
EEARE [ZBENLE 58 M RER AR
ZEE] WP EE— R - RIEFE S
BhAEBMmz BEEHENBETR (AT HHE
[<FRI))  HMBLRX EXE YDETT
Al 2 b HREREE - HFIEE - R
ERZEARIBEARREE L RRMANE
AARRIRH R

BARESEE

FAREFFHEREBRMANEXZHE  RAY
A AV BHRERNBTRAEREZISFHE B
LEFHEERMBAEREAMBRR LG
ABREETREN RATSHELERRE
HEBZER-

BB ZRER S

BHGEEHBEREN T4 5819

EEENEN_S-_=F=A=+—HHA
302,315,000 T - HRMANEEELE BS
EnEZEmEEL A E Wi 2 &5 AR
BFFEEH I ZEFFTE EEBEESERD
BN eEABENCFRAEBEFERSRY
E 2 RREEVED FIET RAbET BRBERE
EEARNAKREREBAN 2R E RIER
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B2 E (48)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impa

irment assessment on goodwill (Continued)

Our response:

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the followings:

(i)

(if)

(iil)

Evaluating and checking the composition of the Group’s future
cash flow forecasts in the CGUs, and the process by which
they were drawn up, including testing the underlying value-in-
use calculations and comparing them to the latest approved
budgets;

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions by
comparing the current year actual results with the forecast
figures of the current year included in the previous forecast,
by reference to future plans and by performing independent
market analysis; and

Utilising our own valuation specialists work when considering
the appropriateness of the discount rates and long-term
growth rates.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Company’s

annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not

cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.
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B ZEERE (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

FHRAZHMER (2)

FBABMEEEMBEHRER 2ET  RAWEE
JEEMES  EUERET ZEEEMER
B AMBRRABMERSBRESA

BZBAGEEAEBREUFFEEXR
ARBRL Z 150 - ER R MERITZ T a0

% ;
R HAR
7
i}

REMRAEME S FEERE R - F A
RERERFE -TEAE BMREEA®R
4,

EERES
B

MBBREAREZ

EXRAERBEEESNASEM TR
B SR E R R BB R RRD 2 5258 47 E #
WMEEMPEZHEEMBHRE XHERR/R
R EMBHRER 2 RETFEHNRFFRE
AR M E B RS RRAFTH 2 ABHEH &

&o
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B Z AR E (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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B ZEERE (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant efficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

REE BT SRE M RRAE
Z2EE®)

o HEEFHRASFTERZBEERE
SEHAEFTMAARRE BT

s HEERARKEKLSHERZIREN
TR & - ARIBFAER 2 BEFHERRE - HBE
EAFERFHENBREBIEANTIE
EM-EmAEsE EKEZRHE
RERNELEARBE - WREMABR
FEEATHEEN MECEEREM
BETRFBEAEIEFESMBRET
ZHERE -BREARIEESRE AR
MEERRIFBERERR HANES
RERNZEBERE A LAREZEE
#& e A RERFEKIBERAATEEH &
SETRFAELE -

o HERAMBHRRZERIBIA &
BNAR  BREE URGEEHBE®RE
EEPERBRIHMEIR-

e 3 ERBERNERIEKIZDZUBKE
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B Z AR E (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pak Tak Lun
Practising Certificate Number: PO6170

Hong Kong, 30 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-F-=F=A=f—AI5E

For the year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
—Eg-= =21 ==
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET T
Revenue W = 7 3,997,656 4,324,487
Cost of sales #HE AR (3,419,528) (3,468,055)
Gross profit ERH 578,128 856,432
Other income, gains and losses HAal A - Yoas M Esia 8 (30,580) (131,599)
Impairment of trade receivables BN E 5 RIERE (5,867) =
Impairment of loan receivables and & E 7k M B L E X
loan interest receivables A B E (12,663) (56,390)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R KA (408,259) (504,468)
Administrative expenses THRER (84,343) (81,708)
Operating profit & A 9 36,416 82,267
Finance costs B & AR AR 10 (96,268) (72,648)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSBLA (B5B) %R (59,852) 9,619
Income tax FgH 11 6,229 21,895
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (FEB) &EA (53,623) 31,514
Other comprehensive income, BRBEZEEMEEmWA
net of tax
Items that may be reclassified HEGER S IEE
subsequently to profit or l0ss: EmAkZHEE :
Exchange differences on translation & /GINEEIMFERER 2
of financial statements of foreign ME 3 Z 5
operations (170,042) 73,884
Items that will not be reclassified HEETeETHZ
subsequently to profit or [0ss: BmkZHE -
Change in fair value of equity BRAREF AHMEE
investments at fair value through WA 2 B 145 & P
other comprehensive income FRERZAREES
recognised during the year (162,723) (200,322)
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e EWARRE (B)
Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

BE_ZT_=#=A=+—HIL®E Forthe year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
—E-=F —=EF -
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FiE T TFA T
Other comprehensive income REERBEEAM
for the year, net of tax 2HEBA (332,765) (126,438)
Total comprehensive income AEEZHIAHLLE
for the year (386,388) (94,924)
(Loss)/profit for the year THALTEMEFEE
attributable to: (B]) %A :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ F =N (53,127) 34,052
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AE (496) (2,538)
(53,623) 31,5614
Total comprehensive income THALTEAEZE
attributable to: ON L
Owners of the Company KAREER A (373,152) (92,483)
Non-controlling interests FEE I i == (13,236) (2,441)
(386,388) (94,924)
(Re-presented)
(&&E5)
(Loss)/earnings per share EATEEANEEER
attributable to owners (B8] &R
of the Company
Basic BN 15 HK(15.5) cents HK10.0 cents
Al 7S
Diluted s 15 HK(15.5) cents HK10.0 cents
Al Al
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZE-_=F=H=+—H As at 31 March 2023

2023 2022
—EgE-= —_E_-_—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FiET T T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y5 - R MR 16 1,208,517 1,389,477
Investment properties "EYHE 18 393,862 437,425
Goodwill EES 19 302,315 333,222
Other intangible assets B ER & E 20 187,578 210,331
Financial assets at fair value BEAREFAEMERE
through other comprehensive WAZ EREE
income 21 158,395 319,766
Prepayment for property, VI3 - R R
plant and equipment TE S E 3,158 3,431
2,253,825 2,693,652
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 23 1,229,761 1,361,173
Trade receivables Y E 5 24(a) 36,228 27,823
Loan receivables Fgﬂﬁlf *K 24(b) - 34,471
Deposits, prepayments and il T‘E%ﬁy\lﬁ)&
other receivables H b & W 5K IR 24(c) 177,302 270,889
Amounts due from non-controlling & Uk FE 2 HXTEE?KIE
interests 22 17,115 40,309
Investment in films and television KEEXLERE B
program 25 49,768 63,737
Pledged deposits B ER 26 75,229 84,111
Cash at banks and in hand RITEFERS 26 146,732 151,519
1,732,135 2,034,032
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FE & 5 I8 28 30,417 142,849
Contract liabilities EHEE 29 136,600 195,632
Receipts in advance, accrued TEJ%Z RIE - [EETERA K
charges and other payables H b & {5 3R I8 30 191,153 127,392
Amounts due to non-controlling JE {5 FE 2= AR 25 3R 0E
interests 22 8,009 11,420
Provision for taxation AR & 917 5,166
Borrowings BE 31 711,968 842,469
Convertible bonds A # % & 5 32 9,400 =
Lease liabilities *ﬂ EaE 17 38,866 34,880
1,127,330 1,359,808
Net current assets REEEFE 604,805 674,224
Total assets less current liabilities 2EE R A E B 2,858,630 3,367,876
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

RZE-_=F=H=+—H As at 31 March 2023

2023 2022
—_E-= —=EFE-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 T & T BT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings BE 31 284,943 222,222
Convertible bonds A # % E 5 32 - 8,745
Deferred tax liabilities BEEIEAE 33 39,446 53,465
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 306,321 358,121
630,710 642,553
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,227,920 2,725,323
EQUITY =
Share capital f& A 34 10,944 10,944
Reserves {1 35 2,188,280 2,551,528
Equity attributable to owners AAREEAELER
to the Company 2,199,224 2,562,472
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 40 28,696 162,851
TOTAL EQUITY A 2,227,920 2,725,323
The consolidated financial statements on pages 147 to 298 were F147E2908B 2 A MK HRERENR T —=

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Zheng Hao Jiang

BREST
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE—_T_=F=A=+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
BZE H=E
—EBZ=H -
=Z=A=+—-HALt =A=+—HIL
FE FE
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FET FBIT
Cash flows from operating REEKRZHERE
activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSFLR (B5B)
vt A (59,852) 9,619
Adjustments for: AT ZIBEL AR :
Bank interest income RAT A B U A 8 (1,559) (3,776)
Gain on disposals of property, HEMZE - #Z K
plant and equipment 2 W 8 (3,917) (6,256)
Amortisation of other H b & EH
intangible assets 9 6,091 10,350
Depreciation of property, )% s R R
plant and equipment e 9 77,984 91,143
Changes in fair value of KEWMEZ
investment properties NABEEE 8 54,468 69,999
Changes in fair value of KEEZRER
investment in films and e 2 ARE
television program 5 8 9,001 3,649
Imputed interest on borrowings e EEETH B 10 70,728 43,232
Imputed interest on convertible T?ﬁ%ﬂxﬁﬁ%d‘ﬂ B
bonds 10 655 610
Interest on lease liabilities HREEBEIT2
AR 10 24,885 28,806
Equity-settled share-based LARE 2= 45 B LA 0 &
payment %%Zﬁ K 9,904 =
Gain on lease modification HE Bz W 8 - (3,647)
Written off of other intangible H b #E 2 & 2= A8
assets 8 - 44,638
Write-down of inventories T & #MUR 9 30,598 24,286
Reversal of write-down 7 Bl 17 & MO
of inventories 9 (2,586) (14,770)
Impairment of goodwill EESNGEED 8 4,452 65,904
Impairment of other intangible HihmEEERE
assets 8 - 8,732
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 FRIR R E 5,867 =
Impairment of loan receivables JE U E SR K E B 5k
and loan interest receivables F BORE 12,663 56,390
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SEEERER (B)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

HE-E-=H=A=f+—AIL5FE

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
BZE HE
—E_-= —E__fF
=A=+—-HE ZA=+—HI1
FE FE
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FET FABTT
Operating cash flows before working 4 & & & & & a2
capital changes LI/ R 239,382 428,909
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,(35Gm) 36,102 (651,598)
(Increase) in trade receivables FEWE S 3IE () (16,607) (359)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, Be BHFIE R EAMm
prepayments and other JE WK TE R A
receivables (3Em) 70,354 (78,419)
Decrease in loan receivables & W E R 24,321 57
(Decrease)/increase in B8 5 5KIE
trade payables (R 2) /3 (102,231) 112,111
Decrease in contract liabilities EREERD (43,970) (106,823)
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in TEWHIE B EAR
advance, accrued charges and H b fE A~ K08
other payables #mn, Crd) 74,744 (47,444)
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEKEHE(FTA)
operations N 282,095 (338,566)
Income tax refunded 2RO FTFH (3,716) (1,774)
Net cash generated from/(used in) & X EFHE, (FFHA)
operating activities REFEHE 278,379 (340,340)
Cash flows from RETHZ2HERE
investing activities
Purchase of property, BEWE KBEIREXE
plant and equipment (43,955) (11,387)
Addition of pledged bank deposits B R 1T 17 38 0 (88,728) (55,662)
Release of pledged bank deposits SR 1T 17 5N % B 4 4 90,945 177,962
Proceeds from disposals of HEME - #eS K
property, plant and equipment RBTERIE 14,693 16,296
Acquisition of equity investment W BE xR & (1,352) =
Acquisition of property WEFEYWEZ A G —
holding companies — HRelERe
net of cash acquired 27(a) - (8331,210)
Advances from/(to) non-controlling M8 A Rl FE4E R =
interest of subsidiaries BE(BTHE
NAIFEIE R
2K 20,287 (40,309)
Interest received 2 HAH B 1,559 3,776
Net cash used in REFTEFMIARSFE
investing activities (6,551) (240,534)
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GeaRenEx (&)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

BE_ZT_=#=A=+—HIL®E For the year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
BZE HE
—E-= =
=ZA=+-Ht Z=A=f—Hi
FE FE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAIT
Cash flows from financing AMEETH2RERE
activities
Advances (to)/from non-controlling (&F Mﬂ% UNEIE 20 Hx
interests of subsidiaries BmBR) /B
Ei Hﬂg/\@m 27(b) (2,617) 1,022
Proceeds from partial disposal of HoHE—HHBA
a subsidiary Ffr 13 5K 18 - 1,108
Acquisition of non-controlling W B FE 1 IR
interests (121,091)
New borrowings raised FIEE 27(b) 3,868,730 4,206,909
Repayments of borrowings BEEE 27(b) (3,880,664) (3,608,644)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEAE 27(b) (36,242) (49,369)
Interest paid =RV 27(b) (70,728) (43,232)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENHEBERNE 27(b) (24,885) (28,806)
Net cash (used in)/generated from B&EEE (FTH) Fis
from financing activities HeFE (267,497) 478,988
Net increase/(decrease) incash BE&RREEEHIER
and cash equivalents i (D) RE 4,331 (101,886)
Cash and cash equivalents REAMZRER
at beginning of year ReEEER 151,519 246,540
Effect of foreign exchange EXSEHHESR
rate changes on cash and ReEEEAZEE,
cash equivalents, net HE (9,118) 6,865
Cash and cash equivalents RERZREERE
at end of year, comprising ZEEBEE BEETR
cash at banks and in hand FHERAE 146,732 151,519
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AERIEREER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_ZT_=#=A=+—HIL®E Forthe year ended 31 March 2023

Attributable to owners of the Company

KREEEARE
Fair value ~ Convertible
reserve bonds Non-
Share Share Capital Special  Contributed  Exchange Other  Statutory (non- equity  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve  recycling) reserve eamnings Total interests equity

BE  ROER AABE  BRBE  RABR  ERE  EREE  ZERE (TUEE) REER At FEkEE  EneE
HKS00D  HKSO  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
TEn  ThEn  TEn  TRn AT TR TAr  TEnr  TAr  TEn  TEn  TEx  TET  TER

t 1 April 2021 RZB--%¥MA-H 10944 1,712,515 3,508 (36,810) 300,872 38,955 7,283 13566 (416,662 1,947 1018848 2,654,955 4341 2,659,296

Changes in equity in 2022 “EVEERY
Profit for the year afl = = = = = = = = = = 34,062 34,062 (2,538) 31,514
Other comprehensive income Efh2ERA
- Exchange differences on —BERNERBRRL

translation of financial statements EXzE

of foreign operations = = = = = 78,787 = = = = = 73,787 97 73,884
- Change in fair value of equity —BAREAL

investments at fair value through WAZB

other comprehensive income FRERZDAERD

recognised during the year - - - - - - - - (200322 - - (200322 - (200322
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE2EHALE - - - - - 73,781 - - (200,322 - 34,062 92,483) 2441)  (94924)

Non-controlling interests arising from ~~ KEHBAAEEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries 7
Partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary

- - - - = = B - - - - - 169,843 159,843

B Rk
slie - - - - - - - - - - - -8 1008

without loss of control
Transfer to statutory reserve SREEREE - - - - - - - 1,357 - - (1,357) - - -
At 31 March 2022 RZZ2==%=f=1-H 10,944 1,712,516 3,508 (36,810) 300872 12,742 7,283 14,912 (616,984) 1,947 1,061,543 2562472 162,851 2,725,323
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

BE_ZT_=#=A=+—HIL®E For the year ended 31 March 2023

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARRAARE
Fair value
Share reserve  Convertible Non-
Share Share Capital Special Contributed  Exchange Other  Statutory option (non- bonds  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve surplus reseve reserve reserve reserve cycling) equity  eamings Total interests equity
DMEEE TERRZ
Bx  ROER  RARR  GRBRE  AARR  NEBE  ARER  GRER RONRER (TUHE) REER  REEA af FEREE  EusE
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000
TEL TE7 TEL TER TEL TER TET TER TR TER TET TER TR TET TR
A1 Aprl 2022 10944 1712515 3508 (%6810) 082 12742 7,283 14912 - (p16.%84) 1947 1061540 2562472 162851 2725328
Change in equity in 2023
Proft for the year - - - - - - - - - - - B (1) (496)  (3,629)
Other comprehensive income i ]
- Exchange diferences on transltion o financiel AERN R RRRZENZE
statements of foreign operations - - - - - (157,302) - - - - - - (157,302) (12,740) (170,042
- Changs in fair value of equty investments at fai value  —7 UETT O]
through other comprehensive Income recognised AI0MERD
during the year - - - - - - - - - (162723 - - (162,723) - (162,723)
Total comprefensive income for the year KER2ENAEE - - - - - (167302 - - - (162723 - Bf2n (313,152 (13,236)  (386,368)
Accuisition of non-cantroling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - - (120919)  (120919)
Equity-settled share-based payment - - - - - - - - 9,904 - - - 9,904 - 9,904
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - - - 2942 - - - (29,242 - - -
At31 March 2023 10944 1712515 3508 (368100 08712 (44,560) 7,283 44,154 9904 (178,707) 1947 969,174 2199224 2696 2,227,920
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Notes to the Financial Statements

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

156

GENERAL

New Sparkle Roll International Group Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and
its principal place of business changed from Room 2028-
36, 20/F Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong to 23/F China Huarong Tower, 60 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong effective from 29 May 2023. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are distributorships of luxury goods
and automobiles, provision of after-sales services, provision
of property management services, provision of property rental
services, provision of money lending services, and film related
business including development and investment in films and
television program. The Group’s operations are mainly based
in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the Company does not have immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company. The Directors regard
the Company does not have ultimate controlling party.
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Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASSs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

CEEES

RAEMBHRRIREFTESHMAEMR
AT RMBERELER  FEG
BRI R (TXRES [BERMEERE
B ) AR E B QBRG] 2 5 E R
oA MBHRRNBREMIAES L
mARA (T EWRA]) ZBRERERE

A HMRTIRE SRR AEERFS
WEAREBEHEZREVERETEM
T ABRINo

EFIR ERERAMBERREAE

SRt AT RER - BEZEMHE IR
BEEEEHBEASHERITH I&ETHF
RAEEL EERERKKLEH R
RzFhet - P RBEEH B HEMREE
ZEE HBRERGEFHRBREE MG
BWEAMEBERZHBE - R ESHE

REMBHRRUABTE2Y METTR
ARBZNEEH - BRARBIEREIN - B
BEEHDEHRAAZSREOAZ TH -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

— = —

=

=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

158

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2022

The HKICPA has issued a number of amended HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework

None of these amended HKFRSs has a material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
The Group has not early applied any new or amended
HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become

effective.
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies'
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants
(2022 Amendments”)?
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

3. RMBERUBREER ()

(b)

EEGEEMRERZHTER
MEBRSEARTBVBRS
% B 2 85T

PRI 2 SLipap F
BRI E R E W R AEMH IR BB
B %5 S R S BB s 22 Rl
ZIERT - AN LR AR AN A BE
R AL E B ATA SN A A H

BE Al B BRI BE
FIRRBEYE
HEENEHEH
F2R 2 BAT
BAEGTEA EENCR a2
FIR A
BE g Al E-RFMELEH
F125% 2 7] EERBECEL
A
BE g Al KRBELBARDH
FRZERT R E?
BEGER MBEREZFERD
F1R BT aE(l=2==fF
BeTl)?
BAMBHREEN ERBEEPZHE
F165% 2 3] a8

! HM_FE_=F-HA—Ba&k &
Fte < FREHIMAER -
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B RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

160

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS 2 Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that their
primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide
non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The Directors is currently revisiting the accounting policy
disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.
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Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

These amendments clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Earlier
application is permitted.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments in the future will have an impact on
the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

These amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it does
not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liabilities for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The amendments shall be applied
prospectively to transactions other than lease and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments. Based on preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

3. RMBERUBREER ()

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

— = —

=

=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

162

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in
particular the determination over whether an entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022,
the HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current.
In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has
a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 (i.e. 1 April 2019). Earlier application is permitted.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments in the future will have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process and whether the acquired set
has the ability to produce outputs.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a2 maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

166

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit
or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control of the subsidiary are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amount of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Non-controlling interests

168

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity owners of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position depending
on the nature of the liability.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations, are
translated into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment

170

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
Land and buildings Remaining lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years
The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6

Intangible assets

()

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregate of the fair value
of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

172

4.6

Intangible assets (Continued)

()

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below
its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable)
or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is
the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6

Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful lives is
amortised from the date it is available for use and
its estimated useful life is as follows:

Customers’ list from Over the term of

property management contracts
contracts
Flim rights Over the circulation period

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

4.7 Financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a

significant financing component) is initially measured at

fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit

or loss (“FVTPL”"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially

measured at the transaction price.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

174

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. Financial
assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirely when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit
or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FESTHRBE (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 47 &@MIA (&)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
FVTOCI, as described above, debt instruments may
be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

176

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables and other
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measure loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

178

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due or unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non-credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at
fair value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FESTHRBE (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 47 &@MIA (&)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing
costs in Note 4.14.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into their respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is
included in equity (convertible bonds equity reserve).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

180

Convertible bonds (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
dates, the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to the retained earnings. No gain
or loss is recognised upon conversion or expiration of
the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4, TESHHERE 2)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 47 &@MIA (&)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to
a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

182

4.8

4.9

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of automobiles, watches,
jewelleries and fine wines included in the inventories are
determined using the first-in, first-out method while the
other inventories with different nature are determined
using the weighted average basis.

Films under production include production costs,
costs of services, direct labour costs, facilities and
raw materials consumed in the creation of films. Upon
completion and available for commercial exploitation,
these films under production are reclassified as film.
Films under production and film are accounted for on a
project-by-project basis and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose
of cash flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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4.10 Leases 410 HE

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group
has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which
at the commencement date have a lease term of 12
months or less and do not contain purchase option. The
lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and would
comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

184

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property” and are carried at
fair value. For right-of-use asset that meets the definition
of a leasehold land and buildings held for own use, they
are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated losses. Other than the above right-
of-use assets, the Group also has leased a number
of properties under tenancy agreements which the
Group exercises it judgement and determines that it is
a separate class of asset apart from the leasehold land
and buildings which is held for own use. As a result,
the right-of-use asset arising from the properties under
tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the

underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid

at the commencement date of the lease are considered

to be lease payments:

(1)

(if)

fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

186

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by:

(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability;

(i)  reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made, and

(i)  remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination option
being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the
revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is
similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying
value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining (revised)
lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results
in one or more additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone price for
the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification
is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other cases,
where the renegotiated increases the scope of the
lease (whether that is an extension to the lease term,
or one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate
applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-
use asset being adjusted by the same amount. With the
exception to which the practical expedient for Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions applies, if the renegotiation
results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the
carrying amount of the lease liability and right-of-use
asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects
the amount of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification
date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same
amount.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

188

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased assets to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate
leases. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease.

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

Amounts due from leases under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Any changes in the scope of the consideration of a lease
that was not part of the original terms and conditions
of the lease are accounted for as lease modifications.
The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, recognising the remaining lease payments
as income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits that can be
reliably estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

190

4.12

4.13

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sales of automobile

Revenue arising from the sales of automobile is
recognised at the point in time when the customer
obtains control of the automobile. Factors to determine
when the customers obtain control of automobile include
issuance of registration document, full payments have
been made and the goods have been delivered to and
accepted by the customers.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

192

4.13

4.14

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of other merchandised goods

Revenue arising from the sales of other merchandised
goods represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value
added tax and is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

Services income

Revenue arising from the services is recognised over
time as these service are provided.

Revenue from provision of after-sales services is
recognised over time as these services are provided.

Revenue from the provisions of property management
service are recognised over the scheduled period on
a straight-line basis because the property owners and
customers simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15

4.16

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it
is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- other intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually regardless of
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Impairment of other assets (Continued)

194

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
cash generating unit (‘CGU”)).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the CGU to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the CGU (or group of CGUs) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the CGU (or
group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Impairment of other assets (Continued)
Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

4.17 Employee benefits
(a) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are required
to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

196

4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees render services during
the year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of
its employees. All employee services received
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Share-based employee compensation

(Continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset,
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number
of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.

At the time when the share options have exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to share premium. After
vesting date, when the vested share options have
forfeited or still have not been exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve is transferred to contribute
surplus.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Income taxes

198

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and assets
and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and at the time of transaction, affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Income taxes (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when they
relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

4.19 Segment reporting

200

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as
those used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs, except bank interest income, income tax
expense, finance costs, and other corporate income
and expenses which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment are
not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.19

4.20

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets exclude financial assets at FVTOCI and
other corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude borrowings and other
corporate liabilities which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment and are
not allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(@) Has control or joint control over the

Company;

(b) Has significant influence over the Company;
or

(c) Is a member of key management personnel of
the Company or the Company’s parent.

4.19

4.20
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(@) The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (i).

(9) A person identifies in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or of

a parent of the entity).

(h)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Company.

4, TESHHEBRE (2)
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Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

4.21

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influence by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(@) That person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) Children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) Dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

Asset Acquisition

Groups of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
assessed to determine if they are business or asset
acquisitions. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group chooses to apply a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is an asset rather than business acquisition, when
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets.

4, TESHHERE 2)
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4.21

BEMATEREDN 2 REXEE
HERCXHAMAETEZAL

i
IRETEZRENE ABHE:

@ BALTZFEEREBXAE
3=

ZANTZEBREEHEZ
FL K

© BMATHEEBHRAREMHE
ZEEANe

BEEWE

ERBEERCAEREZARNT
AeHE  NEEBNEHHREE
Wi - BEWBREEZE/AID
AREETRE—ABEER—
MBLUZABAEER  AEES
EEFRKEEEERAGLTEE
Nt —He BB EHRE
EELBN—REE MIEXHK

B

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R EBE R 2 7 203

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 43k



B RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

4.

204

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.21 Asset Acquisition (Continued)

When a group of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
do not constitute a business, the overall acquisition
cost is allocated to the individual identifiable assets
and liabilities based on their relative fair values at the
date of acquisition. An exception is when the sum of
the individual fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities differs from the overall acquisition cost. In
such case, any identifiable assets and liabilities that
are initially measured at an amount other than cost in
accordance with the Group’s policies are measured
accordingly, and the residual acquisition cost is allocated
to the remaining identifiable assets and liabilities based
on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

() Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. BEASEEsthstRHE 2
JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any indication that other non-
financial assets with definite lives may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the assets. In assessing whether
there is any indication that other non-financial assets
may be impaired, the Group considers indications
from both internal and external sources of information
such as evidence of obsolescence or decline in
economic performance of the assets, changes in market
conditions, economic environment and customers’
tastes. These assessments are subjective and require
management’s judgements and estimations.

Impairment of trade and other receivables, and
loan receivables

The loss allowances for trade and other receivables, and
loan receivables are based on assumptions about risk
of default and ECLs rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Net realisable value of inventories

The management reviews the inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
impairment of obsolete, slow-moving and impaired
items. The management estimates the net realisable
value for such inventories based primarily on the
expected future market conditions and the estimated
selling price and cost to make the sale. The Group
write-down the inventories if the net realisable value is
below the carrying amount.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. BEASEEsthstRHE 2
JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

206

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China in which the Group operates. Significant
management judgement is required in interpreting the
relevant tax rules and regulations and determining the
amount of the provision for income taxes. There could
have transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Valuation of financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are revalued by management
with the assistance of independent professional qualified
valuers at the end of each reporting period. Such
valuations are based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. Any increase or decrease in
the valuations would affect the Group’s profit or loss in
future years.

Amortisation on other intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews
annually the useful life of these assets and their residual
values, if any. The amortisation expenses for future
periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from

previous estimation.
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Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5.

JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

(viii) Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is determined
using valuation technique. Details of the judgements and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 18.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with internal reporting provided to executive directors of the
Company who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.

The executive directors have identified the following
reportable operating segments:

()  Auto dealership — this segment includes sales of
branded automobiles, namely Bentley, Lamborghini and
Rolls-Royce and provision of related after-sales services.

(i)  Non-auto dealership - this segment includes sales
of branded watches, jewelleries, fine wines, audio
equipment, menswear apparels and accessories, cigars
and smoker’s accessories, silver articles, home articles
and health products.

(i) Property management and others — this segment
includes provision of property management services,
property rental services and money lending services;
and film related business including development and
investment in films and television program.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. Inter-segment
transactions, if any, are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

— = —

=

=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead) 6. 7HER &)
2023
—EC-=
Property
Auto Non-auto  management
dealership dealership and others Total
) y ) y NEEE X
AED FRENH REM &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET
Revenue from external customers RENMDEF 2 W 3,497,614 422,022 78,020 3,997,656
Other income, gains and losses Httl A - B RE#E 14,300 16,822 (67,270) (36,148)
Reportable segment revenue EEER T 3,511,914 438,844 10,750 3,961,508
Reportable segment results THREIHEE 230,559 (63,376) (40,252) 126,931
Other segment information: Hit A PEH
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ Eft &R 5}*&&% . - - (6,091) (6,091)
Depreciation of property, e MERRERE
plant and equipment (50,532) (9,011) (10) (59,553)
Unallocated AOE (18,431)
(77,984)
Changes in fair value of investment BREMELANEER
properties i - - (54,468) (54,468)
Changes in fair value of investment in films & EZTE R EREE 2
and television program AREED - - (9,001) (9,001)
Write-down of inventories FEMA - (30,598) - (30,598)
Reversal of write-down of inventories B0 77 SR - ,586 - 2,586
Impairment of goodwill HERE - - (4,452) (4,452)
Impairment of loan and loan interest EWEFRRERTSRE
receivables - - (12,663) (12,663)
Impairment of trade receivables B E 5 B R A - (5,867) (5,867)
Reportable segment assets TRENHDEE 2,041,795 661,851 787,150 3,490,796
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAREGAHMEE
WAZEREE 158,395
Deposits, prepayments and e BHRIER
other receivables H o Y18 17,860
Cash at banks and in hand RIRFERE 9,267
Other corporate assets: EtAREE:
- financial assets -SREE -
- non-financial assets - FeREE 309,642
Consolidated total assets GEBEE 3,985,960
Additions to non-current segment ERNREFRDNBEE
assets other than financial instruments (SRIERIN)
during the year 43,320 17,443 - 60,763
Unallocated AOHEE 3,842
64,605
Reportable segment liabilities ARESBEE (323,638) (91,059) (272,128) (686,825)
Borrowings HE (996,911)
Other corporate liabilities: HEtRaEEE:
- financial liabilities -SHARE (21,225)
- non-financial liabilities —FeRER (53,079)
Consolidated total liabilities REHEE (1,758,040)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEWER (2)
2022
S
Property
Auto Non-auto ~ management
dealership dealership and others Total
: \ \ \ mEER \
HED FAED REA B
HK$10070 HK$i0070 HK$10070 HK$10070
TAT THT THL THT
Revenue from external customers RENBEE 2 Wz 3,800,194 437,458 86,835 4,324,487
Other income, gains and losses HipA Wiz R EE 34,702 17,000 (249,207) (197,505)
Reportable segment revenue TRED B 3,834,896 454,458 (162,372) 4,126,982
Reportable segment results THRENPEE 437 642 (75,046) (202,461) 160,135
Other segment information: Hit A HER
Amortisation of other intangible assets HBYEERE - - (10,350) (10,350)
Depreciation of property, ME BERRENE
plant and equipment (64,509) (10,725) (20) (75,254)
Unallocated A (15,889)
(91,143)
Changes in fair value of investment BRENMELANEE
properties ) ‘ - - (69,999 (69,999)
Changes in fair value of investment in films & EF REHETE 2
and television program AEEY - - (3,649) (3,649)
Written off of other intangible assets il B A E MK - - (44,638) (44,638)
Write-down of inventories FEMA = (24,286) = (24,286)
Reversal of write-down of inventories B 7S = 14,770 - 14,770
Impairment of goodwill BHERE - - (65,904) (65,904)
Impairment of other intangible assets EBEVEERE - - (8,732) (8,732)
Impairment of loan and loan interest EWEFRRERFSRE
receivables - - (56,442) (56,442)
Reportable segment assets TREIHEE 2,303,059 746,564 908,027 3,957,650
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRAETALMEE
WAZEREE 319,766
Deposits, prepayments and e BERER
other receivables H it R 26,784
Cash at banks and in hand ROTRTEASE 8,245
Other corporate assets: EAREE:
- financial assets —SHEE 3,272
- non-financial assets —FEREE 411,967
Consolidated total assets RRBEE 4,727,684
Additions to non-current segment ERREFRPNBEE
assets other than financial instruments (£RIERIN)
during the year 251,637 170 112,824 364,631
Unallocated KPR 247,356
611,987
Reportable segment liabilities TREIBER 349,363 191,730 311,882 852,975
Borrowings BE 1,064,691
Other corporate liabilities: HEArEE
- financial liabilities -tRafR 62,176
- non-financial liabilities -FeRafR 22,519
Consolidated total liabilities GABEAE 2,002,361
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

A reconciliation between the reportable segment results and

the Group'’s (loss)/profit before income tax is as follows:

DEE R (#)

A] R 0 BP SR AR BN SR B 2 B P S B A
(E18) Rz HERIAT -

2023 2022

—E-=5F B &

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T T

Reportable segment results AREDIES 126,931 160,135
Bank interest income RITH B U A 1,559 3,776
Unallocated corporate income AOB A B A 4,008 5,740
Unallocated corporate expenses FAoEBRARER (96,082) (87,384)
Finance costs B & A A (96,268) (72,648)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSFLAT (E518) = (59,852) 9,619

Major customer

During the reporting period, there is no customer with

transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group’s

revenue is solely derived from Mainland China and Hong Kong

and all of the Group’s non-current assets other than financial

instruments are located in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Management determines that the Group is domiciled in

Mainland China and Hong Kong, which are the Group’s

principal operating locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

7. REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are sale of automobiles and
other merchandised goods and provision of automobile
related after-sales services. Other businesses mainly

iy 58

AREE 2 EBERQEREME M
ERAREHRAERBERRSE - HME
BEERRREHEDEEERS REED

represent income from provision of property management FHEER 2 WA -
services, money lending and property rental services.
2023 2022
—E-=EF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FB T
Revenue from contracts with REEFEHZWEH:
customers:
Recognised at point in time TR [B] 2 TR 58
Sales of automobiles MEHE 3,404,431 3,709,351
Sales of other merchandised goods — H it & @ 5 & 422,022 437,458
Recognised over time & B B 1 57
Provision of after-sales services RREEEZRG 93,183 90,843
Provision of property management {2t ¥ ¥ & # R
services 1,561 1,059
Total revenue from contracts with REBEFPEHNZWEBEE
customers 3,921,197 4,238,711
Revenue from other sources: H b 3 5R0R -
Interest income from provision of RENE RS 2 F B A
money lending 1,942 5,652
Provision of property rental services 2t ¥ % & R 1% 74,517 80,124
Total A&t 3,997,656 4,324,487
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

212

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

W #)

KEEFPAEHZWGEREBE MRS

major product or service lines is as follows: BIFEDAT
2023 2022
—E-=5F B &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FB T
Types of goods or services: EGSREER:
Auto dealership segment PTE S 5
Sales of automobiles TEHE 3,404,431 3,709,351
Provision of after-sales services REEERS 93,183 90,843
3,497,614 3,800,194
Non-auto dealership segment FETE S5
Sales of other merchandised goods £ th & & $H & 422,022 437,458
Other segment H 75 55
Provision of property management {2 ¥ ¥ &R IR
services 1,561 1,059
Total revenue from contracts RERFEHZI
with customers 3,921,197 4,238,711

During both years, all revenue from contracts with customers

were generated from Mainland China and Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES Hl A -z REE
2023 2022
—E-=5F B &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET 7T
Bank interest income RIT A BMWA 1,559 3,776
Changes in fair value of investment &Y 2 A B & F
properties (54,468) (69,999)
Changes in fair value of investment ®REBFLREMREE 2
in films and television program NAEEE (9,001) (3,649)
Gain on disposal of property, MEYSE #es MRIEZ
plant and equipment W = 3,917 6,256
Gain on sales of pre-owned cars HE —FRBEZ M 406 2,754
Gain on lease modification ME SRz W - 3,647
Government grant (Note) R AT BY (B &E) 336 =
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAE (4,452) (65,904)
Impairment of other intangible assets £ b £ i & 2 B (& - (8,732)
Income from advertising, exhibitions E% BB K E MRS 2 WA
and other services 19,660 32,181
Income from insurance brokerage R &4 W A 4,339 3,132
Others Hh, 7,124 9,577
Written off of other intangible assets  #fl $5 £ {th 4 Ji2 & & - (44,638)
(30,580) (131,599)
Note: B 5

The amount represents salaries and wage subsidies granted under

Anti-epidemic Fund by the Government of the Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region.

ZERERETRF TR EBRFLRNE

HefHzHFe R TEME-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

Note:

An impairment analysis was undertaken with reference to the

expected credit loss assessment performed by Masterpiece Valuation

Advisory Limited, an independent qualified valuer, by considering the

probability of default with credit ratings, which is in accordance with
the general approach as stated in HKFRS 9. As at 31 March 2023,
the probability of default applied was 100% and the loss given default
was estimated to be 100% (2022: ranged from 61.50% to 61.77%).

214
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9. OPERATING PROFIT 9. &&EHA
Operating profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting): KESREFIE MR (FTA)ATIEE -
2023 2022
—E-= =
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FABT
Amortisation of other intangible H 8 E
assets 6,091 10,350
Auditors’ remuneration % SR B &
- Audit services —EA IR 2,245 2,100
— Non-audit services —FEFEFT IR - 295
Cost of inventories recognised as WRABEBRAZHFERAE  BiE
expenses, including 3,408,364 3,463,418
— Write-down of inventories — 17 & #UR 30,598 24,286
- Reversal of write-down of — B B 17 B MUR
inventories (2,586) (14,770)
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #% « #2E R EE 2T E
equipment 77,984 91,143
Exchange differences, net bE HH E R 528 573
Employee benefit expenses EERAMAX 84,153 70,192
Interest on lease liabilities HEREBENE 24,885 28,806
Impairment of loan receivables and ~ EWE wA&fHﬁZf KA E R E
loan interest receivables (Note) (B 5E) 12,663 56,390
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAED 4,452 65,904
Impairment of other intangible assets £ th £ /7 & E 5 & - 8,732
Lease payments under short term HEAE AERIE
leases 2,835 2,483
Lease payments under variable Ef)\fﬁf%ﬁﬁ?riz
lease payment not included in the AEHENRB 2 HENE
measurement of lease liabilities 1,084 2,736
Written off of other intangible assets #fl $4 £ {th 4 Ji2 & & - 44,638

fi i

WEST 2R -—2BILRERMGENEN
B AERABET ZRMESEBER

i EEREAFRZEBLEREN 2T
1T HREBMBWMELENBORATL—RT

E R E_=ZF=ZA=+—HERZEH
R B100% @ ME LB KRG A100% (=
T —F: NF61.50%F61.77%) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

10. FINANCE COSTS

11.

10. B E K A

2023 2022
—E-= —_EF-_—

HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET T T
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEER B 36,680 22,722
Interest on other loans HaEHF L 34,048 20,510
Imputed interest on lease liabilities & & (& E&H 7 & 24,885 28,806
Imputed interest on convertible bonds A] #2 % (& % & 5t 7| & 655 610
96,268 72,648

INCOME TAX 1. FREH

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which
is a qualifying entity and can apply two-tiered rates on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong at 8.25%
on assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any
part of assessable profits over HK$2,000,000 for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2023.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
income tax at the rate of 25% except that subsidiaries are
entitled to tax exemption for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2023.

ERFESHBEFERARBEBEL Z([HTIE
R AN16.5% (ZE =4 16.5% )
HE OMASEE-—HNBARREES
T HFR-_FE_=ZF=ZA=+—8H
LFERAAEAMBMEZAERE
BCHERBEBEEZHTERB NS
2,000,000/ 7T #8.25% 5 & » [ i 1B
2,000,000/ 7T 2 1F {a] & & Bt 52 A1) Bl 4%
16.5%51 & °

HE_Z__FR_FT_=%=AH
=+—HIEFE RNEBE ZF E R H
B R RIBIRI R2B%MNFTIST - R
THBRABZBHBEIR -

2023 2022
—E-= —=EF -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Current tax KEEHIE

- Income tax of Mainland China — R B A FT 1S B
Charge for the year REEZ N 3,758 5,381
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEEERE (42) (32)
Total current tax AREETHIABER 3,716 5,349
Deferred tax iR RE T I8 (9,945) (27,244)
(6,229) (21,895)

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R EBE R 2 7 21 5
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3k
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

1. INCOME TAX (continued) 11. R % (#)
Reconciliation between income tax and accounting (loss)/ HEAMREFE S HEE:T (FiE)
profit at applicable tax rates: SRRz SR
2023 2022
—E-=EF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FB T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRAETISTLAT (E518) / & (59,852) 9,619
Tax calculated at domestic tax BEaERE 2 s N ok EE
rates applicable to profit or loss HRAzE M=
in the respective jurisdictions FTE IR (8,843) 2,205
Effect of tax exemption granted i SNEE NIV g
to subsidiaries 22 (12,401) (82,533)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERMRE 2 RIETE (211) (5,182)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIFi X H 2 T IE & 14,892 62,844
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZ REFATHIE
not recognised BB T & 1,119 1,623
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRBERERZHIEA
previously not recognised BB MBEEE (743) (720)
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEBERE (42) (32)
(6,229) (21,895)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2023

12. EEM <

BE-—SE-=%=ZA=1+—HLEE

Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary scheme
fees allowances bonuses contribution Total
RABEA
EEHe HeR=EH BETAL sHEMS &t
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B & TR TR TR TR TR
Executive Directors: RnTEE:
Zheng Hao Jiang BT (BEER)

(Co-Chairman) 1,980 60 - 46 2,086
Ma Chao (Co-Chairman) Sl (BEER) (i 240 - - 12 252
Zhao Xiaodong HOE (BIER)

(Deputy Chairman) 1,080 60 - 28 1,168
Zhu Lei RE 840 - - - 840
Independent non-executive BV FFHITEE:

Directors:

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo B 240 - - - 240
Lam Kwok Cheong HE & 240 - - - 240
Gao Yu s 240 - - - 240
Liu Hongaiang 2758 240 - - - 240
Liu Xiaoyi Pz 240 - - - 240

5,340 120 - 86 5,546
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2022

12. EEM < 2

BE-B-_F=A=+—RALLEE

Retirement
benefit
Directors’  Salaries and  Discretionary scheme
fees  allowances bonuses  contribution Total
EAEN
EShe HekER ML B ast
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i & TET TET TET TET TET
Executive Directors: RnEE:
Zheng Hao Jiang BETL (BEER)

(Co-Chairman) 1,980 60 - 44 2,084
Ma Chao (Co-Chairman) S (BEEXE) (i 240 - - 12 252
Zhao Xiaodong HOE(BIER)

(Deputy Chairman) 1,080 60 - 26 1,166
Zhu Lei RE 840 - - - 840
Non-executive Directors: FNTES:

Qi Jian Wei 2R (i) 98 - - - 98
Independent non-executive B FFHITES:

Directors:

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo &0 240 - - = 240
Lam Kwok Cheong HEE 240 - - - 240
Gao Yu B 240 - - - 240
Liu Honggiang ElpN 240 - - - 240
Liu Xiaoyi L 240 - - - 240

5,438 120 - 82 5,640
Notes: B -

(i) Mr. Qi Jian Wei passed away on 28 August 2021.

(if) Mr. Ma Chao retired as an executive director of the Company

with effect from 16 June 2023.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement

under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

13. EEEAAX

2023 2022
—EC-=E —E__fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FABTT
Employee costs, including EBEKRA BREEMHE
directors’ emoluments 61,573 59,210
Equity-settled share-based payment AR EE R0 A
B2 R 9,904 =
Retirement benefits scheme RIKAE ) 5T 8 4 K
contribution 12,676 10,982
Total employee costs BB AR 84,153 70,192
During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2023, no REE_T-_—_FK=-_FT=_=%=H

contribution was forfeited (by the Group on behalf of its
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) under the retirement benefit schemes which
may be used by the Group to reduce the contribution payable
in the future years. Accordingly, no forfeited contribution was
utilised during the years, and as at 31 March 2022 and 2023,
there was no forfeited contribution available to reduce the
Group’s future level of contributions to the retirement benefit

schemes.

7 o

=T —HLEFE SRR HAEH
FA R B AR A AR IR 4F /2 FE A+
KEFFTEIE R (HAREERRERH
HEEEEABERGE ZEEEL 2 H
;) At RAEEFEALESRER
WHR - MR ===
=A=1+—8 BEC R HE
RN & B 2 oK KGR R 48 7 &t & 1 30K

R Z TR

—E-—%F
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B RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 13. EERAM X (&)

(@) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, there are no (2022: three) directors of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed in Note
12 above. The emoluments payable to five (2022: two)
individuals during the year were as follows:

(a)

EEBESHFEAL

EASEREERFTALH L&
& B R E X128 % 2 A AR
EE(ZZT_=F:=%) - FNE
NAB(ZEZZF:WH)A L
ZEEmT

2023 2022
—E-= —F-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAIT

Salaries and other benefits e K EAMmiE A 1,709 2,062
Equity-settled share-based NHEREE RN A

payment AW 2R 9,221 =

Retirement benefit scheme RIKTE FE &I 3R
contributions 166 75
11,096 2,137

The emoluments payable to the non-director highest
paid individuals fell within the following bands:

BNFEEESFALTZHMEN T
R LEERE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-__fF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000% 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L=
1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L &
2,000,000 7T - =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L=
2,500,000 7© 5 -
5 2

220 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

14.

15.

DIVIDEND 14. R B

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed by the Company ARARWERBEE_T_—_FE_F

in respect of the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2023. —=F=A= + BIEFREIRM Tk
s EZ TR

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. 8% (F58) B

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings KRR EBERFTEABRGERERR

per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the B8 (18) /BRI ThER AT ST

Company is based on the following data: N

2023 2022
—EgE== g
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FEIT
(Loss)/earnings (E8]) &R
(Loss)/profit for the purposes of ARTESRER (BR)/
basic (loss)/earnings per share ARz (EBER),/mF (53,127) 34,052
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEESEBRR TE
shares:
Imputed interest on convertible bonds Al # % (& % < [E 5 7 & 655 610
(Loss)/profit for the purposes of ARAESREE (BB
diluted (loss)/earnings per share afz (E8) & (52,472) 34,662
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

15. B8R (E8) BF (%)

2023 2022
—EBE-=HF — T
(Re-presented)
(&e&E5)
Number of shares i S gE|
Weighted average number of ordinary FRTEFREN (FHE)
shares for the purposes of basic B 2 E R ke HE
(loss)/earnings per share (Note) (KEzE) 341,997,090 341,997,090
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEBRETBER I TE
shares:
— Convertible bonds issued —ARREBETZAIRRES
by the Company 2,500,000 2,500,000
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESKREE (KE),
shares for the purposes of calculating & F| 2 I 38 i% hAE F 39 2
diluted (loss)/earnings per share 344,497,090 344,497,090
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the MieE: ARGTESRER (BEB) &F2
purpose of basic (loss)/earnings per share has been adjusted TERMETFHEERBRREFANE
for the consolidation of every sixteen existing shares into one TARRBERGE M AE—REHRMD
consolidated share during the year as if effective since 1 April BT —FNA—BHRBERELHA
2021. o

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2023
does not assume the exercise of share options granted
by the Company because the exercise price of the share
options were higher than the average market price for the
shares. Besides, the computation of diluted loss per share
did not assume the conversion of convertible bonds as
the conversion of these convertible bonds would result in
decrease in loss per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2022 is with an anti-dilutive impact,
where interest per ordinary share obtainable on conversion
of convertible bonds exceeds basic earnings per share,
accordingly, the amount presented for the diluted earnings per
share is the same as the basic earnings per share amount.

222
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

16. Y15 - MBI R RE

Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
THREFT KH - RE RRE AE G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT
At 1 April 2021 R-E-_-§WA—AH
Cost %N 1,027,104 300,657 44,207 1,371,968
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERAE

impairment (122,800) (205,311) (22,565) (350,676)
Net carrying amount REFHE 904,304 95,346 21,642 1,021,292
Year ended 31 March 2022 BZ-Z__f=-A=+-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FNEEFE 904,304 95,346 21,642 1,021,292
Exchange differences EHZHE 37,720 3,581 567 41,868
Additions NE - 6,701 4,686 11,387
Acquisitions of property holding WEMEERAE

companies 487,776 - - 487,776
Disposals & - - (10,040 (10,040
Modification of leases HEBE] (71,663) = = (71,663)
Depreciation e (62,675) (24,287) (4,181) (91,143)
Closing net carrying amount EREHFHE 1,295,462 81,341 12,674 1,389,477
At 31 March 2022 R-B-Z_E=8A=+-H
Cost BN 1,437,907 BIlIBIETS 37,066 1,788,848
Accumulated depreciation and BHTERRE

impairment (142,445) (232,534) (24,392) (399,371)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,295,462 81,341 12,674 1,389,477
Year ended 31 March 2023 HE-Z-=F-ZA=Zt+-HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount FNREFE 1,295,462 81,341 12,674 1,389,477
Exchange differences ERES (103,941) (6,982) (935) (111,858)
Additions NE 19,298 12,884 31,071 63,253
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERZ K& E (Mi18)

(Note 18) (43,595) - - (43,595)
Disposals & - - (10,776) (10,776)
Depreciation e (54,381) (19,048) (4,555) (77,984)
Closing net carrying amount FERIREFHE 1,112,843 68,195 27,479 1,208,517
At 31 March 2023 R-E-_=5=A=+—H
Cost BN 1,290,171 310,548 52,406 1,663,125
Accumulated depreciation and ZRHERAE

impairment (177,328) (242,353) (24,927) (444,608)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,112,843 68,195 27,479 1,208,517
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

16.

17.

224

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the use of certain land
and buildings of the Group located in the People’s Republic
of China (“the PRC”) has been changed to long term leasing
purpose, as evidenced by the signing of the lease agreement
with the tenant for a term of 39 months on 28 September
2022. Accordingly, the carrying amount of the related land
and building (after revaluation upon the transfer) under
property, plant and equipment of HK$43,595,000 as at the
date of transfer was transferred to investment properties of
the Group.

The Group’s land and buildings with carrying amount of
approximately HK$942,087,000 (2022: HK$683,419,000)
were pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowing facilities
(Note 31).

LEASE

(@) The Group as lessee

The Group has lease contracts for building, office
premises, bonded warehouses, showrooms and retail
stores. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the interests in the leasehold land in the PRC.
Leases of office buildings generally have lease terms
ranging from two to fifteen years and lease payments are
fixed over the lease terms.

Certain leases of office buildings have lease terms of 12
months or less and the Group did not capitalised these
leases by applying the short-term lease recognition
exemption.

16. Y13 - HBRRE (&)

17.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

17. LEASE (continued)

(@) The Group as lessee (Continued)

17. A& (&)

(@) AKBEHEREBEA(E)

(i)  Right-of-use assets () EAEZE
The movements of the carrying amounts of the rEBERAEEECEES
Group’s right-of-use assets during the year are set BERFRNZEHHIWNT
out below:
Prepaid lease
payment Buildings Total
BAEE
MIE EF a3t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAT BT
At 1 April 2021 A\—F-—-FMA—H 554,543 210,486 765,029
Additions NE 451,837 = 451,837
Depreciation expense HEER (25,171) (32,325) (57,496)
Modification of leases MEEE - (71,663) (71,663)
Exchange differences AR 25,806 6,376 32,182
As at 31 March 2022 and R-_E__%=A=+—H
1 April 2022 KZZE-__%MA—H 1,007,015 112,874 1,119,889
Additions NE = 19,298 19,298
Depreciation expense WEER (30,490) (18,535) (49,025)
Transfer to investment properties HEERENE (39,492) - (39,492)
Exchange differences BN EH (81,104) (8,792) (89,896)
As at 31 March 2023 R-_E-_=F=A=+—H 855,929 104,845 960,774
The Group’s right-of-use assets in respect AEEBEEARREHSREL

of leasehold land with carrying amount of

approximately HK$806,833,000

(2022:

HK$557,043,000) were pledged to secure certain
bank loans granted to the Group.

806,833,000/8 70 (= ZE = —
£ : 557,043,000 ) & #
HELH 2 FAEEE U

REAEEERZE

= ty’( o

TRTT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

— = —

=

=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

17. LEASE (continued)

226

(a)

17. A& (&)

The Group as lessee (Continued) (a) XNEBEEREBEA(E)
(i) Lease liabilities (i) #HEEE
2023 2022
—EC-=E —ETE-__F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T T
As at 1 April HEA—H 393,001 390,546
New leases WS 19,298 =
Interest expense B &R 24,885 28,806
Lease payment HERIE (36,242) (49,369)
Interest payment FEAT K (24,885) (28,806)
Modification of leases HEEEF] - 37,514
Exchange differences fEH =58 (30,870) 14,310
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 345,187 393,001
Classified under: DEE:
Non-current portion FEMENE D 306,321 358,121
Current portion T EEE o 38,866 34,880
345,187 393,001
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

17. LEASE (continued)

(@) The Group as lessee (Continued)

(i)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

17. A& (&)

(a)

AEBER/EBA (F)

(i) HEEMFE (&)

AREBEREZ B HIF R

T
Future
lease
payments Interest Present value
RREERE FIE RE
31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2023 2023
—E-=F —E-=H —E-=H
=A=+—-H =ZHA=+—-H =ZB=+-—-H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET FHET
Not later than one TR —F
year 61,487 (22,621) 38,866
Later than one year ZR—FEBTNZRME
and not later than
two years 62,252 (19,845) 42,407
Later than two years ZHRMEEBTZRAF
and not later
than five years 168,705 (42,953) 125,752
Later than five years Z R EE 157,589 (19,427) 138,162
450,033 (104,846) 345,187
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

17. LEASE (continued)

(a)

(i)

(iii)

228

17. A& (&)

Information in relation to exemption of HKFRS

The Group as lessee (Continued) (a) TNEBEEREBEA(E)
Lease liabilities (Continued) (i) HEEE(E)
Future
lease
payments Interest  Present value
RIRHEEFIE A RE
31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2022 2022
T F =z =B F
ER=EF—8B ZEF=EF—B ZEH=ET—E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET TET TE T
Not later than one NER—
year 60,366 (25,486) 34,880
Later than one year ZR—FEBERZHRME
and not later than
two years 58,637 (23,318) 35,319
Later than two years ZRMFEERNZHRAF
and not later
than five years 178,627 (54,996) 123,631
Later than five years %R A F 232,875 (38,704) 199,171
530,505 (187,504) 393,001

(iii) BEEHETEHEHREER

16 Lease: F16% [HE | Z2&EH
2023 2022
—E_-=HF —=EF -
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T TE T
Short term lease expenses CSHEERY 2,835 2,483
Variable lease payments not FrEHEaERTE
included in the measurement FTAZ A EFHKIE
of lease liabilities 1,084 2,736

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4F ¥

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7



Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18. REWXE

2023 2022
—E-=5F B &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAIT
Fair value NIV

At beginning of the year RE] 437,425 379,998
Lease modification HEEET - 112,824

Transfer from property, plant EHE Y ERERRE
and equipment (Note 16) (FzE16) 43,595 =
Changes in fair value ANAEE (54,468) (69,999)
Exchange differences E 5 =% (32,690) 14,602
At end of the year RER 393,862 437,425

All investment properties of the Group are situated in
Mainland China and held under medium lease terms.

The Group measured the deferred tax relating to the
temporary differences of these investment properties using
the tax rates and the tax bases that are consistent with the
expected manner of recovery of these investment properties.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered
into a supplemental lease agreement, where lessor
requested to increase the original rent. The aggregate value
of consideration payable under the supplemental lease
agreement is approximately RMB302,315,000. No other
modification on the terms of existing lease. Under HKFRS
16, the Group recognised RMB92,526,000 (approximately
HK$112,824,000) of right-of-use asset as lease modification
regarding to this agreement.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 by CHFT Advisory
And Appraisal Limited (“CHFT”),
professional surveyors, on an open market value basis. The

an independent firm of

fair value measurement is disclosed in Note 41.7(i) to the
financial statements.

AEBZREMEE2HUNFEAM
WA I EIRRFFA -

AEEFREKEZEREYE AN
AA—BZBERBREAERBZRSTE
BYMECERER ZBELRA-

RBE_Z-__F=A=+—HI%F
B AEETY—MmExAERR &
- ERAZRERRES - BE/T
HERZENCRBRBAENARARYE
302,315,0007T ° 37 A 18 & & 510 & H b
EET - RIE BB R E LR FE165% -
REEE BRAR2,526,0007T (49
112,824,000/ 7T ) 2 (£ A #E & E A UL 1

I

EREATHEERAR ([E] B
BHEHNEMTIN-_TE-_—F=A=1+—
BEk—_FE=-=F=H=+—HEAAM
BEEEE[MAEE ZREMFE - AAME
ETER USRI E41.7() R o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the investment properties is under level 3 fair

value hierarchy.

Fair value is determined by applying the income approach,

using the term and reversion method, based on the estimated
rental value of the property. The valuation takes account of
the current rents of the property interests, the reversionary

potentials of the tenancies, term yield and reversionary yield,

and reversionary vyield is then applied respectively to derive

the market value of property.

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs:

18. REWZE (&)

REMEZAAREBE=MAAE
Ao

18]

AREDERNYEZ G HEE - ERF
HNEREERBRNEEE - HEMNR
MERENREBEHS MNETHONA
Bt BE1& 70 Bl A TH BRI 25 R M 1B 57 W e
KA EMENTISEE

ABEREATARRBABETZA
RAEEZ AR

Relationship of
unobservable inputs

Significant unobservable inputs to fair value

TABRE A EHR
ERFAREGAME DRAEZEER
2023 2022
—EZ=HE —E-F
Market yield (%)** T 3% (8] 3R 2 (%) ** 4.60 to 6.60 6.50 The higher the market yield,
4.60£6.60 the lower the
fair value.
iz e mERS
RABERE -
Unit market rent BRMEHRS 4.75 to 5.51 4.00t0 7.00 The higher the market rent,
(RMB/sgm)* (AR®/FEHK)* 4.75%5.51 4.002£7.00 the higher the
fair value.
mEfAsRE
Market unit rate mizEAHE 34,600 N/A  The higher the market unit
(RMB/sgm)* (AR¥/ ERHK)* REA  rate, the higher the fair

*

For leasing contracts
L For investment property

230 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4F ¥

value.
miZEMNHAERS

ARERS-

- BREES L
‘ BRI E



Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In addition, as a result of the increased uncertainty, significant
judgement is required when evaluating the inputs used in
the fair value estimate. Reasonably possible changes at the
reporting date to any of the relevant assumptions would
have affected the fair value of the investment properties as
presented below:

18. REWZE (&)

BEAN - BT BABA B =38 00 - B RE AR
mETAREMABABREELERH
B o miE BH - BRI EEAEE

AREE ) MEREMEZ R ARBEBK
FEMT:

Market yield decreased by 0.5% 5 B & X T %0.5%
(2022: 0.5%) (ZEBE-_-%:05%)

Unit market rent decreased by 2.5% B MEME S T %K2.5%
(2022: 2.5%) L_E:;:¢-25%>

Market unit rate decreased by 2.5% HEBEMEET¥%2.5%
(2022: N/A) ZEZZF:TEA)

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2023, there were
no transfer into or out of Level 3 or any other Level. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between Levels of the
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s investment property with
carrying amount of approximately HK$42,045,000 (2022: nil)
was pledged as security for the Group’s borrowing facilities.

2023 2022
—_E_-= —_=EFE-—

HK$’000 HK$’'000

T & T FB T

6,634 8,254

(8,795) (10,936)

(1,023) N/A i@ F

/&ﬁ@%%%bﬂ%% &= REERS
(RERRRTEZR) SER

RBEZET-_—_FR-ZF=Z=%F=H1
=+t HLEFE UESALEHE=
B A MEAMER - NEB 2 BR AR
AAERBRAS R 2 EEEERE W
EHRERZ T EE -

RZZEZ=F=A=+—H Xx5H
BR T & 8 442,045,000 T (=T = =
F\E)CIREMECHELR ERAE
EEERE 2ER.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

19.

232

GOODWILL

The net carrying amount of goodwill is analysed as follows:

. BB

BEZREFEITIT

2023 2022
—E-=5F —EFE-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T T
At cost: R AN
At beginning of the year REA] 836,575 809,066
Exchange differences E X =% (66,545) 27,509
At end of the year RER 770,030 836,575
Accumulated impairment: REFRE
At beginning of the year REH] (503,353) (423,409)
Impairment loss recognised T SRRk (B /5 18 (4,452) (65,904)
Exchange differences & 5 =% 40,090 (14,040)
At end of the year RER (467,715) (5603,353)
Net carrying amount BRTH F %8 302,315 333,222

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the

PTEERBRGELBNU BEZRAS

cash-generating unit is as follows: KR :

2023 2022
—EBECZ=HF T

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Auto dealership YT 5 8 207,029 224,920
Property management services Y% EE IR 95,286 108,302
302,315 333,222
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

19. GOODWILL (continued)

For the purpose of the goodwill impairment test, the directors
determined the recoverable amounts of the CGUs from value-
in-use calculations with reference to the business valuations
performed by management and CHFT, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuers where applicable using the
income approach, i.e. pre-tax cash flow projections from
formally approved budgets covering a detailed five-year
budget plan, where period not covered by the budget and up
to the end of remaining useful life is extrapolated. The cash
flow projections applied in determination of the recoverable
amounts of each CGUs are best estimate of the range of
economic condition that will exist over the remaining useful
life of the CGUs.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are:

19.

BE g

BEBRENANE EFH2EEE
BRBUIEXAEBRMGEMTES (W
) AIAOE (R IEA B R E
HANFREMEZAESHZHAR
ERERAIFHZERMGEE RER
BEAEBETHSEABLU ZAKEE
B EESENNZHEREEHR T E
PR AT 2 7] @ & 58RI E 1T
B-BERESELBUNAKOESE
REMANBESRENSHENREESE
BUSKRTARFHATENSERRE
B B mx = A E o

EREEFE <BEBERET:

2023 2022
—EgE-= —_F__
Re: Auto dealership 39T |
Growth rate after five-year period hEHREZIERE 0% 0%
Discount rate A 3R & 17% 17%
2023 2022
—EC-=HE —E-__fF
Re: Property management BR WEEERKE
services
Growth rate after five-year period hFHE 2 IERE 3% 3%
Discount rate Ah 3R & 16% 17%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

19.

234

GOODWILL (continued)

The key assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and its expectations for the market’s share
after taking into consideration published market forecast and
research. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the CGUs.

For the year ended 31 March 2023

The remaining lease term of the sub-lease project of the
CGU of the property management services lapses over time,
resulting less future cash flow with decreasing remaining lease
term under income approach. The recoverable amount of the
CGU has been determined to be HK$315,333,000 by the
Directors with reference to a value-in-use calculation, using
cash flow projection covering the remaining lease term of the
property leases, based on estimates and financial budgets
approved by management, with a pre-tax rate of 16% as at
March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, based on the result of the assessment,
management determined that the recoverable amount of the
CGU is lower than the carrying amount of HK$319,734,000.
The impairment amount has been allocated to each category
of goodwill, property, plant and equipment, and other
intangible assets such that the carrying amount of each
category of asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less cost of disposal of HK$218,179,000 and its
value in use of HK$315,333,000. Based on the value-in-
use calculation and the allocation, impairment losses of
approximately HK$4,452,000 have been recognised against
that carrying amount of goodwill and no class of asset other
than goodwill is impaired.
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10. B8 (&)

ARBRRDBRBEERR UARESE
B A5 IER R T 2 W5 1) B IER
RERE - PIERA BRI R DB ATIEE -
YRMRRSELEMABEZHERR-

BE-—SE-=%=ZA=1+—HLEE

BEBERANE NEEERBREELS
EEFAIE H 2 82 T 10 HABE RS FE JE o - 2B
BARReREEH THEBRD T
fR-MN-_T-_=F=F BEECLBEH
BEITEETZREEAEM ZAIKE
& %8 43815,333,000%8 7L  F A EEFH
MARB G REEREIfE 2 METE
BT R16%EITREMERE
BRTIHEBZRSREARSE -

R-BE-_=Z#=ZfA=+—10 EEER
B EERET ZRSELBM 2T
U Bl & 581K 72 AR E £ 58319,734,0007%
ToRBESHEESIEERE W S
REBAREMEBREESER  BE
BEEERNZEASHEIERBEER
HARER & A A218,179,000/%8 7T &
H{# (B 1E315,333,000/8 T2 R = °
RREABAEFELRSR BEZER
& FH B FE AR (B B335 494,452,000/ 7T, -
T BR B RSN - I 4% & B 2R R 3R R
=
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

19. GOODWILL (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continueqd)

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the CGUs above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other possible changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates in auto-dealership
CGU whose recoverable amount exceeded the carrying
amount, and therefore no impairment is required.

For the year ended 31 March 2022

One of the sub-lease projects was expired in April 2021
and not be renewed after its expiry, and one of the property
management contracts has been early terminated during the
year ended 31 March 2022 due to the change in properties
ownership which rendered the property management
contract unexecutable; management concluded that there
was indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment by determining the recoverable amounts of
certain items of relevant assets including goodwill, property,
plant and equipment and other intangible assets.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the property
management services has been determined to be
HK$350,274,000 by the Directors with reference to a value-
in-use calculation, using cash flow projection based on
estimates and financial budgets approved by management
with a pre-tax discount rate of 17% as at 31 March 2022.

190. B8 (&)

BE-—SE-=%=ZA=1+—HLEE
(%)

BRriETReELBENZEREER
Ptz & B E RS AR EE R EIRE
W ARMBEEMEMAEES S EH L
AHAEDHACELAEM 2 T B
FREHSRE - T HE AR E S BB
EEE Bt BARELRE-

BE-F-_—_F=ZA=+t—-HLHEFE

Hf—E#MAEEER-_E=-—FMA
B HEWESE mMET—HDUES
BAENRYMERBEZB MK AT A
T HRERBE-_TE-_—F=A=1+—
BIEFERAKIE EEERALER
BENR WERETHBEES THEE
(BEME W HBERREAREA
BEEE)ZAKRESE #ETRERT
fly o

R-E-_—_F#=F=+—H %22
REABENEECEEERGRS
EE BN 2 7] Y E £ FF A350,274,000
BT FRAEBEEENARKRMEG K&
EIREHOEZ W ISTEE - AT AT AL IR X
17%ETHRSRERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

19.

236

GOODWILL (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continueqd)

As at 31 March 2022, based on the result of the assessment,
management determined that the recoverable amount of the
CGU is lower than the carrying amount of HK$416,992,000.
The impairment amount has been allocated to each category
of goodwill, property, plant and equipment such that the
carrying amount of each category of asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal of
HK$278,117,000 and its value in use of HK$350,274,000.
Based on the value in use calculation and the allocation,
impairment losses of approximately HK$65,904,000 have
been recognised against the carrying amount of goodwill and
no class of asset other than goodwill is impaired.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the CGUs above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other possible changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates in auto-dealership
CGU whose recoverable amount exceeded the carrying
amount, and therefore no impairment is required.
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BE-—ES-—fF=ZA=1+—HLEE
(%)

R-_ZE-_—_F=A=+—H BEEBR
BIMERET ZBEeELEENZ
A Y [B] & 58K 70 BR [ & §8416,992,000
BL - BRELECIREEE -ME-
BERZESEN BESEEERNZ
FEBYEREERREQAAEBER
& Bk AN278,117,0007% 7T X # F (B &
350,274,000 7T 2 k= & ° iRREFAE
BFfERHSRE BHEZEESBEE ER
B (185 18 #965,904,00058 7T * 1 Bk 7 2
AN 7 8 H 4t 3 AE Bl BRI (E o

BRLiETReELAEUZEREER
Ptz AR REBEIEBRE
Y AEEEMEMBAIEE B @G TN
BHAEOHRSELEM 2 T2 A
SRENNE  ME KD EBEBER
EEE Bt BAELRME-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. EERLEE

Customers’
list from
property
management
Film rights contracts Total
VEEE
EXE SBHEFEE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
T T T T T T
At 1 April 2021 R-FE-—FMA—H
Gross carrying amount R4 178,571 141,755 320,326
Accumulated amortisation and 2 5T 8 5 & B B
impairment (27,8206) (27,478) (55,304)
Net carrying amount AR AR 150,745 114,277 265,022
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-—®T—_—
ZA=+—-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount F AR EF RE 150,745 114,277 265,022
Amortisation B iH - (10,350) (10,350)
Exchange adjustment bE 5 & 5,584 3,445 9,029
Impairment R - (8,732) (8,732)
Written off i 85 - (44,638) (44,638)
Closing net carrying amount FRIREF R 156,329 54,002 210,331
At 31 March 2022 R-ZB-_—H=A=+—H
Gross carrying amount R 185,185 78,000 263,185
Accumulated amortisation and 2 5T 8 §5 & B E
impairment (28,856) (23,998) (52,854)
Net carrying amount BRI F5E 156,329 54,002 210,331
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—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

20.

238

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 20. Htt B\ E=E (#)
Customers’
list from
property
management
Film rights contracts Total
MEER
EFE SHNEFEE &5t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT AT
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-Z_-=
ZA=+—-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount FYIREFRE 156,329 54,002 210,331
Amortisation 5 - (6,091) (6,091)
Exchange adjustment ME 5, 38 & (12,435) (4,227) (16,662)
Closing net carrying amount FIRARTEF R 143,894 43,684 187,578
At 31 March 2023 R-ZE-_=%=H=+—H
Gross carrying amount IRE A% 170,455 71,795 242,250
Accumulated amortisation and 2 51 # $5 KR &
impairment (26,561) (28,111) (54,672)
Net carrying amount BREF 5 143,894 43,684 187,578

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a total amount
of HK$44,638,000 of customers’ list from a property
management contract was written off due to the change of
properties ownership which leading the property management
contracts became unexecutable.

There was a change in properties ownership of another sub-
lease projects, which leads to an uncertainty in renewing the
property management contracts and may be unexecutable.
The impairment losses of approximately HK$8,732,000
have been recognised against the carrying amount of the
customers’ list from property management contracts for the
year ended 31 March 2022.
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B BERYMEREERE  AREENT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21. RAAEFARMEZERAZ
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE TRMEE

INCOME (“FVTOCI”)

2023 2022
—E-=5F —E &
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHET T T
Listed equity securities, at fair EWBRAFES  BARE
value, classified as financial DERERALBEFA
assets at FVTOCI HEm2EWAZSRMEE
- Listed equity securities in —FNELEMRAES (M)
Denmark (Note) 157,087 319,766
- Listed equity securities in — BB EMBRARES
Hong Kong 1,308 -
158,395 319,766
Note: The balance represented the investment in Bang & Olufsen A/S, MisE : s% &5 #RF5 W Bang & Olufsen A/S (—
a company incorporated in Denmark, whose shares are listed KR EFME 2 AR HEH R
on NASDAQ Copenhagen A/S. M ER T ABRROHABRA A L
M) 2i&& -
The fair value of the listed equity securities were based on EHBRABEFZAREDER =T
quoted market price as at 31 March 2022 and 2023. The FR-ZBZ=F=ZRA=+—BMR®BzZ™®
equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value BERTE - HRAEBRAEZSERE
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers BREEERE  MRAKREE TR HLE
these investments to be strategic in nature. HIETEREAEFTALMEERA -
o 3 +
22. BALANCES WITH NON-CONTROLLING 22, HFER B 2 H R
INTERESTS
The amounts due from/(to) non-controlling interests are FEUS ~ (FEART) FEIERARME RS 2 OB A EIR
unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand. e RAREREER-
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23. INVENTORIES

24,

240

23. F&

2023 2022

—E-=EF —ETE-__fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T TE T

Raw materials and consumables R % B FE G 32,204 32,128
Film production in progress ERE R 6,673 8,446
Merchandised goods P ah 1,190,884 1,320,599
1,229,761 1,361,173

As at 31 March 2023, merchandised goods of approximately
HK$610,328,000 (2022: HK$635,119,000) have been
pledged to secure the loan facilities (Note 31).

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

(a)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables mainly represent rental receivable from
tenants, and sales from customers. The Group’s trading
terms with its retail customers are mainly receipts in
advance from customers or cash on delivery, except for
certain transactions with creditworthy customers where
the credit period is extendable up to three months,
whereas the trading terms with wholesale customers
are generally one to two months. In addition, the Group
generally provides a credit term of two to three months
to automobile manufacturers for the in-warranty after-
sales services. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding trade receivables and has
a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

24. RREZRE BRERUR
Be RAAFEREMER

FIE (&)

RECEIVABLES (continuead)

(a) Trade receivables (Continued) (a) EWEZRE(Z)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of

RBEHRENERAH 2 BKE

the reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as SRIBZ R DITAT
follows:

2023 2022
—E-=H =2E = —&E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T THE T
0 — 30 days 02 30H 26,919 19,183
31 - 120 days 31£120H 3,662 8,640
121 — 365 days 121£365H 5,647 —
36,228 27,823

Trade receivables that were

impaired related to certain customers from whom there
was no recent history of default.

(b) Loan receivables

neither past due nor credit-

FE@-

(b) EWER

ARERATEEEREZ EBKRE HH
BYERE TR ERNLCE T

2023 2022
—E-=5F —=E-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 THET T T
Loans to independent MBIE=ZFTER
third parties:
- Loan A —BxH (i) 33,623 57,943
- Loan B —8x% (ii) 32,000 32,000
65,623 89,943
Impairment allowance REFHE (iii) (65,623) (55,472)
- 34,471

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R EBE R 2 7 241
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 3k



B RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

=

=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continuead)

242

(b)

Loan receivables (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

The Group entered into the loan agreement on 4 March
2021 with a borrower which is an independent third party
with a principal amount of HK$58,000,000 for a term of
12 months, bearing interest at a rate of 6.5% per annum.
The loan is secured by a charge over receivables of the
borrower executed by the borrower; and a personal
guarantee executed by the guarantor. Pursuant to the
terms of the loan agreement, the borrower shall pay
quarterly interests on the loan and shall fully repay
the loan together with all outstanding accrued interest
payable under the loan agreement to the lender on the
maturity date (4 March 2022). The borrower had been
paying the quarterly interests on the loan to the lender
on time during the term of the loan agreement. However,
the borrower failed to repay the loan with outstanding
principal amount of HK$57,943,000 and the accrued
interest of HK$929,000 on the maturity date. The Group
sought legal advice and took enforcement action where
possible. The borrower further repaid HK$24,320,000
during the year ended 31 March 2023 upon legal
actions taken, with outstanding principal amount of
HK$33,623,000 and accrued interest of HK$2,631,000.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 4 March 2021, 1 and 29 April 2022, 8,
18 and 24 August 2022 and 1 September 2022.

24. RWEZRE BRERUR
Be RAATEREMER

I\ (&)

(b)

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4

BWER (&)

3 :

(i)

R-ZE-_—F=AMWH A&H
2B E=ZHERATL
B3 - A4 % 558,000,000
BT A2 B R FF R
6.5%5T B o Z B A& AT
H R GRIE SR S 2 R R R
AFRN 2 B AEREEAR - R IE
BRI ERARKRSE
EXHERFE ¥ AR H
B(ZZ2-Z—F=-AmA)RE
FAZBEEEFURREE
RinEENZTA M AEEE
FTFIE - fERA—EHEEKHE
HRRNIEERERAXFER
WZEFE - 2R - BIRAKBE
FRHHBEEERZAEER
% F857,943,0007% JT & FE 51 F
£.929,0008 e A BB F 3k
ERER  WRATITIER TERE
BHHITITE - RBEZT ==
F=ZA=+—HLEEE A&
BEBUEETERE  ERAE
— A {8#824,320,000/% 7 * A&
EBEACERESNEDRA
33,623,000/ 7T &2,631,0007
T BEFBBLEAARAH
BT -_—F=-ANHE-=F
—_—FMA—HEZ=-+IB"
T _FNANB-TNAB K
Zt+OARER=ZTE=Z=_F A
=B Z2A%se
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continuead)

(b)

Loan receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(if)

The Group entered into the loan agreement on 22 March
2021 with a borrower who is an independent third party
with a principal amount of HK$32,000,000 for a term of
12 months, bearing interest at a rate of 7% per annum.
The loan is secured by a personal guarantee executed
by the guarantor. Pursuant to the terms of the loan
agreement, the borrower shall pay quarterly interests
on the loan and shall fully repay the loan together with
all outstanding accrued interest payable under the loan
agreement to the lender on the maturity date (22 March
2022). The borrower had been paying the quarterly
interests on the loan to the lender on time during the
term of the loan agreement. However, the borrower failed
to repay the loan with outstanding principal amount of
HK$32,000,000 and the accrued interest of HK$560,000
on the maturity date. The Group sought legal advice and
commenced legal action against the borrower and the
guarantor. Upon sealed judgements obtained from the
High Court of Hong Kong, the borrower and guarantor
should repay the principal amount of HK$32,000,000
and accrued interest of HK$799,000. During the year
ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of the report,
there is no settlements received from the borrower or the
guarantor. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 22 March 2022, 29 April 2022, 8
December 2022 and 20 February 2023.

24. RREZRE BRERUR
Be RAAFEREMER

I\ (&)

(b)

BWER (&)

P & -

(ii)

(%)

R-ZE-_—F=A=—+=8"
AEER-—FBIYE=F1
RATLERGH ALER
32,000,0005 7t * A HA121E A
REFR7%5T 8 o % BRI
RAZEYL Z BABRERR R
BERBEOIER  BERARR
FEXNERFE - WEREE
B(ZE==f=A=+=H)
MERXRAZEEEEZARR
BER RN FTA AR ER
JEET AR - fERA—EEER
FHRARBEMNERAZNGE
FEZEEFE AW BRAR
BEERHAERBERZ AEER
7K & %832,000,0007 It K f& &t
F B560,0008 T-AKBEE S
JEEER  WE HERANME
RARBIERFR - NEERH
BEER 2R Z MEEE X
K& ERARBERABEER
$32,000,0007% 7t K& f& &1 ) 8
799,000 Lo REZE T ==
FZA=t+—ALFEREE
HEBBIE BEERARE
RAWEERER - BB 1ER
2HARBBRAA-T_—F
=A-+=—B -—ZT=-__—FmA
ZtABR - ZE=_=F+=ZAN
BR=—ZZT=-Z=%F-A=+HZ

N
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continuead)

244

(b)

(c)

24. RWEZRE BRERUR
Be RAATEREMER

I\ (&)

Loan receivables (Continued) (b) EWER(Z)

Notes: (Continued) sk : (&)

(i) Management performed an impairment analysis with iy BEEEE2R—HEBILEES
reference to the expected credit loss assessment BEREEMITE N LHEARE
performed by Masterpiece Valuation Advisory Limited RAR([EH])EITZEEE
(‘Masterpiece”), an independent firm of professionally BB FERERTRL
qualified valuer, by considering the probability of default WMEBHZEERETRED T
with credit ratings. As at 31 March 2023, the probability R—_E_=F=ZA=+—8"
of default applied was 100% (2022: 100%) and the loss FEF 2 BAMER/I00% (ZF
given default was estimated to be 100% (2022: ranged ZZF:100% ) - mE LB KRG
from 61.50% to 61.77%). T A100% (ZZE==F N T

61.50%%61.77%) °
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (c) & FEHREREMEKRRIE
2023 2022

—EBE-=HF T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 & T T T

Deposits e 25,154 36,884

Other receivables H fib & U SR8 57,595 99,328

Prepayments TE B RIE 43,446 89,910

Loan interest receivables  [E W & X F| B 3,430 1,489

Value-added tax AT 4 (B 1 {E A

recoverable 51,107 44,196
180,732 271,807

Impairment allowance AE R 24(b)(iii) (3,430) (918)
177,302 270,889
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

25. INVESTMENT IN FILMS AND TELEVISION 25. REEFRERTE
PROGRAM
2023 2022
—EgE== —_F-_
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAB 7T
Investment in films, at fair value RESY EAnEFABRE
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 20,589 31,830
Investment in television program, HEEREE EHARE
at FVTPL FFAE@mRE 29,179 31,907
49,768 63,737

The amount represents investment projects with certain
production houses for co-production of films and television
program. The investments are governed by the relevant
agreements whereby the Group is entitled to benefits
generated from the distribution of these films and television
program.

The Group’s investment in films and television program were
revalued on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 by CHFT
Advisory and Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
professional surveyors. Fair value is determined by applying
the income approach, using the discounted cash flow
method, based on the estimated distribution income of the
films. The valuation takes into account of expected income to
be generated from the box offices receipts and other income
streams. The discount rates have been adjusted for the
marketability and current market conditions.

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R EBE R 2 7

ZHBERAETRHABARREET R
ERMBIRERRE REREXIEH

WERE B AREEREAETX
SEFLEAHBEE 2 -

ERHEATEBERAR (BYEFAE
TR —F=A=+—Bk=
E_=F=A=t+—HEFMLTEEZK
BB REREE - ARBERBRAE
BEREZ 2 BTWARRRRERES
MELEE - HEMREHEEWE R
H A RIRE £ 2 A - B3 R B 5t
A S8 M K & B T O A EE o
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—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

25. INVESTMENT IN FILMS AND TELEVISION 25. RESXRERTE (&)
PROGRAM (continued)

HERSEATATEERGARBZANE
ATEABZER:

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs:

Relationship of
unobservable inputs

Significant unobservable inputs to fair value

TR BEHAHE
BERTABEHAHE HAARBEZER
2023 2022
—BZ=F —F -
Average returns 15 [B] #Hy & 26.5% t0 95.9%  22.1% t0 96.2%  The higher the average
26.5%%Z95.9% 22 1% %96.2% returns, the higher
the fair value.
FHEIFREL S -
NAE#R -
Discount rate Ah 3R & 14.2% to 44.6%  26.2% to 39.4%  The higher the
14.2%Z44.6% 26.2%%239.4% discount rate, the
lowerer the fair value.
ARIRE e -
N EMIE -
In addition, as a result of the increased uncertainty, significant BEAN - B S BABA B = 38 00 - RS REAE

BEt AR EMRBAERAELEARH
- NmEB S HERRNEEFSRE

reporting date to any of the relevant assumptions would have e HEREEZTREREHTE 2
NABEBKTZERT :

judgement is required when evaluating the inputs used in
the fair value estimate. Reasonably possible changes at the

affected the fair value of the investment in films and television
program as presented below:

2023 2022
—Eg=-= =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FBIT
Average returns decreased 18 R R 5%
by 5% (2022: 5%) (—E——%:5%) (1,898) (1,813)
Discount rate decreased BLIR & TEF1%
by 1% (2022: 1%) TE - Fi1%) 771 645
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=%F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

=

25. INVESTMENT IN FILMS AND TELEVISION

PROGRAM (continued)

Reconciliation for investment in films and television program
carried at fair value based on significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) are as follows:

25. REEFZRERHE (#)

RERBANIBREG AREZ ANE
(F=AIRZBREEXNERGAY
BRIAE

2023 2022
—=E_-= —=EFE-—

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET T T

At beginning of the year REF] 63,737 65,023
Changes in fair value NAEEE (9,001) (3,649)
Exchange differences PE 5 =R (4,968) 2,363
At end of the year RER 49,768 63,737

The Group acquired the investments through the acquisition
of San Sparkle International Investment Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “San Sparkle Group”) during
the year ended 31 March 2019. Pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement, the Group conditionally agreed to
purchase and the vendor conditionally agreed to sell the
entire equity interests of the San Sparkle Group at an initial
consideration of issue of 340,000,000 shares of the Company
and the contingent consideration, in which the Company
will issue the convertible bonds with reference to a formula
as stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement, in the
event that the financial performance of the San Sparkle
Group meets the designated targets within the three years
ended 31 December 2021 in any reporting period since the
date of acquisition (i.e. 17 January 2019). As at the date of
acquisition, the fair value of the contingent consideration was
assessed to be minimal, based on the budgeted profit after
tax of the San Sparkle Group, probability of issuance of the
convertible bonds and fair value of the convertible bonds.
For the year ended 31 March 2022, since the San Sparkle
Group did not reach the designated targets within the period,
therefore, no convertible bonds is issued.

RBEZZT—NLE=A=+—HLHF
B AEBEZRWNERBEKARIEE
BRARIREWB AR (AT [ BREBRER
EEDBEAKRE BRBEEEHZ A&
EERGREBEMEABKREREL
ERBEKER 2 2 5RE MR KRE
#%%17340,000,0008% 2~ A &) f& 17 * T2k
ARERMBRRBRMEE M BHERRB
WEAH (I =E—N"F—A++tH)#
RBE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HI1E=
BFEERNERREAREREEAZE
AR AR B2 EEE H=AYIA QN E
TAARRES - IAULEE B B - IRIRER IR EY
REBEZEERTIE R - 21T AR
EH Al RATRRES 2 AAE
SIAREBZRAABELTHBMTEMN-
BHE_T-_—"F#=A=+—HItFE"
HRBRBE RSBV ENANERIEE
B M EBTmRES-
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26.

248

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AT
BANKS AND IN HAND

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. As at 31 March 2023, the deposits bore
interest rates ranging from 0.01%-3% (2022: 0.3%-1.95% per
annum) which are close to the market interest rates.

The Group’s deposits of HK$75,229,000 (2022:
HK$84,111,000) have been pledged to secure loan facilities
granted to the Group (Note 31), which will be released upon
the settlement of the relevant borrowings.

As at 31 March 2023, the cash at banks and in hand and
pledged deposits of the Group which were dominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and held in Mainland China were
HK$210,826,000 (2022: HK$213,493,000). RMB is not
a freely convertible currency. Under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7
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26. EEREFERUARBITRFE

B

IRITRE 2B THIRET BRITHERFX
WEBHE R E_=F=F=+—
B BERAFEFENT0.01%E3% (=
E-FFMENF0.3%E1.95%)
TR BRETMISFIE -

NEE 2 1F375,229,0008 L (=&
— — % :84,111,000/8 7t) E T &K -
AAEEER 2 ERBEFEER (HE
31) HFRERENEREBEERR-

R—_TE_=ZF=ZA=Z+—H8 &&E
BrsROERFERREEHREFER
(AUAREAE RPFBERMLES)
/210,826,000 L (=T = =
213,493,000/ 7L) - ARMAI B A&
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—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

27. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HWREREER
(a) Reconciliation of acquisition of property holding (a) EZFWEWEZERAGAZHE

companies in previous year

The table below details the assets and liabilities acquired TRFIWRBEZEZTE-_—_F=H

in the acquisitions of property holding companies during =+ HIEFEZYEZERA R

the year ended 31 March 2022, classified in the Group’s BEEPUBZ2EERABE ER

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from AEBEZGERESRERTHES
investing activities. BREGHZRERE -

2022

-

HK$’000

FE T

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) L/ EE *%%”*& 1# (FzE16) (487,776)

Trade receivables B E 58 (8,185)

Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERE (7,803)

Receipts in advance, accrued charges TEW IR ERTE A &

and other payables H b & {5 3R I8 4,908

Non-controlling interests JE 2R I 2 159,843

Total consideration paid in cash ENBReRERLRE (339,013)

Less: cash of subsidiary acquired B ERBEBNBARIZIRS 7,803

Acquisition of property holding companies Uz B8 ¥ 2 = i% A &

- net of cash acquired — KRB W ﬁ%ﬁi (331,210)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) METHFELEEBEHE

activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRARSEREGFHMELERRE
from financing activities, including both cash and non- 22 (BRBEKIFEEH)
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities HE RMEEDMELEABEAET
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash iﬁimu%?iéjzﬁféfﬁiumiﬁ—ra
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated RAEBEGERERERDE AR
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing EEgRenscaEe.
activities.
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27. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

250

7. HIREREER (&)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) METBHFELEEEYHE (&)
activities (Continued)
Amounts due
to non- Convertible
controlling bonds - debt Lease
interests Borrowings component liabilities Total
EfS 12 1 TRRES
EEHRE & & g HE&E CH
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEn ThER TE R TEn TER
(Note 22) (Note 31) (Note 32) (Note 17)
(HE22) (HEs1) (K 5E32) (HE17)
s 1 April 2022 RZE-—4¥MA-A 11,420 1,064,691 8,745 393,001 1,471,857
Changes from financing cash EER & RER
flows:
Advances to non-controling 4 FHBA AR RES BT
interests of subsidiaries (2,617) - - - (2,617)
Proceeds from new borrowings #71%{& & 2 Fi 15 58 - 3,868,730 - - 3,868,730
Repayment of borrowings BEEE - (3,880,664) - - (3,880,664)
Interest paid on borrowings ~ EE ZEFIE - (70,728) - - (70,728)
Interest paid on lease liabilities & & &2 B # & - - - (24,885) (24,885)
Payment for lease liabilties ~ HEBENH - - - (36,242) (36,242)
Total changes from financing  BERERELBHEE
cash flows (2,617) (82,662) - (61,127) (146,406)
Exchange adjustments AR (794) (55,846) - (30,870) (87,510)
Other changes: s
Interest on borrowings BEZHE - 70,728 - - 70,728
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZFIE - - - 24,885 24,885
Imputed interest on aRES 2B S
convertible bond - - 655 - 655
Addition of leases B0 - - - 19,298 19,298
At 31 March 2023 W-ZE-=#=ZfR=+-H 8,009 996,911 9,400 345,187 1,359,507
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

27. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

7. HIREREER (&)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) METBFELEBHER(£)
activities (Continued)
Amounts due
to non- Convertible
controlling bonds - debt Lease
interests Borrowings component liabilities Total
JEfTIEERR maRES
ErnE BE EBHH HEAE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL TAT TAT TET
(Note 22) (Note 31) (Note 32) (Note 17)
(Ki322) (HizEs1) (FizE32) (MizE17)
s 1 April 2021 RZE-—-4¥MA-A 9,999 449,912 8,135 390,546 868,592
Changes from financing cash ®ER & RES
flows:
Advances from non-controlling Hi B2 A FF R ER 23
interests of subsidiaries 1,022 - - - 1,022
Proceeds from new borrowings #732fE & 2 Frig 78 4,206,909 - - 4,206,909
Repayment of borrowings BEfEE - (3,608,644) - - (3,608,644)
Interest paid on borrowings £ & ZERFIE - (43,232) - - (43,232)
Interest paid on lease liabilities € & &2 2 (7] 8 - - - (28,806) (28,806)
Payment for lease liabilties ~ HEBENH - - - (49,369) (49,369)
Total changes from financing  BERERELBHEE
cash flows 1,022 555,033 - (78,175) 477,880
Exchange adjustments BB 399 16,514 - 14,310 31,223
Other changes: s
Interest on borrowings BEZHE - 43,232 - - 43,232
Interest on lease liabilities HERRZHE - - - 28,806 28,806
Imputed interest on R ES 2B S
convertible bond - - 610 - 610
Modification of leases BEET - - - 37,514 37,514
Rent concession HEER - _ _ _ _
At 31 March 2022 W-ZE-_#=ZfR=+-H 11,420 1,064,691 8,745 393,001 1,477,857
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—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

28.

29.

252

TRADE PAYABLES 28. EHE ZME
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based RBERARERZZAH L ENE SR
on the invoice dates as at the end of the reporting period: B2 REDITUT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T T
0 — 30 days 0£30H 10,578 7,838
31 - 60 days 31Z260H 18,129 134,379
61 — 90 days 61£290H - -
Over 90 days B0 H 1,710 632
30,417 142,849
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. B E
2023 2022
—EZ=HF —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T T
Contract liabilities arising from ILNTHEELEZANERE
Sales of goods HEE m 136,600 195,632
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

— = —

=

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (cContinued)

30.

=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

2. EWNAE (&)

Movements in contract liabilities EHNEEEH
2023 2022
—E-=5F —EFE-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET T T
At 1 April AU A—H 195,632 292,925
Decrease as a result of recognising B £ A & 52 U8 25 1M s
revenue during the year (195,632) (292,925)
Increase as a result of receipts in  FE T8I 4 E & & I8 M 15 0
advance for sales of goods 136,600 195,632
At 31 March R=A=+—H 136,600 195,632

The contract liabilities are related to the advance
considerations received from the customers for sales of
automobiles and other merchandised goods, revenue from

eHEEERTEREMEREE (K
W NEBRAEP XM AEREME M
BITRAORTHER) KRB EF 2

which is recognised when the performance obligation TEWRRERR -
is satisfied by delivering the automobiles and other
merchandised goods to the customers.
RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED 30. A RE B EARHEAM
CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES PE 14+ FX 18
2023 2022
—E-= —_F-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T BT
Refundable rental deposits and AREMcEe RTEKREFKIE
receipts in advance from
customers 22,206 34,125
Accrued charges and other FEET & A K B th FE 1 5RIE
payables 168,947 93,267
191,153 127,392
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—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

31. BORROWINGS 31. B &
2023 2022
—E-=EF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T TE T
Current Vi)

Bank loans RITE X 142,523 178,635
Other loans E B 569,445 663,834
711,968 842,469

Non-current JERE
Bank loans RITEF 284,943 222 222
Total &5t 996,911 1,064,691

Effective interest rates per annum

in range of:
— fixed rate borrowings

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

4.5% to 8.5%
4.5%%8.5%

1.64% to 8.5%
1.64%%8.5%

AEEARENEERELT

2023 2022
—E_-= —=E-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET T T

Expiring within one year R—FERNE R 286,173 62,558
Expiring in the second to REZEZEFREA

fifth year inclusive (BREEEMT)EM 97,313 285,440

Expiring after fifth year KA FEE R 143,205 -

526,691 347,997
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

31. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viil)

The borrowings are denominated in RMB and HK$.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2023, certain inventories (Note 23)
and pledged deposits (Note 26) were pledged to secure the
loan facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2023, the Group’s certain property,
plant and equipment (Note 16) were pledged to secure the loan
facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s investment property (Note
18) was pledged to secure the loan facilities granted by the
Group.

Certain borrowings were secured by corporate guarantees
executed by the Company and certain subsidiaries during the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2023.

Certain borrowings were secured by guarantees executed by a
director of the Group and his spouse, and a director of a PRC
subsidiary during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2023.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2023, certain borrowings were
guaranteed by state-owned enterprise of the PRC.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2023, there are no borrowings
containing a repayment on demand clause and/or covenant

terms.

31. BE (&)

W :

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

ZEBEUNARERBTE:-
RZE-Z—_FR_F_=F=A
=+—H ' BTFE (fiF23) REE

AiFR (E26) EEM - ERAKE
ERZERBMEZER

RZEBE-__—_FR-_ZFT_=F=H
=t— B AEEETYHE #HERR
1 (FifsE16) EHEM  (ERAE B ER
ZESRBMEZER-

R-E_=F=A=+—H X&H
ZREWE (MF18)BEA EAXK
SEERZEFTBEZER-

RBEZZE-_ KT -_=F=H
=+t—HLEFE ETHEEALRAH
K& THB AR 2 B EERIER
& o

REBEE-_E-_—FR-_T=_=F=A

=+ BLEE BETHEERLEE

*%E%&EM@M&*H¢HM%
DNRIZ —BEBEFU 2 EREER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

32.

256

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued zero coupon convertible bonds
with aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to
three independent third parties on 9 February 2021, 23
February 2021 and 9 March 2021.
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The convertible

The convertible bonds

bonds will mature in three years from the issue date at their
principal amount or can be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company at the holder’s option at a conversion price
of HK$0.25 per share at anytime from the issue date to the
maturity date. Unless previously converted or cancelled, the
Company shall redeem all the outstanding convertible bonds
on the maturity date at a redemption amount equivalent to
100% of the outstanding principal. Neither the Company
nor the convertible bondholders shall have the right to early

redeem the convertible bonds.

The fair values of the liability component was determined at
the issuance of the convertible bonds. The fair value of the
liability component, was calculated using a market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bonds. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion

component, is included in shareholders’ equity.
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AZ+=AK=ZTE=—F=ANA &
RAAZBBYE=FBTRCRER
100,000,000/ 702 T B E AR &5 o
AR EFABITEHE AT IRREF K
REETERRT = FRIREASEE
H AR BEAZBRERBITRRE
2l BA H BE R 12 8542 (B T AR0.258 T i 2
RARA 2 AR -KRIFE EER T
e BAARRREREBHBERESAER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=%F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

=

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continuea)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
has received conversion notices from the convertible
bondholders to exercise the conversion rights attached to
the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amounts of
HK$90,000,000. Accordingly, the Company has allotted and
issued 220,000,000 shares and 140,000,000 shares to the
convertible bondholders at conversion price of HK$0.25 per
share on 2 March 2021 and 11 March 2021 respectively.

Due to the share consolidation on 10 January 2023 as
further detailed on Note 34, the conversion price of the
convertible bonds was changed from HK$0.25 per share to
HK$4 per share. Number of new shares that may be issued
upon conversion has been reduced from 40,000,000 shares
(before share consolidation) to 2,500,000 shares (after share
consolidation).

The movements of the convertible bonds are set out below:

32. TARES (&)

RBEE-_FE-_—F=ZA=+—801
FE - ARAREWBTRBRESRES
AR 2EBBN TEASRHE
90,000,000/ 7T 2 7] # % (& % F7 b &5
ZEBE-E ARFERZTZ—
FZA-_HE-_ZE-_—F=A+—H
2 RRE R E T IR0.257 TR 8 R B 1T
220,000,0000% % 7 %.140,000,000% A%
DT AMBRESFFEAC

HRE-_Z_=F—HAtBETKRNSE
ot CE— PR BENHIEESS) - AR E
HFZEBRECHATR02ETERNRE
B4 TT - NIRRT R BE 1T 2 ¥TAAD

B 752 #340,000,0008% (B fn & A1) B
22,500,000/ (B2 & BH1&) °

AMEES CEBEINWT

Debt Conversion

component component Total

BEDS BRBS &5t

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T FAB T FB T

At 1 April 2021 RZEZ—FWHA—H 8,135 1,947 10,082

Imputed interest expense (Note 10) & & A S (KfsE10) 610 - 610
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R-Z-—F=F=+—H

MZE-—_FMA—H 8,745 1,947 10,692

Imputed interest expense (Note 10) & & M B (Ki3E10) 655 = 655

At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=A=+—H 9,400 1,947 11,347
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

33. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences

under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when

the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The movement in deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position during the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2023 is as follows:

33.

i 5E B H

I FE BB T RIS B % - (2 PR
B R E AR A B
CLERE

REBEE_E-_—_FR T _-_=F=A
=+t BHULEFE EHRAUHBRIEE
BRZELEHBEEZEFHUMT

Temporary
difference on Right-of- Business
inventories use assets combination Total
rEZ
ERZE [RAREE £ |t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET THBT TET
At 1 April 2021 R-Z-_—FMA—H 640 48,976 28,573 78,189
Credited to profit or loss STABRE - (11,314) (15,930) (27,244)
Exchange differences W =% - 1,659 861 2,520
At 31 March 2022 and WZZT-—
1 April 2022 ZA=+—Hk
—E-_F
/MA—H 640 39,321 13,504 58,465
Credited to profit or loss FTABREK - (8,422) (1,523) (9,945)
Exchange differences bE i = 58 - (3,017) (1,057) (4,074)
At 31 March 2023 RZTEZ=F
=A=+—H 640 27,882 10,924 39,446
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—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of approximately HK$139,164,000
(2022: HK$135,921,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
The tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$7,135,000 (2022: HK$8,384,000) will be expired if they
are not utilised to set off against the taxable profits within five
years from the year in which they arose under the current tax
legislation in Mainland China. The tax losses arising in Hong
Kong do not expire under current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been established for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries because the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is not probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future. Such unremitted earnings associated with investments
in subsidiaries totalled approximately HK$1,115,474,000 as at
31 March 2023 (2022: HK$1,477,846,000).

33. EERIE ()

RNEE W RH R FH T IE E B RIE TR
B & E#9139,164,0008 L (—Z T ==
% :135,921,000%8 ) - RA A BB
BHRZEERRERTANEEER
P P SR Bt ) LA S5 B 18 o fiw P B AT 3
EAZBMIE/BELN7,1350008 T (=%
— — % :8,384,0008 L) KA EEFE
RBET AL A ARBR IR A B A IR TR A
AR SHPE R Bs A - A ZERIEEE K
BB -RBEBEE R BEBRERT
P EIH -

BARARARIZESE THEB QR 2RKRE
R MERZEEZEDKRAER AR AR
e U ERZSMBARRABERAR
FEMNZENGELEEREEE-
R-_TE-_=ZF=ZA=+—8 BZZK
BARIBREEACRBERNEG £
£1,115,474,0008 L (&2 = —
1,477,846,000/% 7T ) °

SHARE CAPITAL 34. K&
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZTERHA -}
HK$’000
T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.032 SR EE0.0327 T
(2022: HK$0.002) each (ZE==%:0.00287T)
=il
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, WZ-ZT-_—FM@MA—H"
1 April 2022 B _F=ZA=+—HEK
—E-—FmMA—H 250,000,000,000 500,000
Capital reorganisation (i) P& 7 2 48 (i) (234,375,000,000) _
At 31 March 2023 R-TE-_=F=A=+—H 15,625,000,000 500,000
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=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

34. BA& (&)

2023 2022
—EZZ=F —E-C-F
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$’000
&0 & TR BB FAET
Issued and fully paid: BRETRAR:
At beginning of the year REA 5,471,953,447 10,944 5,471,953,447 10,944
Capital reorganisation (i) MR AR E 4 () (5,129,956,357) - = =
At end of the year RERK 341,997,090 10,944 5,471,953,447 10,944
Notes: B 5 -

(i) On 10 January 2023, the Company implemented the capital

reorganisation and change in board lot size as follows:

a)

Capital reorganisation — share consolidation of every
sixteen unissued and issued existing shares into one
consolidated share whereby increasing the par value of all
the then unissued and issued consolidated shares from
HK$0.002 to HK$0.032 each (“Share Consolidation”);
and following the Share Consolidation, reduction of
the issued share capital whereby (i) the fractional
consolidated share in the issued share capital of the
Company resulting from the Share Consolidation would
be cancelled in order to round down the total number of
consolidated shares to a whole number.

Change in board lot size — the change in board lot size
of the Company for trading on the Stock Exchange from
the then current 8,000 issued existing shares to 2,000
adjusted shares.

35. RESERVES

260

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of

shares at a price in excess of their par value per share. The

application of the share premium account is governed by

Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

0] RZZT_=F—A+H KAR#ETT
UTERAEERERNETFEEENMN:

a)

35. f# &

R 4 5 (B

BABE-B T+ BRRETEK
BEETHRAEROEHAE—RE
BERR(D - FT A B RE R BT RE B
116 BHRR (D 2 BB #E It 5 0.002
BT AZE0.032/8 T ([KRBE
BE1) - WG & BHEEIRE 2
TRRAS B ()ESE AN QA R E 3
TRAFEARGEFMEELEZ
THE RGBS R GH
MR NERE o

EREFEEEMN-ARERG
RERMEBEZ2SFEEENMHH
B HEF 28,0000 B B TIRA K
12 E 2 52,000/% 48 AR AD ©

Bt s (B 15 IR A SR EE 2 1R %
TTRDAEEZGE - RINEERZE
AXARE-NN\—FREDEFI0GR

o
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35. RESERVES (continuea) 35. fwfE (&)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve arose from waiver of interest on convertible
notes by a shareholder of the Company in prior years.

Special reserve

Special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the Company and
the nominal amount of the shares issued for the acquisition
under a group reorganisation in prior years.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Group arose from (a) the
Company’s transfers of certain amounts of share premium
balance to the contributed surplus account, following the
approvals obtained from the Company’s shareholders, (b)
transfer from share option reserve due to forfeiture or lapse
of share options, and (c) dividends paid out in prior years and
share repurchases.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly represents the differences between
the considerations and (a) the carrying amount of the partial
interests in subsidiaries disposed of; and (b) the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests acquired.

BB

BEARBIAARA —BRRREEF
EHRRABRBERMEESE-

BRIEE

AEBZEFRREEAARKENBA
AR E BRERD I EERNBESF
EETEEEAR SWBMET BN
HEEMEZEZRE -

BN EER

REBZHANBRTVBEBATHTAE
£ (BB AR RRA LR AQF
BERETRMEEEHIBEEHBARR
AR - (D) DR W st A7) B 42 =i i £ B4 5k 2
mEBRNBEFEEL  ROBEFE
IR BB BETTRD BB -

SNEEE
SMNERRBRELBBREBIIEBH
BRZFABINEZRE

Htfd
HifEEEEHERERQMEEZHD

B RERD  RESHE: Lo)TKE
ZHERES RASBEME ZEZR -
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35.

262

RESERVES (continued)

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents appropriations of profits retained
by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. In accordance with
the respective articles of association of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries, they are required to appropriate amount not
less than 10% of their profits after income tax to statutory
reserve each year, until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Such a reserve may be used to reduce
any losses incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.

Share option reserve

Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share
options to the employees over the vesting period.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of equity investment designated at FVTOCI under
HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting period.
Convertible bonds equity reserve

Amount of proceeds on issue of convertible bonds relating

to the equity component (i.e. option to convert the debt into
share capital).

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4F ¥

35. fw#fE (&)

EEMEE

EERBREARFTEMBARRE G
Mzol REARBTEMBARS
BZABERAR ZFARBAEFH
HERFTSRREN T DR10%D BEEE X
ERE BEEFREREREEEMRESZ
50% /% 1E - 5% fek A R EFORU T E A 2
EEERBEREREAR

1% 10 A #E 1 4

Y8R B E PO 3 40 B 9 R B AE R R
ZBiH%-

DRAERE(FTRE)
ARERBERERREARAFA MR

BEEVBRELFIRIEERERD
REFAREMEERAZRERERR

B2 R EEFER
ARRESESRE

BOARBESMERBEREEDZED
(BN ER RN 2B ) B2
1 o



Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=%F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

=

36. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an annual
general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012,
the Company’s share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) was
adopted. The Old Scheme shall remain valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing from 20 August 2012,
being the date on which the scheme was deemed to take
effect in accordance with the terms, and this Old Scheme was
in force of ten years and expired on 19 August 2022. On 19
August 2022, share options of an aggregate of 290,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the
Company were granted to employees of the Group under the
Old Scheme. The remaining options available for issue under
the Old Scheme were expired.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 September
2022, the Company’s new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted on 29 September 2022. The New
Scheme is effective for a term of ten years commencing on
29 September 2022. The total number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the New Scheme as
at 31 March 2023 was 34,199,709 shares (including options
for nil share that have been granted but not yet lapsed or
exercised), representing 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of approval of the adoption of the
New Scheme initially. There are no material changes of the
terms under the New Scheme.

Under the New Scheme, the Directors may, at its discretion,
grant options to eligible employees and non-employee
persons, including any directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, suppliers, customers, persons who provides
research, development or other technological support,
shareholders, advisers or consultants of the Group or
invested entities, and any participant who contributes to the
development of the Group.

36. UM AERZEEHE

BEARGN-_ZE——FNA-THE
TZBRRBAFRAE LRBAZ ERRE
AR AI B AR, AT E ([HEah
g -EfEm-_ZT——-—FN\A=-+H
(Bl ET BB IR E R AR EE Rz B
H) R AR RER  BE+F Mt
EERTFEABR YERZ-ZT==
FENATABRH - R=ZZ==F/\A
+ThB BEREEFERAEREES K
g AR RRAFFRROAB T ZE H
290,000,000% & i ik 2 1% {7 B - AR 4%
ErTEIA BT AT HESRES-

BER-_TE-_—FNA-t++tHET
ZARRBERFARG LRBY —TE
ERRER ARAR_ZT=__FNA
Z TN BEPFIRD S ([Fst
g -FitEm—_TE-_—FAA-TAN
BfEER B+ F-R_TE=_=F=A
=+— 8 AR R 2 AT
R 2 B D 48 81 534,199,7000% (£ 15
BER AR R ITEM S R Z 2
) HERARRRIRMFTE — =
I HAEE BE BITIRA Z210% ° ¥t
ST 2GR EE KB E) -

REHTE EFTREHSARETA
EREENMFEEAL BEARAR
HIfB AR ZERES HER TP -
REHIE  FABRREMRMIEZAL
AREBHRIIREE R 2 BIR  BEREKH
AAARBAEEERELERZEM
S -
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36.

264

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continueq)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholder or independent non-executive directors in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company'’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
Options may be exercised from the date of grant of the share
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company
and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, the
average closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the options or the nominal value of the shares.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing the
Company'’s ordinary shares.
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36. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (continueq)

Share options granted on 19 August 2022

On 19 August 2022, share options of an aggregate of
290,000,000 ordinary shares were granted to employees of
the Company under the Old Scheme with a consideration of
HK$1 by each grantee. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. These
share options are exercisable for a period of 5 years from the
date of grant. The exercise price is HK$0.1, being closing
price of HK$0.1 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant.

The fair value of the share options granted to the employees
on 19 August 2022 were HK$9,904,000 (HK$0.034 each).
Share-based payment of HK$9,904,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2023. The following
information is relevant in the determination of the fair value of
options granted on 19 August 2022 under the Old Scheme:

36.

DR AERZEEMHME
(%)

REZBZZENATHABEREZROEE

RZZEZZFNA+NLE RXRARER
BEFTEIRE S & 4 $£290,000,000/%

LR R RDEARE  SRERA
ARMBTZRE - BHHERTEA
AEFRBE—RARAEER - ZER
D EAE T R R I ) B EHES & BRI AT -
IEE A0S BB TR R B H
FT &R AR W T (B0. 18 7T »

RZEZ_—_FNA+tNLBETFEEZ
F% 17 HikE 2~ 718 £9,904,00078 7T (&=

50.0348TL) - AR 0 B ER 2 M &
9,904,000 LERBE—ZTE—_=F=A4
E‘f’*Eﬂ:f‘EEEEWL ?ZKEEA—E::

FANATNERBEERL 2 MEZ
RRERZBBEERNT

Binomial

Option-Pricing

Model

Option pricing model used PR EEER —IEAEEEER
Share price on date of grant R BB ZKRE HK$0.15% 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.17% 7T
Expected volatility SER N 56.83%
Risk-free interest rate #7212 2.68%
Post-vesting exit rate HEEE X 5.00%
Early exercise multiple RETHEBH 1.60
Changes in these subjective input assumptions could ZETE %J)\TETE““ZZDETET—J“@J ' A]
affect the fair value estimate. The fair values calculated are e E A ARBE2ME HRAERE

inherently subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions
made and the limitations of the model used. The value of
an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Any change in variables so adopted may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

MFFRREZRE AESHZARE
ﬂﬁi&ﬁ&$ﬁ§m2)ﬁ%@°ﬁﬂﬁéz1ﬁﬁ
SRETIBERRZ TR B MAE -
PRk REBMBEERNE NSRS
TEHBREAREZEE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

36. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

36. U AERZEEHE

COMPENSATION (continueq) (&)
Share options granted on 19 August 2022 (Continued) RSB FENA+THIhBEREZRGH
¥ (E)
Following the Company’s capital reorganisation on 10 January ARARRZE_=ZF—A+H#ETER
2023, the exercise price and the number of adjusted shares BHR  RITERGDBEZTEERR
to be issued upon exercise in full of the outstanding share RITEERR D FARE E R AT S A 31T 2
options has been adjusted in accordance with the terms of KRR M E BIRRBETE 2 KA
the Old Scheme with effect from 10 January 2023. Under the B BT =F—HTHRBERK RBI&
terms of the Old Scheme, the exercise prices per existing B8 2G5 SRR B BT Y &
share of respective options granted were adjusted from FRRERD Z21TEEBTK0IETH
HK$0.1 to HK$1.6 per shares and there will be 18,125,000 B R1.6/87T MR Gh HEETFEE
shares to be issued upon exercise of the share options. 17 2 0 #% %18,125,000% °
The following table disclosed movements in the Company’s TREBRAAAROHEREBEE S
share options during the year ended 31 March 2023: TE=EF=ZA=FT—HIEFEZEF:
Exercise
price As at
Exercise per share, Forfeited/ ~ Adjustments 31 March
Date of grant and vesting price adjusted Asat Grant during lapsed during  pursuant to 2023,
Name or category of participants date of share options (HK$) (HKS) Exercise period 1 April 2022 the year the year  Old Scheme adjusted
SRTEE R=B==f%
RABERL A k@ (&33g) R-BzZ% Emgh/ BEEGH ZA=t-A
SRERZAEN REEAH (#7) (Bn) EH mA-R ERRE A fHEE (E8%)
Employees 19 August 2022 0 16 19 August 2022 fo 18 August 2027 - 280,000,000 - TETE00 18,125,000
B8 “E-ZENARTAR “E-Z§\RTNREZ
ZE2tENRTAR
At 31 March 2023, a weighted average remaining contractual RZEZ=F=A=+—H mE¥F
life was 4.38 years. No share options were exercised during BT EANERR4BFE - REE T
the year ended 31 March 2023. —ZF=ZA=+—HIFE BMERD
HAREETTIE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37. KREHERIE
(a) Group as lessor (a) AEBEEHBHEBAA
At the end of the reporting period, the total future RS R  RIBE DA & Z
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable BB A REBEFIBRER
operating lease is as follows: ™~
2023 2022
—E-=H —E__fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FABIT
Within one year —F R 74,751 80,875
Later than one year but not later LN —FEBTZAME
than two years 64,112 75,046
Later than two year but not later ZHMEERZR=F
than three years 59,325 63,238
Later than three year but not later ZR=ZFERZRMEF
than four years 51,535 55,477
Later than four year but not later ZRMNFEETNZRRSF
than five years 47,594 50,495
Later than five years ZRAF 115,416 158,352
412,733 483,483
38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 38. BBt A E
Except for disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, B 7N B 755 R 5= EL Ath 30 (0 P #E B8 & O - AR
the Group had no other significant transactions with related SERBE_T__FRIT=F=
parties during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2023. A=T—BI-5EEEEH S ETE
tMERRH o
The Group defines directors of the Company as key AEBARAEARARFREZESRIEETEA
management personnel and their remunerations are set out in B BEZHMERHE12 -
Note 12.
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

268

—E-=f=H=+—H

31 March 2023

SUBSIDIARIES

39. TEMBLAAFE

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 March R-ZE—_=ZF=ZA=1+—HZEEWE
2023. REIREMT -
Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
BRI RILH, BERARE/ KRAFAMESER
WEDR LR BRRAEERERN FRERESR BRER BEASL FEXBREELH
BO Commercial Holdings  British Virgin Islands Ordinary share United States Dollar 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited (“BVI’), limited (‘US$’) 1
liability company
PEEEERERAF EBRAHS EER E REEKR B
BRAA
Carnaby Group Limited BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100%* Investment holding, Hong Kong
company
RRELHE ERR E REER BE
BRDA
Germination International BV, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Group Limited company
BHREREERRAA EERRES LBk E REEKR BE
BRAA
San Sparkle Culture BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
Investment Limited company
RERFULREBRAR REBELEHS: ERR E REER B
BRARA
San Sparkle International BV, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Investment Limited company
BRRERRERREBRAR RERZES ERR E REEK BE
BRDA
Sparkle Roll (France) BV, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Trading of branded watches and
Limited company branded jewelleries,
Hong Kong
B C£8) BRA A KBELHE ERR E BRFERREEHKEE S
BRAA B
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. T EMBEARFE (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BERATRE/ RAAMEER
i 2 B & BXREEERERN FRELRER BERES BEAIN FEERREEHE
Sparkle Roll Global Asset BV, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Management Limited company
BREHREEERERAR RBELES: ERR E REZER BE
BRDA
Sparkle Roll Motors BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited company
BERAERRRA KERTHS TRk E REER &8
BRAT
Forwell Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$10,000 100% Money lending, Hong Kong
liability company
BEMBERDA B ARAA TR 10,0007 70 e &
Full Link Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited liability company
HREEBARAA B BRAA Rl 18T REER B
Future Prosper Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
liability company
KERRAF B BARAA Bk BT REEKR BE
Germination Global Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Holdings Limited liability company
EHRRRERARD A B ARAA ERR 18T REER BE
San Sparkle Asset Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Management Limited liability company
HREEEBRARAA B BRAA Rl 18T REER B
San Sparkle Pictures Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$10,000 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Industries Development liability company
Limited
RRRRYRERER B BRAA EER 10,0007 7 REEKR B

BRRA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. T EMBLARFEE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BRARE/ RAAMEER
i 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BEhEX BEAIN FEERREEHE
Sparkle Roll (Denmark) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$202,674,454 100%"* Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited liability company
B (AR BRAF BB ERAR EBR 202,674,454/ 7T REZKR BE
Sparkle Roll (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Corporate management,
Limited liability company Hong Kong
BR (BB)BRAH B BRAA ERR 18T rEER B
Sparkle Roll Cigars Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share US$3,000,000 50.1% Trading of cigars and smoker’s
Holding Limited liability company accessories, Hong Kong
BRSMERERAA B BRAA EER 3,000,000 70 ENREEREHE S BB
Sparkle Roll Global Motors  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$151,050,000 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Holding Limited liability company
BERMAEARERRA FE ARAA EBR 151,050,000/ 7¢ REZKR BE
Sparkle Roll International ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$100 100% Trading of branded watches
Distributions Limited liability company and audio, equipment, Hong
Kong
BRERKBEERAA B BRAA ERR 1008 7T LEFRREERBES BB
Sparkle Roll Watch & Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Trading of branded watches and
Jewelry Limited liability company branded jewelleries, Hong
Kong
BRERKEARDA B BRAH ERR 18T LRFRREEHKREES BE
SR Advertising Media Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Publications of magazines
Limited liability company and provision of advertising
services, Hong Kong
ERANEESEEBRAR FE BRAA ERR 18T R 5 R bR A B 5 IR B
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31 March 2023

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

39. T EMBLARFEE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BERATRE/ RAAMEER
i 2 B & BXREEERERN FRELRER BERES BEAIN FEERREEHE
Tiger Force Group Limited  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
liability company
AEEEERAA BB BRAA ERR 18T REZER BE
Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 100% Sales and distribution of
Trading Development liability company audio and visual consumer
Limited® electronics products,
Mainland China
EEEE (LR)EHER TEAM FREE  BUREXR AR #50,000,0007 HEREBY S HESTEMR:
BRDA AT HE A
Beijing De Te Motors Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB101,400,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Trading Limited" liability company related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sales
services, Mainland China
TREFAEESERAR REAM FREE  BKEXR AR #101,400,0007 REREBRHREFE AR
NG| RESERE FEAM
Beijing Germination Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB49,900,000 100%  Provision of exhibition and
Technology Industries liability company consultancy services,
Development Limited* Mainland China
TRBHEMREZER HEAMAEREE  BKEAR AR 49,900,000t RERSREARE HEAM
BRAA NG
Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong ~ Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB194,800,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Motors Trading Limited® liability company related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sales
services, Mainland China
EREGHRKATIEES hER AREE  ERER AR #194,800,0007 RERBBTHREGEHUK
ARDA NG REEERYE BN
Beijing Namao Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB30,000,000 51% Film and television planning and
International Culture liability company provision of culture and art
Media Limited? exchange activities services,
Mainland China
IR BB R BE HEAM EREE  BKEAR AR #30,000,0007 FRRERRHE BN RED

BRRA

NG|

R BRI
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. T EMBLARFEE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BRTRE/ RARDFRER
i 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAIN FEERREEHE
Beijing San Sparkle Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,950,000 100%  Film investment, Mainland China
Pictures Industries liability company
Development Limited®
TRERERYRESR mER AREE  ERER AR #49,950,0007C EPRE HERM
ERERDA NG
Beijing Sparkle Roll Fine Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB7,000,000 100% Sales of merchandised goods,
Wine Limited® liability company Mainland China
TREREBREERR mEN FREE  BREAR AR #7,000,0007 HmEE  EAM
BRDA NG
Beijing Sparkle Roll Fu Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB5,000,000 51% Sales and distribution of apparel
Sheng Trading liability company and accessories, Mainland
Company Limited? China
T RBHRREE S mER AREE  ERER AR #5,000,0007 HERRBER KA H -
BERAT NG H B 3t
Beijing Sparkle Roll Honor  Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB17,600,000 100%  Provision of exhibition and
Remit Taifu Yingbin liability company advertising services, Mainland
Conference Service China
Limited*
TRRREXERERE FHMM AREE EKER AR #17,600,0007C REtEERESRE PEAM
eBRBERDA Al
Beijing Sparkle Roll Men Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 70% Sales and distribution of airline,
Dao Men Airline Agency liability company tickets Mainland China
Limited*
TRBFMIMMZEES HFEAM FREE  BKREXR AR #10,000,0007C MEREHERR FERAM
REERDA NG
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31 March 2023

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

39. T EMBLARFEE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BRTRE/ RARFRER
i 2 B & BXREEERERN FRELRER BERES BEAIN FEERREEHE
Beijing Sparkle Roll Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Provision of insurance agency
Motors Insurance liability company services, Mainland China
Agency Limited®
L RBFEAERRRE HEAM EREE  BKEXR AR #10,000,0007 RERRRERSE  FEKMD
BRAT A
Beijing Sparkle Roll Mellow Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB44,900,000 98%  Sales of merchandised goods,
Wine Limited* liability company Mainland China
T RBRERGZBE REAM EREE  BKEAR AR #44,900,0007 AmiEE  PEA
BRAT A
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,000,000 100% Retail of cigars and sales
Tian Di Commerce liability company of merchandised goods,
Development Limited® Mainland China
TRBEFAANEEER HEAM FREE  BKEAR AR #49,000,0007 EHTEREMHEE REAM
BRAT NG
Beijing SR Advertising Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB5,000,000 100%  Provision of business
Media Limited* liability company management and business
planning services, Mainland
China
TREEAEREER REAM AREE  BKEXR AR #5,000,0007T RUECEEBRCERERY
BRAT G e
Beijing Sparkle Roll Yi Fu  Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB2,500,000 100% Sale of merchandised goods,
Tang Healthy liability company Mainland China
Technology
Development Limited®
IrRRREEEREN HEAN FREE EBEKREAR AR #2,500,0007T AmiEE  PEA
ERERDA A
Beijing Tiger Force Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,500,000 100% Provision of advertising and
International Culture liability company marketing, Mainland China
Communication Limited?
IERARBEBR G HEAM EREE  BKEAR AR 49,500,000 RE{EEEREH RERM
BRAT NG
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. T EMBEARFE (&)

274

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
HMAY R E BRTRE/ RARDFRER
i 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAAL FEEBREELY
Beijing Wenfu Hengye Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,900,000 100% Corporate management,
Enterprise Management liability company Mainland China
Limited?
TRXBEECEER REAM EREE  BKEAR AR 49,900,000t GEER REMM
BERAT NG
Beijing Wenfu Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB626,314,300 100%  Property holding, Mainland
Hengye Technology liability company China
Development Co.,
Limited*
ERXBEXREER HENM - EREE  BKEAR AR #626,314,3007T WEER R EIA,
BRAT A
BO Online Culture Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB64,600,000 100%  Provision of exhibition and
Technology Limited? liability company consultancy services,
Mainland China
VBT & LR hER AREE  EREXR AR #64,600,0007 REREREARSE REAM
ARDA NG|
Boao Economic and Trade Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 100% Provision of exhibition and
Development Limited* liability company consultancy services,
Mainland China
AHKEERBRATF HEAM AREE  BKEAR AR #50,000,0007 RERERAARE REAM
NG
Jiao Zhi Zhuang Chen Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,700,000 100% Trading of sliver accessories
(Beijing) Trading liability company and provision of consultancy
Development Limited® services, Mainland China
BEAR (ER)EEHR HEAM FREE  BKEAR AR #49,700,0007 RERHE H KR EE AR
ARDA NG H B )3t
Jing Xin Bo Ce Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 100%  Provision of exhibition and
International Trading liability company consultancy services,
Limited® Mainland China
EHERERSEERAR REAM FREE  BKEXR A K #50,000,0007 REREREARSE REAM

NG
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31 March 2023

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

39. T EMBLARFEE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SMAY RIS BRTRE/ RARFRER
i 2 B & BXREEERERN FRELRER BERES BEAAL FEEBREELY
Beijing Sparkle Roll Yi Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Provision of property
Fu Tong Property liability company management and tenancy
Management Services and sub-tenancy services,
Limited (formerly known Mainland China
as Beijing Quan Tian
Property Management
Services Limited)’
TRBERNEEEREE FEAM FREE  BKEXR AR #10,000,0007 RENMEEEUARBER
B (AITE A BHERS  REAM
ERERNEERRSE
BRAR)
San Sparkle (Beijing) Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB98,770,000 100%  Film investment, Mainland China
International Culture liability company
Development Limited?
BREE (ELR)BEBEX HEAM FREE  BKEAR AR #98,770,0007T BEYRE PEA
ERERAA NG|
Sparkle Roll Bo Ce Trading Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB51,900,000 100% Provision of consultancy
Development Limited® liability company services, Mainland China
BREREHBRAERAR HEANM FREE  BEKREAR AR #51,900,0007 REFAARSE REAM
NG|
Sparkle Roll Ding Sheng Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Sales and distribution of
(Beijing) Trading liability company merchandised goods,
Development Limited® Mainland China
BESE (ER)ES%R HENM ERER  BKEAR AEK#10,000,0007 HERREER TEAM
BRAT A
Sparkle Roll Oriental Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital HK$100,000,000 100% Trading of branded watches,
(Beijing) Trading liability company branded jewelleries and
Development Limited® fine wines and provision
of consultancy services,
Mainland China
BERA (XR)ESER HEAM FREE BUREAR 100,000,000/ 7T ZEFH ZEKERLBES
BRAA NG| WA R AR ARG - B At
Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB38,700,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Trading Development liability company related parts and accessories
Limited® and provision of after-sale
services, Mainland China
AEBRREEHER mEN BREE  BKEAR AR #38,700,0007 AEREEZHREFE SR

BRRA

NG

REERKRSE FEAL
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. T EMBLARFEE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective

incorporation/ interest held

establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations

HMAY R E BRTRE/ RARDFRER

i 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAAL FEEBREELY

Tianjin Rui Bo Tai Fu Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Trading Development liability company related parts and accessories
Limited® and provision of after-sale

services, Mainland China

REWEREESER HENMAEREE  BKEAR AR #10,000,0007 AERMEZHREHE SR
BRAA NG| REERRE FEAM

Tianjin Wenfu Tai Fu Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB71,000,000 88% Corporate management
Enterprise Management liability company (2022: 60%)  consultants service and
Limited® (“Tianjin trading of automobiles
Wenfu Tai Fu”) and related parts and

accessories, Mainland China

REXBRECLKER mER AREE  ERER AR #71,000,0007 PREEBEARBARATER
BRDOA YN HAZHREHES FEAM
([RRXERE])

Beijing Wenfu Xin Tian Di  Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB220,000,000 96.5% Provision of non residential
Real Estate Co., Limited liability company (2022: 70.40%)  property leasing, real estate
(formerly known as consultation and corporate
Tianjin Wenfu Xin management services,

Tian Di Real Estate Mainland China
Co., Limited)" (“Beijing
Wenfu Xin Tian Di")

TRXEGANELER FEAM FREE  BKEX AR #220,000,0007T REFEERNEDLE  FER:
AT (HiBREXEHR OF REXERRS PERMG
WEEXERADR)

([HRXBEHAE])

Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu
Trading Development
Limited*

Yang Pu BO Investment
Limited*
FRLBREBRAA

Yang Pu Germination
Ding Sheng Investment
Limited?
HRERREREERAA

276

Mainland China, limited
liability company

PR BEREE

NG

Mainland China, limited
liability company
RERL - FREE

NG

Mainland China, limited
liability company

mER - BREE

NG
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Paid-up capital

BEYEXR

Paid-up capital

BYEAR

Paid-up capital

BYEAR

RMB45,000,000

AR #45,000,0007

RMB10,000,000

AR #10,000,0007

RMB30,000,000

AR #30,000,0007
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100%

100%

100%

Trading of automobiles and
related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sales
services, Mainland China

RERBEBTHREGESHUR
RUESERRE TEAM

Investment holding, Mainland

China
REER  RERAM

Investment holding, Mainland
China

REZR TEAK
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—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

Place/country of
incorporation/

39. T EMBLARFEE (&)

Percentage of
effective
interest held

establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BRTRE/ RARFRER
i 2 B & BXREEERERN FRELRER BERES BEAAL FEEBREELY
Yang Pu Tiger Force Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Investment holding, Mainland
Investment Limited" liability company China
HRAEREBRAT mEN FREE  BREAR AR #10,000,0007 REER REAM
A
Yang Pu Quan Tian Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB28,000,000 100%  Provision of property
Commercial Brand liability company management and tenancy
Network Services and sub-tenancy services,
Shares Limited® Mainland China
FREABEREAERE TEAM FREE  BKEXR A K #28,000,0007 RENFEBAREER
BRHERDA AT BHERE - REAH
Yang Pu Wenfu Hengye Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Investment holding, Mainland
Investment Limited" liability company China
HFRXBEXREERAA FEMM AREE EKER AR #10,000,0007 REER REAM
NG
1 The English names of these subsidiaries established in o AR ZE R B A K 2 i 8 A )
Mainland China represent management’s best effort at WEEMEXRXEHE Bt Z5R
translating the Chinese names of these subsidiaries as no XEBIBHERBRHZAS NAZE

official English names have been registered.

Directly held by the Company

o 78.31% directly held by the Company and 21.69% directly held =
by its subsidiary, Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Development

Limited

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

MEBAR P XL HEE-
: HARBEERE

7831 %A RBIEERFH ' M21.69%
HENBAREEER (LR)EHE
RERAAREERS

EXRFINARREERRETEZEALF
EXEIBNAKREEEFEERA D
ZARRABMBLRAR -EFERA HIRH
HHE AR ZFHE < ERHARTT

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in Ko

particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of year.

MEMBRARNFRSHTENELE
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40.

278

SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

On 10 January 2023, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement with a vendor to acquire additional
26.1% equity interest on Beijing Wenfu Xin Tain Di at a
cash consideration of RMB81,560,000 (HK$92,682,000
equivalent). The transaction was completed on 11 January
2023. Accordingly, the Company indirectly holds 96.5% equity
interest of Beijing Wenfu Xin Tian Di.

The Group entered into an equity transfer agreement with a
vendor to acquire additional 28% equity interest on Tianjin
Wenfu Tai Fu on 20 May 2022, at a cash consideration of
RMB25,000,000 (HK$28,409,000 equivalent). The transaction
was completed on 6 June 2022. Accordingly, the Company
indirectly holds 88% equity interest of Tianjin Wenfu Tai Fu.

Set out below is summarised financial information of Tianjin
Wenfu Tai Fu and Beijing Wenfu Xin Tian Di, which has non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) that are material to the Group.
The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-
company eliminations.

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7
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b R AR FT K b AR #E96.5% ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

40. SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

4. BEEERFERER 2K B

YNCIRE)

Summarised statement of financial position B AR R R R E
Tianjin Wenfu Beijing Wenfu Tianjin Wenfu Beijing Wenfu
Tai Fu Xin Tian Di Tai Fu Xin Tian Di
XEXBERE LEXEHRL XENRRE HRNEHAL
2023 2023 2022 2022
—E-=E —EC-=E —E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TER FHEL AT
Non-current assets FRBEE 100,087 351,598 105,926 381,749
Current assets M)A E 11,251 71 8,102 9,513
Current liabilities mEAE 623 6,052 2,530 7,418
Current net assets/(liabilities) RBEERE/
(BERH) 10,628 (5,981) 5,572 2,095
Net assets EERE 110,715 345,617 111,498 383,845
Accumulated NCI ZEEERER 13,286 12,096 44,600 113,618
Summarised statement of comprehensive income ZHBARRYPE
Tianjin Wenfu Beijing Wenfu Tianjin Wenfu Beijing Wenfu
Tai Fu Xin Tian Di Tai Fu Xin Tian Di
XEXBEE LERXEHRH RENERE UARXEHAL
2023 2023 2022 2022
—E-=# —EC-=F —E-C —E--
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT FHET FHET
Revenue g 8,812 12,052 14,692 5,595
(Loss)/profit for the period AEE (FE) /%A (376) 7,639 9,253 (5,424)
Other comprehensive income Hin2EEA - - = 5
Total comprehensive income EXELON - E (376) 7,639 9,253 (5,424)
Loss allocated to NCI PREFERER 2 E#E (45) 267 3,701 (1,606)

Dividends paid to NCI

B EERER RS
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40. SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- 4. BEEEARFERER ZHE
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) YNCINE -9,
Summarised statement of cash flows HERERRBPE

Tianjin Wenfu Beijing Wenfu Tianjin Wenfu Beijing Wenfu

Tai Fu Xin Tian Di Tai Fu Xin Tian Di
AENEREE LHERXEHR RENERE UARXEBHAL
2023 2023 2022 2022
—EC-=F —EC-=F —F-- —F-C
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET AT AT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBIHERE 1,351 (212) (1,936) (34)
Cash flows from investing activities REXBZHSME 8 1 8 1
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand BE&RELZEEE
cash equivalents ®Bin/ (AY) 28 1,359 (211) (1,928) (33)
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND M. BEERBREERAAETE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of AEERABERBEFERAEMT
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The B W& R SRR - ZEH %R R
financial risks included market risk (including currency risk, EmimER (2EEERR - 7X@k &
interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity RERBR) =5 Rk & mE R -
risk.
Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s VBRREERASEBIHE  WH
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of EEEEESE-BEREVBRAR I EE
directors. The overall objectives in managing financial risks EEAERERESRTSRER ZER
focus on securing the Group’s short to medium term cash T BRASEREBZHESRE-
flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets.
It is not the Group’s policy to engage in the trading of financial ABIREENEESR T AWEREE 2
instruments for speculative purposes. SR o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
41.1 Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

MHREREER DB

(%)

fim

411 E@ITEER

ERCRTANBERRZEEES

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

FEUOR :

2023 2022
—E-= =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Financial assets TRMEE
At fair value: BARE:
Financial assets at FVTOCI BEARBEFAEMER
WAZTREE 158,395 319,766
Investment in films and KEEZRERE B
television program 49,768 63,737
At amortised cost: R A -
Trade receivables EWE 5708 36,228 27,823
Loan receivables FE UL E 5K - 34,471
Deposits and other receivables e M H e I8 82,749 136,783
Amounts due from non-controlling & U 3F 22 A% # 25 k18
interests 17,115 40,309
Pledged deposits B 175K 75,229 84,111
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHERE 146,732 151,519
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BEEBEER A RE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

fim

41.1 Categories of financial instruments (Continued) 411 BT BER (&)

282

41.2

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7

2023 2022
—E_=5F —EFE-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T F 7 T
Financial liabilities EA =R
At amortised cost: BB A -
Trade payables N E S 5E 30,417 142,849
Accrued charges and other payables J&=T % A & E b & < ZUB 25,528 26,191
Amounts due to non-controlling JE 15T FE 420 A% 25 30TR
interests 8,009 11,420
Lease liabilities HEBR 345,187 393,001
Borrowings BE 996,911 1,064,691
Convertible bonds AR E 5
— debt component — BB D 9,400 8,745

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China with most of the transactions denominated and
settled in HK$, DKK, EUR, CHF, RMB and US$ defined
as below. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk primarily arises from certain financial instruments
including equity investment, trade and other receivables,
rental deposits paid to a related party, amount due from
a related party, cash at banks and in hand, trade and
other payables and borrowings which are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities, including DKK, EUR, CHF,
RMB and US$. During both years, the Group did not
have foreign currency hedging policy but management
continuously monitors foreign exchange exposure.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4F ¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. B ERBREERAARETE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continuea) (#&)
41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 41.2 HNEEERR (&)
Foreign currency denominated financial assets and RERRUINEA B2 EREE
financial liabilities, translated into HK$ at the prevailing FemaERErmlmERnE A
closing rates at the end of the reporting period, are as ABICEAT ¢
follows:
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-_F
Financial Financial Net Financial Financial Net
assets liabilities exposure assets liabilities exposure

TREE tREE B FE THEE AR %R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TER TERT TAET AT AT

Danish Krone (‘DKK’) ~ f}E 35 157,087 - 157,087 319,766 - 319,766
Euro (‘EUR’) BT 188 - 188 182 - 182
Swiss Franc (‘CHF’) I A P 5 - 5 2 - 2
Renminbi (‘RMB’) AEH# 18 - 18 12 - 12
United State Dollar ET

('US$’) 2,482 (8,998) (6,516) 947 - 947
Sensitive analysis B E W
As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not expect BMRETEBITEE Bt A&
any significant movement in the HK$/US$ exchange EEHAA TR ETEZSAgHE
rate. No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group’s ERIERED) AR ARREER
financial assets and financial liabilities denominated R ERNETT B TTE XN E
in US$ is disclosed as in the opinion of directors of Rz BEEMY - REBMIAETIIE
the Company, such sensitivity analysis does not give LERMEERSBABIHRED
additional value in view of insignificant movement in the WA EREBEINMEE BT &R
US$/HK$ exchange rates at the end of the reporting EEBASRES T
period.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BEEBEER A RE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

fim

41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 41.2 HNEEERR (&)

284

Sensitive analysis (Continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s results for the years and retained profits
in regards to a 5% (2022: 5%) appreciation in HK$
against DKK, EUR, CHF and RMB respectively. The 5%
is the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible change
in foreign exchange rates.

MBEDH (&)

TREMRRNEBRRMESFE 2%
BERRE BANE AT E R
BT I T AR R AR S BIAE
5% (ZEZZF :5%) ZBRE °
5%y M E EEE A BIEINE R B
ABMERB 2R WREERE
NS OB F B 2 SR EGFT ©

2023 2022
—E_=5F —EFE-—

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FE T FABT

DKK 2% A 7,854 15,990

EUR BT 9 (49)

RMB AR 1 251

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period
has been determined based on the assumed percentage
changes in foreign currency exchange rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial years and held constant
throughout the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.2

41.3

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitive analysis (Continued)

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against DKK, EUR, CHF and
RMB would have the same magnitude on the Group’s
results for the year and retained profits but of opposite
effect.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to
be representative of the Group’s exposure to foreign

currency risk.
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits (Note 26) and borrowings (Note 31). The Group
has not used any derivative contracts in order to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk. As at 31 March 2022
and 2023, the Group does not anticipate significant
impact to bank deposits because the interest rates of
bank deposits are not expected to change significantly.
The Group has not formulated a policy to manage the
interest rate risk.

The Group’s fair value interest-rate risk mainly arises
As at 31
March 2022 and 20283, borrowings were issued at fixed

from borrowings as disclosed in Note 31.

rates which expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk. The Group has no cash flow interest-rate risk
from borrowings as there are no borrowings which bear
floating interest rates. The Group has not used any
financial instruments to hedge potential fluctuations in
interest rates.

41.2

41.3

M. BREBREERAAMBEFE
(%)

SRR ()
MBEDH (&)

BT ERE BT AR
RARERZESREHARERA
FEZEBENRFRBHEMNEAREE
HRZEE-

SNEEER R SR FFERNBINZ
ZEBEMBATR-EE WL £
253 AT 45 AR A% AT AR SR AN SR 18 P I
ZINE R o

MEER

AEBEZMEERERRARITE
R (M 5E26) REE (M5E31) < A
SEY EEREAITETAESNY
HEEHZMERER R_F——
FR-F_=F=HA=1+—H'K
SEBEFRITERTEXBNERY
£ RAR/RITERMEFREHA
SHRLEBAREE  AEE W EHIF]
BRI E R 2 BUR

AEBZARENEREREIERS
M1 EZERE - R_F
FR-_F_=F=A=1t—81" &
EFRENEENRER S8 E
Eﬁ@ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬂ%oﬁ%ﬂﬁ%
ERFBNEREFR  MAKELE
REEEZRESRENERE 2
SEIEE AE Ao T AL B
M R
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

286

41.4 Equity price risk

41.5

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as financial assets at
FVTOCI as at 31 March 2022 and 2023.

The management would manage its exposure arising
from the investment by closely monitoring the
performance of the respective equity investments and
market conditions.

At 31 March 2023, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% in the market price of this listed equity
securities, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s fair value
reserve (other components of consolidated equity) by
approximately HK$7,920,000 (2022: HK$15,988,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risks are
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from non-controlling interests,
pledged deposits, and cash at banks and in hand. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
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—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

fim

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41, BEEBEER A RE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

41.5 Credit risk (Continued) 415 EERR (&)

The management of the Group considers pledged
deposits and cash at banks and in hand that are
deposited with state-owned banks or financial
institutions with high credit rating to be low credit
risk financial assets. The management of the Group
considers these assets are short-term in nature and
the probability of default is negligible on the basis of
high-credit-rating issuers as at 31 March 2023. In
respect of rental receivables, other than the tenants
that loss allowance has been individually provided for,
sufficient rental deposits from tenants are held to cover
potential exposure to credit risk. Further, evaluations
are made for the customers with reference to their
repayment history and financial strength, as well as the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Accordingly, no loss allowance was recognised as at
31 March 2023 other than loss allowance provided to
individually assessed trade receivables.

In determining the ECL for deposits, other receivables
and amounts due from non-controlling interests, the
management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, and concluded that credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivables
is insignificant. The management of the Group has
assessed there is no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and risk of default is insignificant,
and therefore, no impairment has been recognised.

AEEEEERAERNEERE
B zBERTREMEEZD
EHEFARRTRFBERE K
FEEREREE -R_FT_=F
ZA=Zt—R AKEEEERR
ZEEEBEHME BEITAR
EoEEMNAR WHBREH 2T
MK - EUNEES S E K2 @5
HRERGE AP XEEF
BEZHEFHERERABHER
EERR- N AEETE2E
BERFZERELRMBEN AR
EEFReMERERENTFE
Heffb Bt R—F-_=F=H
=t—8 BaEFE 2 ERE
FHRBEHRZ B REEIN - L EE
REREIE-

BERSE  HibREYE K EYOE
TSR RHEREERR
AEEEEEEH BTEROLR
RETEEERS (WER)  BAEN
SEARWEZ BEFEZAEEE
EERER AEEEEECNE
B MR FER A K - (5 & AR I & 58
ZRE - MEORREN KA E
FERRIBLIE
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—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND M. BEEREERAAEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

41.5 Credit risk (Continued) 415 EERR (&)

In respect of the ECL for loan receivables and related
interest receivables included in other receivables, loss
allowance of HK$10,151,000 and HK$2,512,000 are
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2023. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from loan receivables and respective
interest receivables are disclosed in Notes 24 (b) and (c).

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information and other information that is available

%%AﬁmﬁW%EZﬁwﬁ
HEREARBKFNEZEREE
Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁm BE_T_=F=H
=T -HIEFERRZEEBE
7%10,151,0007% 7T %2,512,0007%
Lo BAAEBEREERES &mﬁ
FEUWF B FTEAEERBAE—
TE 2 BB R T 524 (b) & @&%o

TRINNZBAEBEERRE L
ZEEEEkGEREERR T2
%E@E?@ﬁﬂﬁﬂ&?\d@%@ﬁﬁi
AN F Zﬁﬁﬂiéf*ﬂr UREE=

without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging RZERDPEEDHE -
classification as at March.
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZE-_=%=H=+-—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AR
REER 2HENCEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
B 21 P £r2 B £23 L% hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TER TER TER
Trade receivables W E 5B - - - 42,028 42,028
Loan receivables EWER - - 65,623 - 65,623
Deposits and other receivables Be REMERZE 82,749 - 3,430 - 86,179
Amounts due from non-controlling ~ FEUR3EEE IR B R
interests 17,115 - - - 17,115
Pledged deposits BEARER 75,229 - - - 75,229
Cash at banks and in hand RIIRFERS 146,732 - - - 146,732
321,825 - 69,053 42,028 432,906
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—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.5 Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022

M. BBREARBEERQAES

(%)

fim

415 EERRK (&)

R—ZBE-_—F=HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12@AES
FEBR LHBAEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
29 BB s B @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTL TEL THETL TAL TATL
Trade receivables EWE SR - - - 27,823 27,828
Loan receivables ERER - 89,943 - - 89,943
Deposits and other receivables e REMEWIE 136,212 1,489 - - 137,701
Amounts due from non-controlling R FEZ IR E % 7R
interests 40,309 - - - 40,309
Pledged deposits BEARER 84,111 - - - 84,111
Cash at banks and in hand RORFERS 151,519 - - - 151,519
412,151 91,432 - 27,828 531,406
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
41.5 Credit risk (Continued)
The following table provides information about the

Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade
receivables as at 31 March 2023 and 2022:

As at 31 March 2023

MHEEREER QB

(%)

415 EERK (&)

TREHEEASER
FZA=+—RHKaRE

— s — —

=

fim

—E_=F

WEZHIEEERRIEREE
BRZE#R:

R-E-_=%=H=+-—H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BAHEBRER REASE ERER RERE
(%) HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(%) TERT TET TER
Collective assessment SR
Current (not past due) BNER (R H) - 26,919 - 26,919
Less than 31 days past due @D 31H - - - -
31-60 days past due W31 E60H - 3,123 - 3,123
61-90 days past due B 61 Z90H - 539 - 539
Over 90 days but less than # B 3B90
1 year past due BOR1E - 1,659 - 1,659
More than 1 year past due a H 1 - - - -
32,240 - 32,240
Individual assessment {8 B £ 59% 9,788 (5,800) 3,988
42,028 (5,800) 36,228
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND M. BEREREERAAEFTE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continuead) (#%)
41.5 Credit risk (Continued) 41.5 ERK (&)
As at 31 March 2022 R—E-_—_F#=A=+—H
Expected  Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
HHEEX REAR BERE ARE
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(%) TET FHET FET
Collective assessment -
Current (not past due) BNER (RER) - 19,183 _ 19,183
Less than 31 days past due @ EI L H31H - - - .
31-60 days past due #E31Z60R - 7,853 - 7,858
61-90 days past due #H61E90H - - - -
Over 90 days but less B ER B0
More than 1 year past due @ HiEiB1E - - - _
27,823 - 27,823
Individual assessment 18 Bl 5T = - - -
27,823 - 27,823
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BEEBEER A RE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

fim

41.6 Liquidity risk 41.6 HRE M E R

292

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group manages the liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring scheduled
debt servicing payments for long term financial liabilities
as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day
to day business.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for the non-derivative financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period. When the creditor has
a choice of when the liability is settled, the liability is
included on the basis of the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Where the settlement of
the liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed to
pay.

The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities.
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Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)

41.

(%)

MHREREER DB

41.6 REMERR (&)

fim

Total Less than
contractual one year or
Carrying  undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow on demand or above
SRR PR-FF
REeE HeR=4E REREE —EgN L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAEL FTAEL AT TAET
At 31 March 2023 R-B-=%
=A=t+-H
Trade payables ENE 5B 30,417 30,417 30,417 -
Accrued charges and BT &R REAM
other payables ANE 25,528 25,528 25,528 -
Amounts due to non- [ IR i S 70E
controlling interests 8,009 8,009 8,009 -
Lease liabilities MEAE 345,187 450,033 61,487 388,546
Borrowings BE 996,911 1,220,276 765,963 454,313
Convertible bonds ARk ES
— debt component — BB D 9,400 10,000 10,000 -
1,415,452 1,744,263 901,404 842,859
At 31 March 2022 R-EB-Z%
=ZA=t-H
Trade payables ENE 55E 142,849 142,849 142,849 -
Accrued charges and BB R REAM
other payables AN 26,191 26,191 26,191 -
Amounts due to non- &I R R S 70E
controlling interests 11,420 11,420 11,420 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 393,001 530,505 60,366 470,139
Borrowings BE 1,064,691 1,165,163 930,352 234,811
Convertible bonds Ak ES
~ debt component — BB 8,745 10,000 - 10,000
1,646,897 1,876,128 1,171,178 714,950
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BEEBEER A RE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
41.7 Fair value measurements
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” categorises
fair value measurements into a three-level
hierarchy. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

294 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i8KEIMEBE R L 7
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Br RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.7 Fair value measurements (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

. HHEREER A B

fim

(%)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& E-® F=R #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERE TER TER THERE
At 31 March 2023 R=-Z==
=B=+-—H
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets BRAREFAEMLER
at FVTOCI WAZEREE 158,395 - - 158,395
Investment in films  KEEF NEREHE
and television
program - - 49,768 49,768
Investment RE*
properties - - 393,862 393,862
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 E_R F=R BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TEx TAE THE AL
At 31 March 2022 R=-Z=-—%
=B=+-—H
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets BARERAEMER
at FVTOCI WAZEBEE 319,766 - - 319,766
Investment in films  REEF MEREE
and television
program - - 63,737 63,737
Investment REYE
properties - - 437,425 437,425
During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2023, T _FRFE

there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level

2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s

policy is to recognise transfers between levels of

fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

B £-REF_RZEL
BER TEEAXBLE
ZHRAEEZBRBN
HEBREPRERALL
1B E A 2 B
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=HF=+—H 31 March 2023

41.

42,

296

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.7 Fair value measurements (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

(i)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets
and liabilities carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2022 and 2028.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes since the previous year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated
as borrowings and convertible bonds, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain
the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

41.

42,

MERBEERA BT
(%)

fim

41.7 PREFE (&)

(i) WHURAAREIERZE2H
TAZAALE

AEBR-_ZE-_—_FR=-F
T=FE=A=t+—RiRH
RABNEZEERBEZE
HEEENABETESERE
EO

EXER

AEEEAEEZ T EBERRRER
B ZEEFRRBREZERLE LA
XRBEEBLERERSRREE-

A BRI AR 2 B BB A A
BUHHENBE - AR RAEAA
Gt A9 B o1 B B R SR A 2 B
B FERBEAARETHRG A L
— LR AREZ BB BRI
CEEE -

AEBRABERBEL X (AEKARE
BRABARGR) BERER - EBARETIR
RABBRRBERAREER RATRRE
Hat B BERBBEIRE A M BRI R
RN ERBETE - NREZBRTD
EERBELRERFRAEKF-

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAIT

Total debt BS54
Borrowings and convertible bonds BEE M #%E 5 1,006,311 1,073,436
Total capital BN EEE 2,227,920 2,725,323
Gearing ratio ERBERE 45.2% 39.4%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-=F=H=+—H 31 March 2023

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. XA A Z BB MR RH R
THE COMPANY
2023 2022
—E_-= =F==
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T T& T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG X 576,938 773,141
Current assets mEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A S NGIEE] 1,118,087 1,126,715
Cash at banks RITR & 531 718
1,118,618 1,127,433
Current liabilities mEaE
Accrued charges and FEET & A K E fth fE 1 5RIE
other payables . 2,372 1,811
Convertible bonds AT AR E 5 9,400 i
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE ] 42,752 37,083
54,524 38,894
Net current assets REBEESRE 1,064,094 1,088,539
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERREB & & 1,641,032 1,861,680
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Convertible bonds A A% (& 5 - 8,745
Net assets EEFE 1,641,032 1,852,935
EQUITY =
Share capital fi& 7 10,944 10,944
Reserves fF 1,630,088 1,841,991
1,641,032 1,852,935

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 30 June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

R-B-=FNA=+TERESSH# L
REENZE YHUATEERRES

Zheng Hao Jiang
BET
Director

EF

Zhao Xiaodong
AR
Director

EF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

=

=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

298

43. AR T 2 MR R IKER (2)

Convertible Retained
Share honds earnings/
Share Capital ~ Contributed Exchange option equity (accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
TRRE® REERA/
REEE BAGE £ O8] AERE REBERE BiRE  (ZHER) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT ThER ThT TR ThT T ThT TR
At 31 March and 1 April 2021 RZBZ-£=A=+-A
kmA-H 1,712,615 3,508 352,158 (1,97) - 1,947 7,015 2,075,172
Changes in equity in 2022 ZEICEEREY
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - (233,181) (233,181)
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENALE
for the year - - - - - - (233,181) (233,181)
At 31 March 2022 RZF-Z%=A=1-A 1,712,515 3,508 352,158 (1,97) - 1,947 (226,166) 1,841,991
At 31 March and 1 April 2022 RZEZZ§=A=1-H
REA-R 1,712,515 3,508 352,158 (1,971) - 1,947 (226,166) 1,841,991
Changes in equity in 2023 ZEICEERRD
Loss for the year FEERR - - - - - - (221,807) (221,807)
Equity-setfled share-based payment  LAEHEEN KA BER 2R - - - - 9,904 - - 9,904
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENALE
for the year - - - - 9,904 - (221,807) (211,903)
At 31 March 2023 RZBZ=%=fA=+-A 1,712,515 3,508 352,158 (1,91) 9,904 1,947 (447,973 1,630,088
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REYEFE
Particulars of Investment Properties

RZZE-_=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2023

Location Held on Lease Term Usage
b B HEROES ik
Building 17 and Building 19, Medium Commercial

Xinghuo West Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC*

FREJE R T A AR 5 A
5@ 2 N K

175518 R195R 18

Portion of basement Level 1 of Tower B, Medium Commercial

International Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Cun,

Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC*

REIE RS R § 5 5]
18 - H405% 18

B EEESBE-1ERHERE

*for identification purpose only

Y ELEE
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Financial Summary

RESULTS ¥E
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-NFE Z—E-TF —T--— —E-—F& ZEZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T THEL TET THET T
Revenue izs 3,724,845 3443430 4525762 4,324,487 3,997,656
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to 72 &I A FE1E
owners of the Company KERRF,/ (BE) 97,429 30,283 37,527 34,052 (53,127)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
“E-NF CZE-ZFf C"E--4F "T--F CBC-=E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T THEL FiET THT T
Total assets BEMAE 3,933,651 3,597,058 4,086,152 4,727,684 3,985,960
Total liabilities BfERE (1,560,457)  (1,594,148)  (1,426,856)  (2,002,361)  (1,758,040)
2,373,194 2002910 2,659,296 2,725,323 2,227,920
Equity attributable to AREEB NELER
owners of the Company 2,366,637 2,000,722 2,654,955 2,562,472 2,199,224
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 6,557 2,188 4,341 162,851 28,696
2,373,194 2,002,910 2,659,296 2725323 2,227,920
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